
Wednesday, April 4, 2018
2:00 PM

Napa Valley Transportation Authority
625 Burnell Street

Napa, CA 94559

NVTA Conference Room

Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee

All materials relating to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Independent 

Taxpayer  Overs ight  Commi t tee  ( ITOC) are  pos ted  on  our  webs i te  a t 

https://nctpa.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx at least 72 hours prior to the meeting and will be available for 

public inspection, on and after at the time of such distribution, in the office of the Secretary of the ITOC, 

625 Burnell Street, Napa, California 94559, Monday through Friday, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 

5:00 p.m., except for NVTA holidays.  Materials distributed to the present members of the ITOC at the 

meeting will be available for public inspection at the public meeting if prepared by the members of the 

ITOC or staff and after the public meeting if prepared by some other person.  Availability of materials 

related to agenda items for public inspection does not include materials which are exempt from public 

disclosure under Government Code sections 6253.5, 6254, 6254.3, 6254.7, 6254.15, 6254.16, or 

6254.22.

Members of the public may speak to the ITOC on any item at the time the ITOC is considering the item .  

Please complete a Speaker’s Slip, which is located on the table near the entryway, and then present 

the slip to the ITOC Secretary.  Also, members of the public are invited to address the ITOC on any 

issue not on today’s agenda under Public Comment.  Speakers are limited to three minutes.

This Agenda shall be made available upon request in alternate formats to persons with a disability .  

Persons requesting a disability-related modification or accommodation should contact Karrie Sanderlin, 

ITOC Secretary, at (707) 259-8631 during regular business hours, at least 48 hours prior to the time of 

the meeting.

This Agenda may also be viewed online by visiting the NVTA website at 

https://nctpa.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx

Note: Where times are indicated for agenda items they are approximate and intended as estimates 

only, and may be shorter or longer, as needed.

Agenda - Final



April 4, 2018Independent Taxpayer Oversight 

Committee

Agenda - Final

1.  Call To Order

2.  Roll Call

3.  Introductions

4.  Public Comment

5.  Committee Member and Staff Comments

Note: Where times are indicated for the agenda items they are approximate and intended as estimates 

only, and may be shorter or longer, as needed.

6.  REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS

6.1 Election of Chair and Vice-Chair, and Member Terms of Office 

(Karrie Sanderlin) (Pages 8-9)

The ITOC will elect a Chair and Vice-Chair for 2018 and draw lots for 

initial member terms limits as established by the Measure T Ordinance 

and memorialized in the ITOC By-Laws.

Recommendation:

2:15 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

6.2 Organizational Structure of the Napa Valley Transportation 

Authority-Tax Agency (NVTA-TA) and the Napa Valley 

Transportation Authority (NVTA) (Kate Miller) (Pages 10-14)

Information only.  Staff will review the organizational structure of the 

NVTA-TA and NVTA.

Recommendation:

2:20 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

Page 2 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 3/28/2018

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=71c43c6f-394f-4bf5-8235-56a618ab0388.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4803e692-15b6-482f-80c7-97c41bd49f4b.pdf


April 4, 2018Independent Taxpayer Oversight 

Committee

Agenda - Final

6.3 Measure T Overview (Kate Miller) (Pages 15-17)

Information only. The ITOC will receive and overview of Ordinance No. 

2012-01, known as the Measure T Ordinance.

Recommendation:

2:30 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

6.4 Overview of the Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee Role 

and Responsibilities (Kate Miller) (Pages 18-49)

Information only.  The ITOC will receive and overview of the role and 

responsibilities of the committee.

Recommendation:

2:40 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

6.5 Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee (ITOC) By-Laws, the 

Brown Act, and the Standard Code of Parliamentary Procedure 

(Vicki Clayton) (Pages 50-58)

Information only.  The ITOC will receive a review of the ITOC By-Laws, 

the Brown Act, and the Standard Code of Parliamentary Procedure by 

Alice Sturgis

Recommendation:

2:50 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

6.6 Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee Meeting Schedule for 

Calendar Year (CY) 2018 (Karrie Sanderlin) (Pages 59-61)

The ITOC will approve the meeting schedule for CY 2018.Recommendation:

3:00 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

Page 3 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 3/28/2018

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ac234d15-570c-490a-80cb-04b6723ce017.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=72b52963-410b-48cc-a4f1-d6ddbdd8e8b3.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b536f1f4-c1c5-4ed9-b485-217c88b27b30.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8e8fd694-5e94-4e16-aaea-3629ff122d25.pdf


April 4, 2018Independent Taxpayer Oversight 

Committee

Agenda - Final

6.7 Jurisdictions' Maintenance of Effort (MOE) Overview (Danielle 

Schmitz) (Pages 62-74)

Information only.  The ITOC will have the opportunity to review each 

jurisdiction’s MOE.

Recommendation:

3:10 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

6.8 Pavement Management 101 (Kate Miller) (Pages 75-84)

Information only.  NVTA staff will provide an overview of pavement 

management processes and methodology.

Recommendation:

3:30 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

6.9 Jurisdictions' Five-Year Project Lists (Danielle Schmitz) (Pages 

85-114)

That the ITOC make a finding that the projects lists are consistent with 

the intent of the measure and make a recommendation on which of the 

items on thos project lists should be approved by the NVTA-TA.  

Representatives from each City/County/Town jurisdiction will have 10 

minutes to provide a brief overview of their five-year project list 

covering the following areas: (1) Project Title; (2) Project Cost; (3) 

Project Limits; and (4) Project Timeline.

Recommendation:

3:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

6.10 Measure T 6.67% Equivalent Funds Project List Review (Danielle 

Schmitz) (Pages 115-117)

Information only.  The ITOC will receive a review of the Measure T 

6.67% Project List.

Recommendation:

4:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

Page 4 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 3/28/2018

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4754ee1d-1974-4ba0-bf23-ddcf0ca2e52a.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f3850dfb-6a9e-40f3-a622-22b0a91e101b.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=52202787-9f74-4cc7-bf93-55495684610f.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=150ac80f-6a3e-489c-99cf-283a4736a000.pdf


April 4, 2018Independent Taxpayer Oversight 

Committee

Agenda - Final

6.11 Measure T Financial Forecast (Antonio Onorato) (Pages 118-123)

Information only.  The ITOC will receive a Measure T Financial 

Forecast.

Recommendation:

5:00 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

6.12 Request for Proposals (RFP) 2018-01 Professional Audit Services 

(Antonio Onorato) (Pages 124-170)

The ITOC will review the draft RFP for professional audit services of 

the tax agency and approve the scope of work for its release to the 

public.  

Recommendation:

5:15 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

7. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

8. ADJOURNMENT

8.1 Approval of Next Regular Meeting of Date of July 11, 2018 at 2:00 

p.m. and Adjournment

5:30 p.m.Estimated Time:

Page 5 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 3/28/2018

I hereby certify that the agenda for the above stated meeting was posted at a location freely accessible 

to members of the public at the NVTA Offices, 625 Burnell Street, Napa, CA by 5:00 p.m. on Friday, 

March 31, 2018.

Karalyn E. Sanderlin (e-sign) March 28, 2018_______________________________________

Karalyn E. Sanderlin, NVTA-TA ITOC Secretary

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=04192817-9018-449a-a688-26931cbfe5b2.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=eadcc465-545c-48b8-89a2-c9a8891b797d.pdf


Glossary of Acronyms 

Latest Revision: 11/17 

AB 32 Global Warming Solutions Act 

ABAG Association of Bay Area Governments 

ADA American with Disabilities Act 

ATAC Active Transportation Advisory Committee 

ATP Active Transportation Program 

BAAQMD Bay Area Air Quality Management District 

BART Bay Area Rapid Transit District 

BATA Bay Area Toll Authority 

BRT Bus Rapid Transit 

CAC Citizen Advisory Committee 

CAP Climate Action Plan  

Caltrans California Department of Transportation 

CEQA California Environmental Quality Act 

CIP Capital Investment Program 

CMA Congestion Management Agency 

CMAQ Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality 
Improvement Program 

CMP Congestion Management Program 

CTP Countywide Transportation Plan  

COC Communities of Concern 

CTC California Transportation Commission 

DAA Design Alternative Analyst 

DBB Design-Bid-Build 

DBF Design-Build-Finance 

DBFOM Design-Build-Finance-Operate-Maintain 

DED Draft Environmental Document  

EIR Environmental Impact Report 

EJ Environmental Justice 

FAS Federal Aid Secondary  

FAST Fixing America’s Surface Transportation Act 

FHWA Federal Highway Administration 

FTA Federal Transit Administration 

FY Fiscal Year 

GHG Greenhouse Gas 

GTFS General Transit Feed Specification 

HBP Highway Bridge Program  

HBRR Highway Bridge Replacement and 
Rehabilitation Program  

HIP Housing Incentive Program 

HOT High Occupancy Toll 

HOV High Occupancy Vehicle 

HR3 High Risk Rural Roads  

HSIP Highway Safety Improvement Program 

HTF Highway Trust Fund  

IFB Invitation for Bid 

ITIP State Interregional Transportation 
Improvement Program 

IS/MND Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

JARC Job Access and Reverse Commute  

LIFT Low-Income Flexible Transportation 

LOS Level of Service 

LS&R Local Streets & Roads 

MAP 21 Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century
Act 

MPO Metropolitan Planning Organization 

MTC Metropolitan Transportation Commission 

MTS Metropolitan Transportation System 

ND Negative Declaration   

NEPA National Environmental Policy Act 

NOAH Natural Occurring Affordable Housing  

NOC Notice of Completion 

NOD Notice of Determination 

NOP Notice of Preparation 

NVTA Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

NVTA-TA Napa Valley Transportation Authority-Tax 
Agency 

OBAG One Bay Area Grant  

PA&ED Project Approval Environmental Document 

P3 or PPP Public-Private Partnership 

PCC Paratransit Coordination Council 

PCI Pavement Condition Index 

PCA Priority Conservation Area 

PDA Priority Development Areas 

PID Project Initiation Document  

PMS Pavement Management System  

6



Glossary of Acronyms 

Latest Revision: 11/17 

Prop. 42 Statewide Initiative that requires a portion of 
gasoline sales tax revenues be designated to 
transportation purposes 

PSE Plans, Specifications and Estimates 

PSR Project Study Report 

PTA Public Transportation Account  

RACC Regional Agency Coordinating Committee 

RFP Request for Proposal 

RFQ Request for Qualifications 

RHNA Regional Housing Needs Allocation  

RM2 Regional Measure 2 (Bridge Toll) 

ROW Right of Way  

RTEP Regional Transit Expansion Program 

RTIP Regional Transportation Improvement 
Program 

RTP Regional Transportation Plan 

SAFE Service Authority for Freeways and 
Expressways 

SAFETEA-LU Safe, Accountable, Flexible, and Efficient 
Transportation Equity Act-A Legacy for Users 

SB 375 Sustainable Communities and Climate 
Protection Act 2008 

SB 1 Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 

SCS Sustainable Community Strategy 

SHOPP State Highway Operation and Protection 
Program  

SNCI Solano Napa Commuter Information 

SNTDM Solano Napa Travel Demand Model  

SR State Route 

SRTS Safe Routes to School 

SOV Single-Occupant Vehicle 

STA State Transit Assistance 

STIC Small Transit Intensive Cities 

STIP State Transportation Improvement Program 

STP Surface Transportation Program 

TAC Technical Advisory Committee 

TCM Transportation Control Measure 

TCRP Traffic Congestion Relief Program 

TDA Transportation Development Act 

TDM Transportation Demand Management 

Transportation Demand Model 

TE Transportation Enhancement  

TEA Transportation Enhancement Activities 

TEA 21 Transportation Equity Act for the 21st Century

TFCA Transportation Fund for Clean Air 

TIGER Transportation Investments Generation 
Economic Recovery  

TIP Transportation Improvement Program 

TLC Transportation for Livable Communities 

TLU Transportation and Land Use 

TMP Traffic Management Plan 

TMS Transportation Management System 

TNC Transportation Network Companies 

TOAH Transit Oriented Affordable Housing  

TOD Transit-Oriented Development 

TOS Transportation Operations Systems 

TPA Transit Priority Area  

TPI Transit Performance Initiative 

TPP Transit Priority Project Areas 

VHD Vehicle Hours of Delay 

VMT Vehicle Miles Traveled 

7



April 4, 2018 
ITOC Agenda Item 6.1 
Continued From: New 

Action Requested: APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY-Tax Agency 
ITOC Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee 

FROM:  Kate Miller, Executive Director 

REPORT BY: Karrie Sanderlin, Program Manager-Administration and Human 
Resources 
(707) 259-8633 / Email: ksanderlin@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT:   Election of Chair and Vice Chair, and Member Terms of Office 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee (ITOC) elect and Chair and Vice 
Chair for 2018 per the ITOC By-Laws, and that members draw lots for initial term limits 
as mandated by the Measure T Ordinance. .  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The ITOC bylaws require an election of Chair and Vice Chair at the first organizational 
meeting.  The Measure T ordinance further requires that members draw lots to determine 
their term of office.  

PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 

1. Staff Report
2. Public Comment
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote

FISCAL IMPACT 

Is there a Fiscal Impact? No. 

8

mailto:ksanderlin@nvta.ca.gov


ITOC Agenda Letter    Wednesday, April 4, 2018 
Agenda Item 6.1 

Page 2 of 2 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

The ITOC bylaws, which were adopted by the NVTA-TA Board in January 2018, require 
an election of Chair and Vice Chair at the first organizational meeting and thereafter at 
the committee’s annual meeting.  In addition, to adhere to the Measure T Ordinance, the 
bylaws also require voting members to draw lots to determine their term of office: serving 
for either a two, three and four year term.  Thereafter, all members will serve a four-year 
term.  

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

None. 

9



April 4, 2018 
ITOC Agenda Item 6.2 
Continued From: New 

Action Requested: INFORMATION 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY-Tax Agency 
ITOC Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 

REPORT BY: Karrie Sanderlin, Program Manager-Administration and Human 
Resources 
(707) 259-8633 / Email: ksanderlin@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT:   Organizational Structure of the Napa Valley Transportation Authority- 
Tax Agency (NVTA-TA) and the Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

 (NVTA) 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee receive a review of the 
organizational structure of the NVTA-TA and NVTA. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

NVTA-TA’s responsibility is to administer Measure T and any other tax measure imposed 
by the agency.  There are only two staff members, the executive director and the board 
secretary.  Contract legal counsel also reports to the NVTA-TA board. 

NVTA serves as the congestion management agency and public transit provider for Napa 
Valley.  In that capacity, the agency administers plans, programs and projects that are 
both mandated by Federal, State, and Regional requirements as well as other activities 
that are intended to improve and manage transportation in Napa County.   

PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 

1. Staff Report
2. Public Comment

FISCAL IMPACT 

Is there a Fiscal Impact? No. 

10

mailto:ksanderlin@nvta.ca.gov


ITOC Agenda Letter                     Wednesday, April 4, 2018 
Agenda Item 6.2 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachments:  (1) NVTA-TA Organizational Chart 
      (2) NVTA-TA Standing Committee Relationship 
      (3) NVTA Organizational Chart 

11



Karrie Sanderlin 
Board Secretary 

Legal Counsel 

NVTA-TA Organizational Chart 

Kate Miller 
Executive Director 

NVTA-TA 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

ATTACHMENT 1
ITOC Agenda item 6.2

April 4, 2018

12



 

ATTACHMENT 2 
ITOC Agenda Item 6.2 

April 4, 2018 

 
 
 
 
 

NVTA-TA Standing Committees Relationship to Board 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ITOC 
Independent Taxpayer 
Oversight Committee 

NVTA-TA BOARD 

13



Approved: 7/19/2017 
Updated:   8/28/2017 
Updated: 10/23/2017 

Herb Fredricksen 
Program Manager 

Engineer 

Antonio Onorato 
Director,  

Administration, Finance, and Policy 

Renee Kulick 
Sr. Administrative Technician 

(Procurement & Contract 
Compliance ) & DBELO 

Matthew Wilcox 
Program Manager  

Public Transit 

Danielle Schmitz 
Director,  

Programs, Projects and Planning 

Karrie Sanderlin 
Program Manager 

Administration and 

Human Resources 

Kathy Alexander 
Administrative Technician 

(Office Coordinator) 

Justin Paniagua 
Senior Financial/    

Policy Analyst 

Capital Planning and Policy 

Shaveta Sharma 
Transportation Program 

Planner and Policy Analyst 

Alberto Esqueda 
Associate  Program Planner/ 

Administrator 

Diana Meehan 
Associate Program Planner/ 

Administrator 

Vicki Clayton 
Legal Counsel 

NVTA Organizational Chart 

Kate Miller 
Executive Director 

NVTA 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Rebecca Schenck 
Transportation Program 

Planner and Policy Analyst 

Vacant 
Marketing and Communications 

Specialist 

Cindy Westerberg 
Accounting Technician 

ATTACHMENT 3
ITOC Agenda Item 6.2

April 4, 2018

14



April 4, 2016 
ITOC Agenda Item 6.3 
Continued From: New 

Action Requested: INFORMATION 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
ITOC Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO: Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee (ITOC)  

FROM:  Kate Miller, Executive Director 

REPORT BY: Alberto Esqueda, Senior Program Planner/Administrator 
(707) 259-5976 | aesqueda@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Measure T Overview 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

Information only.  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

On November 6, 2012, the voters in Napa County approved Measure T, the Napa 
Countywide Road Maintenance Act.  Measure T is a ½% sales tax expected to generate 
roughly $400 million over a 25-year period beginning July 1, 2018, when the Measure A 
Flood Tax expires.  Measure T is to be used for the rehabilitation of local streets and 
roads.   

In order for jurisdictions to receive Measure T revenues, recipients collectively must 
demonstrate that at least 6.67% of the amount of Measure T revenues (here forth referred 
to as “Measure T Equivalent”) received each year is being allocated to Class I bike lane 
projects identified in the adopted Countywide Bicycle Plan/Active Transportation Plan, 
using eligible fund sources, other than Measure T. 

Jurisdictions eligible to receive Measure T revenues are also subject to the Maintenance 
of Effort (MOE) provision.  This provision establishes a minimum general funds 
expenditure threshold equal to the average amount a jurisdiction expended in Fiscal 
Years 2007-08, 2008-09, 2009-10 on local streets and roads maintenance and supporting 
infrastructure within the public right-of-way.  All agencies must submit their maintenance 
of effort amount and supporting documentation for FY 2007-08, 2008-09, 2009-10 to 
demonstrate MOE for those three fiscal years by before receiving any Measure T 
revenues.   

15

mailto:aesqueda@nvta.ca.gov


ITOC Agenda Letter                      Wednesday April 4, 2018 
Agenda Item 6.3 

Page 2 of 3 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a fiscal impact? No  
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
The Measure T Expenditure Plan tasks NVTA to develop an inventory of projects and to 
ensure adherence with certain compliance elements in the plan. Even though the 
revenues are not anticipated until July 2018, there are a number of requirements that 
have prompted staff to recommend moving forward with gathering data early in order to 
iron out issues and potential discrepancies.   
 
The Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee (ITOC) is required by Measure T to 
review the minimum maintenance of effort, and the five-year-year project list developed 
by NVTA in coordination with the jurisdictions.  The 5-year plan will include proposed 
projects for each jurisdiction funded by Measure T.   
 
To meet the maintenance of effort requirements, each jurisdiction will submit its FY 2007-
08, FY 2008-09, and FY 2009-10 by the time they submit their proposed five-year project 
list and related documents to validate expenditures. Jurisdictions that have included 
expenditures that are not deemed Measure T relevant should separately isolate and 
substantiate those expenditures for consideration from the NVTA and ITOC to remove 
them from calculations that establish that jurisdiction’s 3-year average. 
 
Jurisdictions’ Responsibilities: 
  

 Provide NVTA with the maintenance of effort for the years 2007-08, 2008-09, 
2009-10 with supporting documentation as noted above. 

 Provide the ITOC with the annual supporting documentation as noted above to 
meet the maintenance of effort requirement.  

 Biannually, submit to NVTA a 5-year project list.  

 Submit any updates to the 5-year project list, as needed.  

 Provide NVTA with expenditures in meeting the Class I multipurpose path goal.  A 
separate validation will be required.  

 Provide proof of project expenditures (e.g. invoice, etc. to be determined working 
with Finance staff as noted below).  

 

NVTA’s Responsibilities:  

 Develop the 5-year Measure T Project List 

 Validate MOE and Class 1 Multipurpose Path requirements (6.67% Measure T 
Equivalent). 

 Provide quarterly Measure T reports to the NVTA Board and ITOC.  

16



ITOC Agenda Letter                      Wednesday April 4, 2018 
Agenda Item 6.3 

Page 3 of 3 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 Provide recommendation of jurisdictions’ draft 5-year project lists to ITOC and the
NVTA Board.

 Seek approval from the NVTA Board and ITOC on 5-year list and allocations.

 Create allocation plan and allocate Measure T revenues.

 Coordinate meetings.

 In coordination with project auditor, validate project eligibility

Measure T Ordinance Revenue Distribution Formula: 

American Canyon 7.70% 

Calistoga 2.70% 

Napa 40.35% 

Napa County 39.65% 

St. Helena 5.90% 

Yountville 2.70% 

99.00% 

1% Admin 1.00% 

TOTAL 100.00% 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

None 

17



April 4, 2018 
ITOC Agenda Item 6.4 
Continued From: New 

Action Requested: INFORMATION 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
ITOC Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee 

FROM:    Kate Miller, Executive Director 

REPORT BY: Kate Miller – Executive Director 
(707) 259-8634| kmiller@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Overview of the ITOC’s Roles and Responsibilities 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

Information only   

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Measure T outlines the roles and responsibilities of the ITOC. The ITOC’s key role is to 
make a finding on the consistency of the jurisdictions’ proposed projects with those 
outlined in the Measure through a performance audit and to conduct an annual financial 
audit of the Authority in coordination with NVTA staff.  

ITOC is also subject to the Political Reform Act and requirements codified in Government 
Code Section 87200. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Is there a fiscal impact? No  

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

The NVTA Ordinance No. 2012-01 defines the roles and responsibilities of the ITOC, as 
follows: 

• Jointly recommend with the involvement of the Executive Director and Authority

Auditor an independent California Certified Public Accountant to conduct an annual

financial audit of the Authority

• Review the fiscal and program performance of the program through a biennial

performance audit

18

mailto:dschmitz@nvta.ca.gov


ITOC Agenda Letter                      Wednesday April 4, 2018 
Agenda Item 6.4 

Page 2 of 2 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

• Provide advice to the Authority on how to improve implementation; inclusive of 

feedback on the biennial project lists submitted by the Agencies 

• Oversee the financial audit of the Authority and performance audits of the Agencies 

(up to $70,000 per year will be apportioned for this effort and will be deducted from 

the amount of Measure T funds available to the jurisdictions) 

ITOC voting members cannot have any pending legal action against the Authority and 
cannot engage in commercial activity directly or indirectly involving the Authority.   
 
All ITOC members are subject to the Political Reform Act administered by the Fair Political 
Practices Commission (FPPC) and codified in California Government Code Section 
87200.  To remain in compliance with the Political Reform Act, each member must 
complete a Form 700 (Attachment 1) when they begin their term, end their term, and 
annually for the duration of each member’s term.  Additional information about the Political 
Reform Act and the FPPC can be found at: http://www.fppc.ca.gov/ 
 
ITOC voting members are also eligible to receive $250 per quarterly meeting.  This 
amount increases by $50 every five years.  ITOC voting members are required to attend 
meetings for a minimum of three-quarters of the meetings in order to receive 
compensation (Attachment 2).  Those members interested in receiving remuneration 
must also complete a W-9 form (Attachment 3).  ITOC members may elect to waive their 
meeting fee. 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachment(s): (1) FPPC Statement of Economic Interests Form 700  

(2) ITOC Meeting Attendance and Fee Request/Waiver Form 
(3) W-9 Form  

19

http://www.fppc.ca.gov/


December 2017

2017/2018
Statement of
Economic Interests

Form 700

California Fair Political Practices Commission
Email Advice: advice@fppc.ca.gov
Toll-free advice line: 1 (866) ASK-FPPC • 1 (866) 275-3772
Telephone: (916)322-5660 • Website: www.fppc.ca.gov

A Public Document

Also available on the FPPC website:
• Form	700	in	Excel	format
• Reference Pamphlet for Form 700

ATTACHMENT 1
ITOC Agenda Item 6.4

April 4, 2018

20



What’s New
Gift Limit Increase
The gift limit increased to $470 for calendar years 2017 
and 2018. The gift limit during 2016 was $460.

Who must file:
•	 Elected	and	appointed	officials	and	candidates	listed	in	

Government Code Section 87200
•	 Employees,	appointed	officials,	and	consultants	filing	

pursuant	to	a	conflict	of	interest	code	(“code	filers”).	 
Obtain your disclosure categories, which describe 
the interests you must report, from your agency; 
they are not part of the Form 700

•	 Candidates	running	for	local	elective	offices	that	are	
designated	in	a	conflict	of	interest	code	(e.g.,	county	
sheriffs, city clerks, school board trustees, and water 
board	members)

Exception:  Candidates for a county central committee are 
not	required	to	file	the	Form	700.
•	 Members of newly created boards and commissions not 

yet	covered	under	a	conflict	of	interest	code	
•	 Employees in newly created positions of existing 

agencies

See Reference Pamphlet, page 3, at www.fppc.ca.gov. 

Where to file:
87200 Filers

State	offices	 	 Your agency
Judicial	offices	 	 The clerk of your court
Retired Judges 	 Directly with FPPC
County	offices	 	 Your	county	filing	official
City	offices	 	 Your city clerk
Multi-County	offices	 	 Your agency

Code Filers — State and Local Officials, Employees, 
and Consultants Designated in a Conflict of Interest 
Code:  File with your agency, board, or commission unless 
otherwise	specified	in	your	agency’s	code	(e.g.,	Legislative	
staff	files	directly	with	FPPC).		In	most	cases,	the	agency,	
board, or commission will retain the statements.

Members of Boards and Commissions of Newly 
Created Agencies:  File with your newly created agency 
or	with	your	agency’s	code	reviewing	body.

Employees in Newly Created Positions of Existing 
Agencies:		File	with	your	agency	or	with	your	agency’s	
code reviewing body.  See Reference Pamphlet, page 3.

Candidates:		File	with	your	local	elections	office.

How to file:
The Form 700 is available at www.fppc.ca.gov.  Form 
700 schedules are also available in Excel format.  All 
statements	must	have	an	original	“wet”	signature	or	be	
duly	authorized	by	your	filing	officer	to	file	electronically	
under	Government	Code	Section	87500.2.		Instructions,	
examples, FAQs, and a reference pamphlet are available 
to help answer your questions.

When to file:
Annual Statements

  March 1, 2018
 - Elected	State	Officers
 - Judges and Court Commissioners
 - State Board and State Commission Members listed 

in Government Code Section 87200
  April 2, 2018

 - Most	other	filers
Individuals	filing	under	conflict	of	interest	codes	in	city	and	
county	jurisdictions	should	verify	the	annual	filing	date	with	
their	local	filing	officers.

Statements	postmarked	by	the	filing	deadline	are	
considered	filed	on	time.

Assuming Office and Leaving Office Statements
Most	filers	file	within	30	days	of	assuming	or	leaving	office	
or within 30 days of the effective date of a newly adopted 
or	amended	conflict	of	interest	code.

Exception:

If	you	assumed	office	between	October	1, 2017, and 
December 31, 2017,	and	filed	an	assuming	office	statement,	
you	are	not	required	to	file	an	annual	statement	until	March	
1, 2019, or April 1, 2019, whichever is applicable.  The 
annual	statement	will	cover	the	day	after	you	assumed	office	
through December 31, 2018.  See Reference Pamphlet, 
pages 6 and 7, for additional exceptions.

Candidate Statements
File	no	later	than	the	final	filing	date	for	the	declaration	of	
candidacy or nomination documents.

Amendments
Statements may be amended at any time.  You are only 
required to amend the schedule that needs to be revised.  
It	is	not	necessary	to	amend	the	entire	filed	form.		Obtain	
amendment schedules at www.fppc.ca.gov.

There is no provision for filing deadline extensions 
unless the filer is serving in active military duty. 
Statements of 30 pages or less may be faxed by the 
deadline as long as the originally signed paper version is 
sent	by	first	class	mail	to	the	filing	official	within	24	hours.

21



Introduction

The	Political	Reform	Act	(Gov.	Code	Sections	81000-
91014)	requires	most	state	and	local	government	officials	
and employees to publicly disclose their personal assets 
and income.  They also must disqualify themselves 
from participating in decisions that may affect their 
personal economic interests.  The Fair Political Practices 
Commission	(FPPC)	is	the	state	agency	responsible	for	
issuing	the	attached	Statement	of	Economic	Interests,	
Form	700,	and	for	interpreting	the	law’s	provisions.

Gift Prohibition
Gifts	received	by	most	state	and	local	officials,	employees,	
and candidates are subject to a limit.  During 2017 and 
2018, the gift limit is $470 from a single source during a 
calendar year. 
 
In	addition,	state	officials,	state	candidates,	and	certain	
state employees are subject to a $10 limit per calendar 
month	on	gifts	from	lobbyists	and	lobbying	firms	registered	
with the Secretary of State.  See Reference Pamphlet, 
page 10.

State	and	local	officials	and	employees	should	check	with	
their agency to determine if other restrictions apply.

Disqualification
Public	officials	are,	under	certain	circumstances,	required	
to disqualify themselves from making, participating in, or 
attempting	to	influence	governmental	decisions	that	will	
affect their economic interests.  This may include interests 
they	are	not	required	to	disclose	(i.e.,	a	personal	residence	
is	often	not	reportable,	but	may	be	disqualifying).		Specific	
disqualification	requirements	apply	to	87200	filers	(e.g.,	
city councilmembers, members of boards of supervisors, 
planning	commissioners,	etc.).		These	officials	must	
publicly identify the economic interest that creates a 
conflict	of	interest	and	leave	the	room	before	a	discussion	
or vote takes place at a public meeting.  For more 
information, consult Government Code Section 87105, 
Regulation	18707,	and	the	Guide	to	Recognizing	Conflicts	
of	Interest	at	www.fppc.ca.gov.

Honorarium Ban
Most	state	and	local	officials,	employees,	and	candidates	
are prohibited from accepting an honorarium for any 
speech given, article published, or attendance at a 
conference, convention, meeting, or like gathering.  See 
Reference Pamphlet, page 10.

Loan Restrictions
Certain	state	and	local	officials	are	subject	to	restrictions	
on loans.  See Reference Pamphlet, page 14.

Post-Governmental Employment
There are restrictions on representing clients or employers 
before former agencies.  The provisions apply to elected 
state	officials,	most	state	employees,	local	elected	officials,	
county	chief	administrative	officers,	city	managers,	
including the chief administrator of a city, and general 
managers or chief administrators of local special districts 
and JPAs.  The FPPC website has fact sheets explaining 
the provisions.

Late Filing
The	filing	officer	who	retains	originally-signed	or	
electronically	filed	statements	of	economic	interests	may	
impose	on	an	individual	a	fine	for	any	statement	that	is	filed	
late.		The	fine	is	$10	per	day	up	to	a	maximum	of	$100.		
Late	filing	penalties	may	be	reduced	or	waived	under	certain	
circumstances.

Persons	who	fail	to	timely	file	their	Form	700	may	be	
referred	to	the	FPPC’s	Enforcement	Division	(and,	in	some	
cases,	to	the	Attorney	General	or	district	attorney)	for	
investigation	and	possible	prosecution.		In	addition	to	the	
late	filing	penalties,	a	fine	of	up	to	$5,000	per	violation	may	
be imposed.

For assistance concerning reporting, prohibitions, and 
restrictions under the Act:

•	 Email questions to advice@fppc.ca.gov.
•	 Call	the	FPPC	toll-free	at	(866)	275-3772.

FPPC Form 700 (2017/2018)
FPPC Advice Email: advice@fppc.ca.gov

FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/275-3772 www.fppc.ca.gov
Introduction

Form 700 is a Public Document
Public Access Must Be Provided

Statements	of	Economic	Interests	are	public	
documents.		The	filing	officer	must	permit	any	
member of the public to inspect and receive a copy 
of any statement.

•	 Statements must be available as soon as possible 
during the agency's regular business hours, but 
in any event not later than the second business 
day after the statement is received.  Access to the 
Form 700 is not subject to the Public Records Act 
procedures.

•	 No conditions may be placed on persons seeking 
access to the forms.

•	 No	information	or	identification	may	be	required	
from persons seeking access.

•	 Reproduction fees of no more than 10 cents per 
page may be charged.

22



Types of Form 700 Filings

Assuming Office Statement: 
If	you	are	a	newly	appointed	official	or	are	newly	employed	
in a position designated, or that will be designated, in 
a	state	or	local	agency’s	conflict	of	interest	code,	your	
assuming	office	date	is	the	date	you	were	sworn	in	or	
otherwise	authorized	to	serve	in	the	position.		If	you	are	a	
newly	elected	official,	your	assuming	office	date	is	the	date	
you were sworn in.

•	 Investments,	interests	in	real	property,	and	business	
positions	held	on	the	date	you	assumed	the	office	
or	position	must	be	reported.		In	addition,	income	
(including	loans,	gifts,	and	travel	payments)	received	
during the 12 months prior to the date you assumed the 
office	or	position	is	reportable.

For	positions	subject	to	confirmation	by	the	State	Senate	
or the Commission on Judicial Performance, your 
assuming	office	date	is	the	date	you	were	appointed	or	
nominated to the position.

Example:
Maria	Lopez	was	nominated	by	the	Governor	to	serve	
on a state agency board that is subject to state Senate 
confirmation.		The	assuming	office	date	is	the	date	Maria’s	
nomination is submitted to the Senate.  Maria must report 
investments, interests in real property, and business 
positions	she	holds	on	that	date,	and	income	(including	
loans,	gifts,	and	travel	payments)	received	during	the	12	
months prior to that date.

If	your	office	or	position	has	been	added	to	a	newly	
adopted	or	newly	amended	conflict	of	interest	code,	use	
the effective date of the code or amendment, whichever is 
applicable.

•	 Investments,	interests	in	real	property,	and	business	
positions held on the effective date of the code or 
amendment	must	be	reported.		In	addition,	income	
(including	loans,	gifts,	and	travel	payments)	received	
during the 12 months prior to the effective date of the 
code or amendment is reportable.

Annual Statement: 
Generally, the period covered is January 1, 2017, 
through December 31, 2017.		If	the	period	covered	by	
the statement is different than January 1, 2017, through 
December 31, 2017,	(for	example,	you	assumed	office	
between October 1, 2016, and December 31, 2016 or you 
are	combining	statements),	you	must	specify	the	period	
covered.

•	 Investments,	interests	in	real	property,	business	
positions	held,	and	income	(including	loans,	gifts,	and	
travel	payments)	received	during	the	period	covered	
by the statement must be reported.  Do not change the 
preprinted dates on Schedules A-1, A-2, and B unless 
you are required to report the acquisition or disposition 
of an interest that did not occur in 2017.

•	 If	your	disclosure	category	changes	during	a	reporting	
period, disclose under the old category until the 
effective	date	of	the	conflict	of	interest	code	amendment	
and disclose under the new disclosure category through 
the end of the reporting period.

Leaving Office Statement: 
Generally, the period covered is January 1, 2017, 
through the date you stopped performing the duties of 
your	position.		If	the	period	covered	differs	from	January	
1, 2017, through the date you stopped performing the 
duties	of	your	position	(for	example,	you	assumed	office	
between October 1, 2016, and December 31, 2016, or 
you	are	combining	statements),	the	period	covered	must	
be	specified.		The	reporting	period	can	cover	parts	of	two	
calendar years.

•	 Investments,	interests	in	real	property,	business	
positions	held,	and	income	(including	loans,	gifts,	and	
travel	payments)	received	during	the	period	covered	
by the statement must be reported.  Do not change the 
preprinted dates on Schedules A-1, A-2, and B unless 
you are required to report the acquisition or disposition 
of an interest that did not occur in 2017.

Candidate Statement: 
If	you	are	filing	a	statement	in	connection	with	your	
candidacy	for	state	or	local	office,	investments,	interests	
in real property, and business positions held on the date 
of	filing	your	declaration	of	candidacy	must	be	reported.		
In	addition,	income	(including	loans,	gifts,	and	travel	
payments)	received	during	the	12	months	prior to the date 
of	filing	your	declaration	of	candidacy	is	reportable.		Do	not	
change the preprinted dates on Schedules A-1, A-2, and B.

Candidates running for local elective offices	(e.g.,	county 
sheriffs, city clerks, school board trustees, or water 
district	board	members)	must	file	candidate	statements,	
as	required	by	the	conflict	of	interest	code	for	the	elected	
position.  The code may be obtained from the agency of 
the elected position.

Amendments: 
If	you	discover	errors	or	omissions	on	any	statement,	file	
an amendment as soon as possible.  You are only required 
to amend the schedule that needs to be revised; it is not 
necessary	to	refile	the	entire	form.		Obtain	amendment	
schedules from the FPPC website at www.fppc.ca.gov.

FPPC Form 700 (2017/2018)
FPPC Advice Email: advice@fppc.ca.gov

FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/275-3772 www.fppc.ca.gov
Types of Statements

23



Instructions
Cover Page

Enter your name, mailing address, and daytime telephone 
number in the spaces provided.  Because the Form 700 is 
a public document, you may list your business/office 
address instead of your home address.

Part 1.  Office, Agency, or Court
•	 Enter	the	name	of	the	office	sought	or	held,	or	the	agency	

or court.  Consultants must enter the public agency name 
rather	than	their	private	firm’s	name.		(Examples:	State	
Assembly;	Board	of	Supervisors;	Office	of	the	Mayor;	
Department	of	Finance;	Hope	County	Superior	Court)

•	 Indicate	the	name	of	your	division,	board,	or	district,	if	
applicable.		(Examples:		Division	of	Waste	Management;	
Board	of	Accountancy;	District	45).		Do not use acronyms.

•	 Enter	your	position	title.		(Examples:		Director;	Chief	
Counsel;	City	Council	Member;	Staff	Services	Analyst)

•	 If	you	hold	multiple	positions	(i.e.,	a	city	council	member	
who	also	is	a	member	of	a	county	board	or	commission),	
you	may	be	required	to	file	statements	with	each	agency.		
To	simplify	your	filing	obligations,	you	may	complete	an	
expanded statement.

•	 To	do	this,	enter	the	name	of	the	other	agency(ies)	with	
which	you	are	required	to	file	and	your	position	title(s)	in	
the space provided.  Do not use acronyms.  Attach an 
additional sheet if necessary.  Complete one statement 
covering the disclosure requirements for all positions.  
Each copy must contain an original signature.  Therefore, 
before signing the statement, make a copy for each 
agency.		Sign	each	copy	with	an	original	signature	and	file	
with each agency.

If	you	assume	or	leave	a	position	after	a	filing	deadline,	
you must complete a separate statement.  For example, a 
city council member who assumes a position with a county 
special	district	after	the	April	1	annual	filing	deadline	must	file	
a	separate	assuming	office	statement.		In	subsequent	years,	
the	city	council	member	may	expand	his	or	her	annual	filing	to	
include both positions.

Example:
Scott	Baker	is	a	city	council	member	for	the	City	of	Lincoln	
and	a	board	member	for	the	Camp	Far	West	Irrigation	
District – a multi-county agency that covers Placer and 
Yuba counties.  Scott will complete one Form 700 using full 
disclosure	(as	required	for	the	city	position)	and	covering	
interests	in	both	Placer	and	Yuba	counties	(as	required	for	
the	multi-county	position)	and	list	both	positions	on	the	Cover	
Page.  Before signing the statement, Scott will make a copy 
and	sign	both	statements.		One	statement	will	be	filed	with	
City	of	Lincoln	and	the	other	will	be	filed	with	Camp	Far	West	
Irrigation	District.		Both	will	contain	an	original	signature.

Part 2.  Jurisdiction of Office
•	 Check the box indicating the jurisdiction of your agency 

and, if applicable, identify the jurisdiction. Judges, judicial 
candidates, and court commissioners have statewide 
jurisdiction.		All	other	filers	should	review	the	Reference	
Pamphlet, page 13, to determine their jurisdiction.

•	 If	your	agency	is	a	multi-county	office,	list	each	county	in	
which your agency has jurisdiction.

•	 If	your	agency	is	not	a	state	office,	court,	county	office,	city	
office,	or	multi-county	office	(e.g.,	school	districts,	special	
districts	and	JPAs),	check	the	“other”	box	and	enter	the	
county or city in which the agency has jurisdiction.

Example: 
This	filer	is	a	member	of	a	water	district	board	with	jurisdiction	
in portions of Yuba and Sutter Counties.

Part 3.  Type of Statement
Check at least one box. The period covered by a statement 
is	determined	by	the	type	of	statement	you	are	filing.		If	you	
are completing a 2017 annual statement, do not change the 
pre-printed	dates	to	reflect	2018.  Your annual statement is 
used for reporting the previous year’s economic interests.  
Economic	interests	for	your	annual	filing	covering	January 1, 
2018, through December 31, 2018, will be disclosed on your 
statement	filed	in	2019.  See Reference Pamphlet, page 4.

Combining Statements: Certain types of statements may be 
combined.		For	example,	if	you	leave	office	after	January	1,	
but	before	the	deadline	for	filing	your	annual	statement,	you	
may	combine	your	annual	and	leaving	office	statements.		File	
by	the	earliest	deadline.		Consult	your	filing	officer	or	the	
FPPC.

Part 4.  Schedule Summary
•	 Complete the Schedule Summary after you have reviewed 

each schedule to determine if you have reportable 
interests.

•	 Enter the total number of completed pages including the 
cover page and either check the box for each schedule you 
use to disclose interests; or  if you have nothing to disclose 
on	any	schedule,	check	the	“No	reportable	interests”	box.		 
Please do not attach any blank schedules. 

Part 5.  Verification
Complete	the	verification	by	signing	the	statement	and	
entering the date signed.  All statements must have an original 
“wet”	signature	or	be	duly	authorized	by	your	filing	officer	to	
file	electronically	under	Government	Code	Section	87500.2.		
Instructions,	examples,	FAQs,	and	a	reference	pamphlet	are	
available to help answer your questions.  When you sign 
your statement, you are stating, under penalty of perjury, 
that it is true and correct.		Only	the	filer	has	authority	to	sign	
the	statement.		An	unsigned	statement	is	not	considered	filed	
and	you	may	be	subject	to	late	filing	penalties.		

FPPC Form 700 (2017/2018)
FPPC Advice Email: advice@fppc.ca.gov

FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/275-3772 www.fppc.ca.gov
Instructions – 1

 State  Judge or Court Commissioner (Statewide Jurisdiction)

 Multi-County   County of 

 City of   Other 

2.	 Jurisdiction	of	Office	 (Check at least one box)

Agency Name  (Do not use acronyms) 

Division, board, Department, District, if applicable Your Position

1.	Office,	Agency,	or	Court

► If filing for multiple positions, list below or on an attachment.  (Do not use acronyms)

Agency:  Position: 

x Yuba & Sutter Counties

Board MemberN/A

N/A

Feather River Irrigation District

24



 Leaving	Office: Date Left / /
 (Check one)

  The period covered is January 1, 2017, through the date of 
leaving office.

  The period covered is / / , through 
the date of leaving office.

 Annual: The period covered is January 1, 2017, through 
  December 31, 2017.

       The period covered is / / , through 
December 31, 2017.

StAtement	Of	eCOnOmiC	 intereStS

COver	PAge

FPPC Form 700 (2017/2018)
FPPC Advice Email: advice@fppc.ca.gov

FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/275-3772 www.fppc.ca.gov

I have used all reasonable diligence in preparing this statement.  I have reviewed this statement and to the best of my knowledge the information contained 
herein and in any attached schedules is true and complete.  I acknowledge this is a public document.

i	certify	under	penalty	of	perjury	under	 the	 laws	of	 the	State	of	California	 that	 the	 foregoing	 is	 true	and	correct.

Date	Signed	
 (month, day, year)

3.	 type	of	Statement	 (Check at least one box)

 State  Judge or Court Commissioner (Statewide Jurisdiction)

 Multi-County   County of 

 City of   Other 

2.	 Jurisdiction	of	Office	 (Check at least one box)

 Candidate: Date of Election     and office sought, if different than Part 1: 

 Assuming	Office: Date assumed / /

Date	 Initial	Filing	Received
Official Use Only

Please type or print in ink.

700
FAIr POLITICAL PrACTICES COMMISSION

CALIFORNIA FORM

Agency Name  (Do not use acronyms) 

Division, board, Department, District, if applicable Your Position

1.	Office,	Agency,	or	Court

nAme	Of	fiLer		 	 	 (LASt)	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 (firSt)	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 (miDDLe)

MAiLiNg ADDrESS STrEET CiTY STATE ZiP CODE

(	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 )
DAYTiME TELEPhONE NuMbEr E-MAiL ADDrESS

(Business or Agency Address Recommended - Public Document)

Signature	
 (File the originally signed statement with your filing official.)

5.	verification

A PuBLIC DOCuMENT

► If filing for multiple positions, list below or on an attachment.  (Do not use acronyms)

Agency:  Position: 

-or-

-or-

  None - No reportable interests on any schedule

4.	 Schedule	Summary	(must	complete)
Schedules attached  

         Schedule	A-1	 - Investments – schedule attached
         Schedule	A-2	 - Investments – schedule attached
         Schedule	B	- Real Property – schedule attached

► Total number of pages including this cover page: 

-or-

    Schedule	C	- Income, Loans, & Business Positions – schedule attached
    Schedule	D	- Income – Gifts – schedule attached
    Schedule	e	 - Income – Gifts – Travel Payments – schedule attached

25



Which Schedule Do I use?

FPPC Form 700 (2017/2018)
FPPC Advice Email: advice@fppc.ca.gov

FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/275-3772 www.fppc.ca.gov
Instructions - 3

Common reportable Interests
Schedule A-1 Stocks, including	those	held	in	an	IRA	or	a	401K

Schedule A-2 Business entities (including	certain	independent	contracting),	sole	proprietorships, 
partnerships,	LLCs,	corporations,	and	trusts 

Schedule B Rental property in the jurisdiction, or within two miles of the boundaries of the 
jurisdiction

Schedule C Non-governmental	salaries	of	public	official	and	spouse/registered	domestic	partner

Schedule D Gifts from businesses (such	as	tickets	to	sporting	or	entertainment	events)

Schedule E Travel	payments	from	third	parties	(not	your	employer)

Common Non-reportable Interests
Schedule A-1 Insurance	policies,	government	bonds,	diversified	mutual	funds,	certain	funds	similar	

to	diversified	mutual	funds	(such	as	exchange	traded	funds)	and	investments	held	
in certain retirement accounts.  See Reference Pamphlet, page 13, for detailed 
information.		(Regulation	18237)

Schedule A-2 Savings and checking accounts and annuities

Schedule B A	residence	used	exclusively	as	a	personal	residence	(such	as	a	home or vacation 
cabin)

Schedule C Governmental	salary	(such	as	a	school	district)

Schedule D Gifts from family members

Schedule E Travel paid by your government agency

remember:

 9 Mark	the	“No	reportable	interests”	box	on	Part	4	of	the	Schedule Summary on the Cover Page 
if	you	determine	you	have	nothing	to	disclose	and	file	the	Cover	Page	only.	 Make sure you 
carefully read all instructions to ensure proper reporting.

 9 The Form 700 is a public document.

 9 Most individuals must consult their agency’s conflict of interest code for reportable 
interests.

 9 Most	individuals	file	the	Form	700	with	their	agencies.

26



Questions and Answers

General
Q.	What	is	the	reporting	period	for	disclosing	interests	

on	an	assuming	office	statement	or	a	candidate	
statement?

A.	 On	an	assuming	office	statement,	disclose	all	
reportable investments, interests in real property, and 
business positions held on the date you assumed 
office.		In	addition,	you	must	disclose	income	(including	
loans,	gifts	and	travel	payments)	received	during	the	12	
months	prior	to	the	date	you	assumed	office.

 On a candidate statement, disclose all reportable 
investments, interests in real property, and business 
positions	held	on	the	date	you	file	your	declaration	of	
candidacy.		You	must	also	disclose	income	(including	
loans,	gifts	and	travel	payments)	received	during	the	
12	months	prior	to	the	date	you	file	your	declaration	of	
candidacy.

Q.	I	hold	two	other	board	positions	in	addition	to	my	
position	with	the	county.		Must	I	file	three	statements	of	
economic interests?

A. Yes, three are required.  However, you may complete 
one statement listing the county and the two boards on 
the Cover Page or an attachment as the agencies for 
which	you	will	be	filing.		Report	your	economic	interests	
using the largest jurisdiction and highest disclosure 
requirements assigned to you by the three agencies.  
Make two copies of the entire statement before 
signing it, sign each copy with an original signature, 
and distribute one original to the county and to each 
of the two boards.  Remember to complete separate 
statements for positions that you leave or assume 
during the year. 

Q.	I	am	a	department	head	who	recently	began	acting	as	
city	manager.		Should	I	file	as	the	city	manager?

A.	 Yes.		File	an	assuming	office	statement	as	city	
manager.		Persons	serving	as	“acting,”	“interim,”	or	
“alternate”	must	file	as	if	they	hold	the	position	because	
they are or may be performing the duties of the 
position.

Q.	As	a	designated	employee,	I	left	one	state	agency	to	
work	for	another	state	agency.		Must	I	file	a	leaving	
office	statement?

A.	 Yes.		You	may	also	need	to	file	an	assuming	office	
statement for the new agency.

Q.	My	spouse	and	I	are	currently	separated	and	in	the	
process	of	obtaining	a	divorce.		Must	I	still	report	my	
spouse’s	income,	investments,	and	interests	in	real	
property?

A.	 Yes.		A	public	official	must	continue	to	report	a	spouse’s	
economic interests until such time as dissolution of 
marriage	proceedings	is	final.		However,	if	a	separate	
property agreement has been reached prior to that 
time,	your	estranged	spouse’s	income	may	not	have	to	
be reported.  Contact the FPPC for more information.

Investment Disclosure
Q.	I	have	an	investment	interest	in	shares	of	stock	in	a	

company	that	does	not	have	an	office	in	my	jurisdiction.		
Must	I	still	disclose	my	investment	interest	in	this	
company?

A.	 Probably.		The	definition	of	“doing	business	in	the	
jurisdiction”	is	not	limited	to	whether	the	business	has	
an	office	or	physical	location	in	your	jurisdiction.		See	
Reference Pamphlet, page 13.

Q.	My	spouse	and	I	have	a	living	trust.		The	trust	holds	
rental property in my jurisdiction, our primary residence, 
and	investments	in	diversified	mutual	funds.		I	have	full	
disclosure.  How is this trust disclosed?

A. Disclose the name of the trust, the rental property and 
its income on Schedule A-2.  Your primary residence 
and	investments	in	diversified	mutual	funds	registered	
with the SEC are not reportable. 

Q.	I	am	required	to	report	all	investments.		I	have	an	IRA	
that contains stocks through an account managed by 
a	brokerage	firm.		Must	I	disclose	these	stocks	even	
though	they	are	held	in	an	IRA	and	I	did	not	decide	
which stocks to purchase?

A. Yes. Disclose on Schedule A-1 or A-2 any stock worth 
$2,000 or more in a business entity located in or doing 
business in your jurisdiction.

FPPC Form 700 (2017/2018)
FPPC Advice Email: advice@fppc.ca.gov

FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/275-3772 www.fppc.ca.gov
Instructions – 4

27



Questions and Answers
Continued

Q.	I	am	the	sole	owner	of	my	business,	an	S-Corporation.		
I	believe	that	the	nature	of	the	business	is	such	that	it	
cannot	be	said	to	have	any	“fair	market	value”	because	
it	has	no	assets.		I	operate	the	corporation	under	
an agreement with a large insurance company.  My 
contract does not have resale value because of its 
nature	as	a	personal	services	contract.		Must	I	report	
the fair market value for my business on Schedule A-2 
of the Form 700?  

A. Yes.  Even if there are no tangible assets, intangible 
assets, such as relationships with companies and 
clients	are	commonly	sold	to	qualified	professionals.		
The	“fair	market	value”	is	often	quantified	for	other	
purposes, such as marital dissolutions or estate 
planning.		In	addition,	the	IRS	presumes	that	“personal	
services	corporations”	have	a	fair	market	value.		A	
professional	“book	of	business”	and	the	associated	
goodwill that generates income are not without a 
determinable value.  The Form 700 does not require a 
precise fair market value; it is only necessary to check 
a box indicating the broad range within which the value 
falls.  

Q.	I	own	stock	in	IBM	and	must	report	this	investment	
on	Schedule	A-1.		I	initially	purchased	this	stock	in	
the	early	1990s;	however,	I	am	constantly	buying	
and	selling	shares.		Must	I	note	these	dates	in	the	
“Acquired”	and	“Disposed”	fields?

A.	 No.		You	must	only	report	dates	in	the	“Acquired”	or	
“Disposed”	fields	when,	during	the	reporting	period,	you	
initially purchase a reportable investment worth $2,000 
or more or when you dispose of the entire investment.  
You are not required to track the partial trading of an 
investment. 

Q.	On	last	year’s	filing	I	reported	stock	in	Encoe	valued	at	
$2,000	-	$10,000.		Late	last	year	the	value	of	this	stock	
fell below and remains at less than $2,000.  How should 
this	be	reported	on	this	year’s	statement?

A. You are not required to report an investment if the value 
was less than $2,000 during the entire reporting period.  
However, because a disposed date is not required for 
stocks that fall below $2,000, you may want to report 
the	stock	and	note	in	the	“comments”	section	that	the	
value fell below $2,000.  This would be for informational 
purposes only; it is not a requirement.

Q.	We	have	a	Section	529	account	set	up	to	save	money	
for	our	son’s	college	education.		Is	this	reportable?

A.	 If	the	Section	529	account	contains	reportable	interests	
(e.g.,	common	stock	valued	at	$2,000	or	more),	those	
interests	are	reportable	(not	the	actual	Section	529	
account).	If	the	account	contains	solely	mutual	funds,	
then nothing is reported.

Income Disclosure
Q.	I	reported	a	business	entity	on	Schedule	A-2.		Clients	of	

my	business	are	located	in	several	states.		Must	I	report	
all clients from whom my pro rata share of income is 
$10,000 or more on Schedule A-2, Part 3?

A. No, only the clients located in or doing business on a 
regular basis in your jurisdiction must be disclosed.

Q.	I	believe	I	am	not	required	to	disclose	the	names	of	
clients from whom my pro rata share of income is 
$10,000 or more on Schedule A-2 because of their right 
to	privacy.		Is	there	an	exception	for	reporting	clients’	
names?

A. Regulation 18740 provides a procedure for requesting 
an	exemption	to	allow	a	client’s	name	not	to	be	
disclosed if disclosure of the name would violate a 
legally recognized privilege under California or Federal 
law.  This regulation may be obtained from our website 
at www.fppc.ca.gov.  See Reference Pamphlet, page 
14.

Q.	I	am	sole	owner	of	a	private	law	practice	that	is	not	
reportable based on my limited disclosure category.  
However, some of the sources of income to my law 
practice	are	from	reportable	sources.		Do	I	have	to	
disclose this income?

A. Yes, even though the law practice is not reportable, 
reportable sources of income to the law practice of 
$10,000 or more must be disclosed.  This information 
would be disclosed on Schedule C with a note in the 
“comments”	section	indicating	that	the	business	entity	
is not a reportable investment.  The note would be for 
informational purposes only; it is not a requirement.

FPPC Form 700 (2017/2018)
FPPC Advice Email: advice@fppc.ca.gov

FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/275-3772 www.fppc.ca.gov
Instructions – 5

28



Questions and Answers
Continued

Q.	I	am	the	sole	owner	of	my	business.		Where	do	I	
disclose my income - on Schedule A-2 or Schedule C?

A. Sources of income to a business in which you have an 
ownership interest of 10% or greater are disclosed on 
Schedule A-2.  See Reference Pamphlet, page 8, for 
the	definition	of	“business	entity.”

Q.	My	husband	is	a	partner	in	a	four-person	firm	where	
all of his business is based on his own billings and 
collections	from	various	clients.		How	do	I	report	my	
community property interest in this business and the 
income generated in this manner?

A.	 If	your	husband’s	investment	in	the	firm	is	10%	or	
greater, disclose 100% of his share of the business 
on Schedule A-2, Part 1 and 50% of his income on 
Schedule A-2, Parts 2 and 3.  For example, a client of 
your	husband’s	must	be	a	source	of	at	least	$20,000	
during	the	reporting	period	before	the	client’s	name	is	
reported.

Q.	How	do	I	disclose	my	spouse’s	or	registered	domestic	
partner’s	salary?

A. Report the name of the employer as a source of income 
on Schedule C.

Q.	I	am	a	doctor.		For	purposes	of	reporting	$10,000	
sources of income on Schedule A-2, Part 3, are the 
patients or their insurance carriers considered sources 
of income?

A.	 If	your	patients	exercise	sufficient	control	by	selecting	
you instead of other doctors, then your patients, rather 
than their insurance carriers, are sources of income to 
you.  See Reference Pamphlet, page 14, for additional 
information.

Q.	I	received	a	loan	from	my	grandfather	to	purchase	my	
home.		Is	this	loan	reportable?

A.	 No.		Loans	received	from	family	members	are	not	
reportable.

Q.	Many	years	ago,	I	loaned	my	parents	several	thousand	
dollars,	which	they	paid	back	this	year.		Do	I	need	to	
report this loan repayment on my Form 700?

A. No.  Payments received on a loan made to a family 
member are not reportable.

FPPC Form 700 (2017/2018) 
FPPC Advice Email: advice@fppc.ca.gov

FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/275-3772 www.fppc.ca.gov
Instructions – 6

real Property Disclosure
Q. During this reporting period we switched our principal 

place	of	residence	into	a	rental.		I	have	full	disclosure	
and	the	property	is	located	in	my	agency’s	jurisdiction,	
so	it	is	now	reportable.		Because	I	have	not	reported	
this	property	before,	do	I	need	to	show	an	“acquired”	
date?

A.	 No,	you	are	not	required	to	show	an	“acquired”	date	
because you previously owned the property.  However, 
you	may	want	to	note	in	the	“comments”	section	that	
the property was not previously reported because it was 
used exclusively as your residence.  This would be for 
informational purposes only; it is not a requirement.

Q.	I	am	a	city	manager,	and	I	own	a	rental	property	located	
in	an	adjacent	city,	but	one	mile	from	the	city	limit.		Do	I	
need to report this property interest?

A. Yes.  You are required to report this property because 
it is located within 2 miles of the boundaries of the city 
you manage.

Q.	Must	I	report	a	home	that	I	own	as	a	personal	residence	
for my daughter?

A. You are not required to disclose a home used as a 
personal residence for a family member unless you 
receive income from it, such as rental income.

Q.	I	am	a	co-signer	on	a	loan	for	a	rental	property	owned	
by	a	friend.	Since	I	am	listed	on	the	deed	of	trust,	do	I	
need	to	report	my	friend’s	property	as	an	interest	in	real	
property on my Form 700?

A. No. Simply being a co-signer on a loan for property 
does not create a reportable interest in real property for 
you.

Gift Disclosure
Q.	If	I	received	a	reportable	gift	of	two	tickets	to	a	concert	

valued at $100 each, but gave the tickets to a friend 
because	I	could	not	attend	the	concert,	do	I	have	any	
reporting obligations?

A. Yes.  Since you accepted the gift and exercised 
discretion and control of the use of the tickets, you must 
disclose the gift on Schedule D.

29



Q. Mary and Joe Benson, a married couple, want to give a 
piece	of	artwork	to	a	county	supervisor.		Is	each	spouse	
considered a separate source for purposes of the gift 
limit and disclosure?

A. Yes, each spouse may make a gift valued at the gift 
limit during a calendar year.  For example, during 2017  
the gift limit was $470, so the Bensons may have given 
the supervisor artwork valued at no more than $940.  
The supervisor must identify Joe and Mary Benson as 
the sources of the gift. 

Q.	I	am	a	Form	700	filer	with	full	disclosure.		Our	agency	
holds	a	holiday	raffle	to	raise	funds	for	a	local	charity.		
I	bought	$10	worth	of	raffle	tickets	and	won	a	gift	
basket valued at $120.  The gift basket was donated by 
Doug Brewer, a citizen in our city.  At the same event, 
I	bought	raffle	tickets	for,	and	won	a	quilt	valued	at	
$70.  The quilt was donated by a coworker.  Are these 
reportable gifts?

A. Because the gift basket was donated by an outside 
source	(not	an	agency	employee),	you	have	received	a	
reportable	gift	valued	at	$110	(the	value	of	the	basket	
less	the	consideration	paid).		The	source	of	the	gift	
is Doug Brewer and the agency is disclosed as the 
intermediary.  Because the quilt was donated by an 
employee of your agency, it is not a reportable gift.

Q. My agency is responsible for disbursing grants.  An 
applicant	(501(c)(3)	organization)	met	with	agency	
employees to present its application.  At this meeting, 
the	applicant	provided	food	and	beverages.		Would	
the food and beverages be considered gifts to the 
employees?  These employees are designated in our 
agency’s	conflict	of	interest	code	and	the	applicant	is	a	
reportable source of income under the code.

A.		Yes.		If	the	value	of	the	food	and	beverages	consumed	
by	any	one	filer,	plus	any	other	gifts	received	from	the	
same source during the reporting period total $50 or 
more, the food and beverages would be reported using 
the fair market value and would be subject to the gift 
limit.

Q.	I	received	free	admission	to	an	educational	conference	
related	to	my	official	duties.		Part	of	the	conference	
fees	included	a	round	of	golf.		Is	the	value	of	the	golf	
considered informational material?

A.	 No.		The	value	of	personal	benefits,	such	as	golf,	
attendance at a concert, or sporting event, are gifts 
subject to reporting and limits.

Questions and Answers
Continued

FPPC Form 700 (2017/2018) 
FPPC Advice Email: advice@fppc.ca.gov

FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/275-3772 www.fppc.ca.gov
Instructions – 7

30



Instructions – Schedules A-1 and A-2
Investments

“Investment”	means	a	financial	interest	in	any	business	
entity	(including	a	consulting	business	or	other	independent	
contracting	business)	that	is	located	in,	doing	business	in,	
planning to do business in, or that has done business during 
the	previous	two	years	in	your	agency’s	jurisdiction	in	which	
you, your spouse or registered domestic partner, or your 
dependent	children	had	a	direct,	indirect,	or	beneficial	interest	
totaling $2,000 or more at any time during the reporting 
period.  See Reference Pamphlet, page 13.

reportable investments include:
•	 Stocks, bonds, warrants, and options, including those held 

in margin or brokerage accounts and managed investment 
funds	(See	Reference	Pamphlet,	page	13.)

•	 Sole proprietorships
•	 Your	own	business	or	your	spouse’s	or	registered	

domestic	partner’s	business	(See	Reference	Pamphlet,	
page	8,	for	the	definition	of	“business	entity.”)

•	 Your	spouse’s	or	registered	domestic	partner’s	
investments even if they are legally separate property

•	 Partnerships	(e.g.,	a	law	firm	or	family	farm)
•	 Investments	in	reportable	business	entities	held	in	a	

retirement	account	(See	Reference	Pamphlet,	page	15.)
•	 If	you,	your	spouse	or	registered	domestic	partner,	

and dependent children together had a 10% or greater 
ownership	interest	in	a	business	entity	or	trust	(including	
a	living	trust),	you	must	disclose	investments	held	by	the	
business entity or trust.  See Reference Pamphlet, page 
15, for more information on disclosing trusts.

•	 Business trusts

You are not required to disclose:
•	 Government	bonds,	diversified	mutual	funds,	certain	funds	

similar	to	diversified	mutual	funds	(such	as	exchange	
traded	funds)	and	investments	held	in	certain	retirement	
accounts.  See Reference Pamphlet, page 13, for detailed 
information.		(Regulation	18237)

•	 Bank accounts, savings accounts, money market accounts 
and	certificates	of	deposits

•	 Insurance	policies
•	 Annuities
•	 Commodities
•	 Shares in a credit union
•	 Government	bonds	(including	municipal	bonds)
•	 Retirement accounts invested in non-reportable interests 

(e.g.,	insurance	policies,	mutual	funds,	or	government	
bonds)	(See	Reference	Pamphlet,	page	15.)

•	 Government	defined-benefit	pension	plans	(such	as	
CalPERS	and	CalSTRS	plans)

•	 Certain	interests	held	in	a	blind	trust	(See	Reference	
Pamphlet,	page	16.)

use Schedule A-1 to report ownership of less than 10% 
(e.g.,	stock).		Schedule	C	(Income)	may	also	be	required	if	
the investment is not a stock or corporate bond.  See second 
example below.

use Schedule A-2 to report ownership of 10% or greater 
(e.g.,	a	sole	proprietorship).

To Complete Schedule A-1:
Do	not	attach	brokerage	or	financial	statements.

•	 Disclose the name of the business entity.
•	 Provide a general description of the business activity of 

the	entity	(e.g.,	pharmaceuticals,	computers,	automobile	
manufacturing,	or	communications).

•	 Check the box indicating the highest fair market value of 
your	investment	during	the	reporting	period.		If	you	are	
filing	a	candidate	or	an	assuming	office	statement,	indicate	
the	fair	market	value	on	the	filing	date	or	the	date	you	took	
office,	respectively.

•	 Identify	the	nature	of	your	investment	(e.g.,	stocks,	
warrants,	options,	or	bonds).

•	 An acquired or disposed of date is only required if you 
initially acquired or entirely disposed of the investment 
interest during the reporting period.  The date of a stock 
dividend reinvestment or partial disposal is not required.  
Generally,	these	dates	will	not	apply	if	you	are	filing	a	
candidate	or	an	assuming	office	statement.

Examples:
John	Smith	holds	a	state	agency	position.		His	conflict	of	
interest code requires full disclosure of investments.  John 
must disclose his stock holdings of $2,000 or more in any 
company that is located in or does business in California, 
as well as those stocks held by his spouse or registered 
domestic partner and dependent children.

Susan Jones is a city council member.  She has a 4% 
interest, worth $5,000, in a limited partnership located in the 
city.  Susan must disclose the partnership on Schedule A-1 
and income of $500 or more received from the partnership on 
Schedule C.

Reminders
•	 Do	you	know	your	agency’s	jurisdiction?
•	 Did you hold investments at any time during the period 

covered by this statement?
•	 Code	filers	–	your	disclosure	categories	may	only	
require	disclosure	of	specific	investments.

FPPC Form 700 (2017/2018)
FPPC Advice Email: advice@fppc.ca.gov

FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/275-3772 www.fppc.ca.gov
Instructions – 8

31



IF	APPLICABLE,	LIST	DATE:

/ /  / /
	 ACQuIRED	 DISPOSED

IF	APPLICABLE,	LIST	DATE:

/ /  / /
	 ACQuIRED	 DISPOSED

IF	APPLICABLE,	LIST	DATE:

/ /  / /
	 ACQuIRED	 DISPOSED

IF	APPLICABLE,	LIST	DATE:

/ /  / /
	 ACQuIRED	 DISPOSED

IF	APPLICABLE,	LIST	DATE:

/ /  / /
	 ACQuIRED	 DISPOSED

IF	APPLICABLE,	LIST	DATE:

/ /  / /
	 ACQuIRED	 DISPOSED

17 17 17 17

1717

171717

Name

►		NAME	OF	BuSINESS	ENTITY

  
GENERAL	DESCRIPTION	OF	THIS	BuSINESS

►		NAME	OF	BuSINESS	ENTITY

  
GENERAL	DESCRIPTION	OF	THIS	BuSINESS

►		NAME	OF	BuSINESS	ENTITY

  
GENERAL	DESCRIPTION	OF	THIS	BuSINESS

►		NAME	OF	BuSINESS	ENTITY

  
GENERAL	DESCRIPTION	OF	THIS	BuSINESS

►		NAME	OF	BuSINESS	ENTITY

  
GENERAL	DESCRIPTION	OF	THIS	BuSINESS

►		NAME	OF	BuSINESS	ENTITY

  
GENERAL	DESCRIPTION	OF	THIS	BuSINESS

Comments: 

SChEDuLE A-1
Investments

Stocks,	Bonds,	and	Other	 Interests
(Ownership	 Interest	 is	Less	Than	10%)

Do not attach brokerage or financial statements.

700
FAIr POLITICAL PrACTICES COMMISSION

CALIFORNIA FORM

FPPC Form 700 (2017/2018) Sch. A-1
FPPC Advice Email: advice@fppc.ca.gov

FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/275-3772  www.fppc.ca.gov

FAIR	MARKET	vALuE
 $2,000 - $10,000  $10,001 - $100,000
 $100,001 - $1,000,000  Over $1,000,000

FAIR	MARKET	vALuE
 $2,000 - $10,000  $10,001 - $100,000
 $100,001 - $1,000,000  Over $1,000,000

FAIR	MARKET	vALuE
 $2,000 - $10,000  $10,001 - $100,000
 $100,001 - $1,000,000  Over $1,000,000

FAIR	MARKET	vALuE
 $2,000 - $10,000  $10,001 - $100,000
 $100,001 - $1,000,000  Over $1,000,000

FAIR	MARKET	vALuE
 $2,000 - $10,000  $10,001 - $100,000
 $100,001 - $1,000,000  Over $1,000,000

FAIR	MARKET	vALuE
 $2,000 - $10,000  $10,001 - $100,000
 $100,001 - $1,000,000  Over $1,000,000

17

NATuRE	OF	 INvESTMENT
 Stock  Other 

     (Describe)
 Partnership  Income	Received of $0 - $499

   Income	Received	of	$500	or	More (Report on Schedule C)

NATuRE	OF	 INvESTMENT
 Stock  Other 

     (Describe)
 Partnership  Income	Received	of	$0	 -	$499

   Income	Received	of	$500	or	More (Report on Schedule C)

NATuRE	OF	 INvESTMENT
 Stock  Other 

     (Describe)
 Partnership  Income	Received	of	$0	 -	$499

   Income	Received	of	$500	or	More (Report on Schedule C)

NATuRE	OF	 INvESTMENT
 Stock  Other 

     (Describe)
 Partnership  Income	Received of $0 - $499

   Income	Received	of	$500	or	More (Report on Schedule C)

NATuRE	OF	 INvESTMENT
 Stock  Other 

     (Describe)
 Partnership  Income	Received of $0 - $499

   Income	Received	of	$500	or	More (Report on Schedule C)

NATuRE	OF	 INvESTMENT
 Stock  Other 

     (Describe)
 Partnership  Income	Received	of	$0	 -	$499

   Income	Received	of	$500	or	More (Report on Schedule C)

1717

32



Instructions – Schedule A-2
Investments, Income, and Assets of Business Entities/Trusts

FPPC Form 700 (2017/2018)
FPPC Advice Email: advice@fppc.ca.gov

FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/275-3772 www.fppc.ca.gov
Instructions – 10

Use Schedule A-2 to report investments in a business 
entity	(including	a	consulting	business	or	other	independent	
contracting	business)	or	trust	(including	a	living	trust)	in	
which you, your spouse or registered domestic partner, 
and your dependent children, together or separately, had a 
10% or greater interest, totaling $2,000 or more, during the 
reporting period and which is located in, doing business in, 
planning to do business in, or which has done business during 
the	previous	two	years	in	your	agency’s	jurisdiction.		See	
Reference Pamphlet, page 13.  A trust located outside your 
agency’s	jurisdiction	is	reportable	if	it	holds	assets	that	are	
located in or doing business in the jurisdiction.  Do not report 
a trust that contains non-reportable interests.  For example, 
a trust containing only your personal residence not used in 
whole or in part as a business, your savings account, and 
some municipal bonds, is not reportable.

Also report on Schedule A-2 investments and real property 
held by that entity or trust if your pro rata share of the 
investment or real property interest was $2,000 or more 
during the reporting period.

To Complete Schedule A-2:
Part 1.  Disclose the name and address of the business entity 
or	trust.		If	you	are	reporting	an	interest	in	a	business	entity,	
check	“Business	Entity”	and	complete	the	box	as	follows:

•	 Provide a general description of the business activity of the 
entity.

•	 Check the box indicating the highest fair market value of 
your investment during the reporting period.

•	 If	you	initially	acquired	or	entirely	disposed	of	this	interest	
during the reporting period, enter the date acquired or 
disposed.

•	 Identify	the	nature	of	your	investment.
•	 Disclose the job title or business position you held with the 

entity,	if	any	(i.e.,	if	you	were	a	director,	officer,	partner,	
trustee,	employee,	or	held	any	position	of	management).		A	
business position held by your spouse is not reportable.

Part 2.  Check the box indicating your pro rata share of the 
gross income received by the business entity or trust.  This 
amount includes your pro rata share of the gross income 
from the business entity or trust, as well as your community 
property	interest	in	your	spouse’s	or	registered	domestic	
partner’s	share.		Gross income is the total amount of income 
before deducting expenses, losses, or taxes.

Part 3.  Disclose the name of each source of income that is 
located in, doing business in, planning to do business in, or 
that has done business during the previous two years in your 
agency’s	jurisdiction,	as	follows:	

•	 Disclose each source of income and outstanding loan 
to the business entity or trust	identified	in	Part	1	if	
your pro rata share of the gross	income	(including	your	
community	property	interest	in	your	spouse’s	or	registered	
domestic	partner’s	share)	to	the	business	entity	or	trust	
from that source was $10,000 or more during the reporting 

period.  See Reference Pamphlet, page 11, for examples.  
Income	from	governmental	sources	may	be	reportable	
if	not	considered	salary.	See	Regulation	18232.		Loans	
from	commercial	lending	institutions	made	in	the	lender’s	
regular course of business on terms available to members 
of	the	public	without	regard	to	your	official	status	are	not	
reportable.

•	 Disclose each individual or entity that was a source 
of commission income of $10,000 or more during the 
reporting	period	through	the	business	entity	identified	
in Part 1.  See Reference Pamphlet, page 8, for an 
explanation of commission income.

You may be required to disclose sources of income located 
outside your jurisdiction.  For example, you may have a client 
who resides outside your jurisdiction who does business on a 
regular basis with you.  Such a client, if a reportable source of 
$10,000 or more, must be disclosed.

Mark	“None”	if	you	do	not	have	any	reportable	$10,000	
sources of income to disclose.  Using phrases such as 
“various	clients”	or	“not	disclosing	sources	pursuant	to	
attorney-client	privilege”	may	trigger	a	request	for	an	
amendment to your statement.  See Reference Pamphlet, 
page 14, for details about requesting an exemption from 
disclosing privileged information.

Part 4.  Report any investments or interests in real property 
held or leased by the entity or trust	identified	in	Part	1	if	your	
pro rata share of the interest held was $2,000 or more during 
the reporting period.  Attach additional schedules or use 
FPPC’s	Form	700	Excel	spreadsheet	if	needed.

•	 Check the applicable box identifying the interest held as 
real property or an investment.

•	 If	investment,	provide	the	name	and	description	of	the	
business entity.

•	 If	real	property,	report	the	precise	location	(e.g.,	an	
assessor’s	parcel	number	or	address).

•	 Check the box indicating the highest fair market value 
of your interest in the real property or investment during 
the	reporting	period.		(Report	the	fair	market	value	of	the	
portion of your residence claimed as a tax deduction if you 
are	utilizing	your	residence	for	business	purposes.)

•	 Identify	the	nature	of	your	interest.
•	 Enter the date acquired or disposed only if you initially 

acquired or entirely disposed of your interest in the 
property or investment during the reporting period.

33



►	3. LIST ThE NAME OF EACh rEPOrTABLE SINGLE SOurCE OF 
INCOME OF $10,000 Or MOrE (Attach a separate sheet if necessary.)

IF	APPLICABLE,	LIST	DATE:

/ /  / /
	 ACQuIRED	 DISPOSED

IF	APPLICABLE,	LIST	DATE:

/ /  / /
	 ACQuIRED	 DISPOSED

IF	APPLICABLE,	LIST	DATE:

/ /  / /
	 ACQuIRED	 DISPOSED

IF	APPLICABLE,	LIST	DATE:

/ /  / /
	 ACQuIRED	 DISPOSED

17 17

17 1717 17

SChEDuLE A-2
Investments, Income, and Assets

of Business Entities/Trusts
(Ownership	 Interest	 is	10%	or	Greater)

Comments:

Name

Address (Business Address Acceptable)

Name

Address (Business Address Acceptable)

FAIR	MARKET	vALuE
 $0 - $1,999
 $2,000 - $10,000
 $10,001 - $100,000
 $100,001 - $1,000,000
 Over $1,000,000

FAIR	MARKET	vALuE
 $0 - $1,999
 $2,000 - $10,000
 $10,001 - $100,000
 $100,001 - $1,000,000
 Over $1,000,000

GENERAL	DESCRIPTION	OF	THIS	BuSINESS

 

GENERAL	DESCRIPTION	OF	THIS	BuSINESS

 

 INvESTMENT	  REAL	PROPERTY

Name	of	Business	Entity,	 if	 Investment,	or 
Assessor’s	Parcel	Number	or	Street	Address	of	Real	Property

Description of Business Activity or
City	or	Other	Precise	Location	of	Real	Property

 INvESTMENT	  REAL	PROPERTY

Name	of	Business	Entity,	 if	 Investment,	or 
Assessor’s	Parcel	Number	or	Street	Address	of	Real	Property

Description of Business Activity or
City	or	Other	Precise	Location	of	Real	Property

►	4. INVESTMENTS AND INTErESTS IN rEAL PrOPErTY hELD Or 
LEASED By ThE BuSINESS ENTITY Or TruST

►	4. INVESTMENTS AND INTErESTS IN rEAL PrOPErTY hELD Or 
LEASED By ThE BuSINESS ENTITY Or TruST

Check one
  Trust, go to 2  Business Entity, complete the box, then go to 2

Check one
  Trust, go to 2  Business Entity, complete the box, then go to 2

►	3. LIST ThE NAME OF EACh rEPOrTABLE SINGLE SOurCE OF 
INCOME OF $10,000 Or MOrE (Attach a separate sheet if necessary.)

►	2.  IDENTIFY ThE GrOSS INCOME rECEIVED (INCLuDE YOur PrO rATA 
ShArE OF ThE GrOSS INCOME tO ThE ENTITY/TruST)

►	2.  IDENTIFY ThE GrOSS INCOME rECEIVED (INCLuDE YOur PrO rATA 
ShArE OF ThE GrOSS INCOME tO ThE ENTITY/TruST)

Name

700

Check one box: Check one box:

YOuR	BuSINESS	POSITION	 YOuR	BuSINESS	POSITION	

FPPC Form 700 (2017/2018) Sch. A-2
FPPC Advice Email: advice@fppc.ca.gov

FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/275-3772  www.fppc.ca.gov

FAIR	MARKET	vALuE
 $2,000 - $10,000
 $10,001 - $100,000
 $100,001 - $1,000,000
 Over $1,000,000

FAIR	MARKET	vALuE
 $2,000 - $10,000
 $10,001 - $100,000
 $100,001 - $1,000,000
 Over $1,000,000

 $0 - $499
 $500 - $1,000
 $1,001 - $10,000

 $0 - $499
 $500 - $1,000
 $1,001 - $10,000

 $10,001 - $100,000
 OvER	$100,000

 $10,001 - $100,000
 OvER	$100,000

FAIr POLITICAL PrACTICES COMMISSION

CALIFORNIA FORM

►	1.  BuSINESS ENTITY Or TruST ►	1.  BuSINESS ENTITY Or TruST

NATuRE	OF	 INTEREST
 Property	Ownership/Deed	of	Trust	  Stock  Partnership

 Leasehold	 	   Other 
 

 Check box if additional schedules reporting investments or real property
 are attached

Yrs. remaining

NATuRE	OF	 INTEREST
 Property	Ownership/Deed	of	Trust	  Stock  Partnership

 Leasehold	 	   Other 
 

 Check box if additional schedules reporting investments or real property
 are attached

Yrs. remaining

17 17

Other

NATuRE	OF	 INvESTMENT
 Partnership  Sole Proprietorship  

Other

NATuRE	OF	 INvESTMENT
 Partnership  Sole Proprietorship  

 None  Noneor or Names listed below  Names listed below

34



•	 If	you	received	rental	income,	check	the	box	indicating	the	
gross amount you received.

•	 If	you	had	a	10%	or	greater	interest	in	real	property	and	
received	rental	income,	list	the	name	of	the	source(s)	if	
your pro rata share of the gross income from any single 
tenant	was	$10,000	or	more	during	the	reporting	period.		If	
you received a total of $10,000 or more from two or more 
tenants	acting	in	concert	(in	most	cases,	this	will	apply	
to	married	couples),	disclose	the	name	of	each	tenant.		
Otherwise,	mark	“None.”

•	 Loans	from	a	private	lender	that	total	$500	or	more	and	
are secured by real property may be reportable.  Loans 
from commercial lending institutions made in the 
lender’s regular course of business on terms available 
to members of the public without regard to your official 
status are not reportable.

When	reporting	a	loan:
 - Provide the name and address of the lender.
 - Describe	the	lender’s	business	activity.
 - Disclose the interest rate and term of the loan.  For 

variable interest rate loans, disclose the conditions 
of	the	loan	(e.g.,	Prime	+	2)	or	the	average	interest	
rate paid during the reporting period.  The term of 
a loan is the total number of months or years given 
for repayment of the loan at the time the loan was 
established.

 - Check the box indicating the highest balance of the 
loan during the reporting period.

 - Identify	a	guarantor,	if	applicable.

If	you	have	more	than	one	
reportable loan on a single 
piece of real property, report 
the	additional	loan(s)	on	
Schedule C. 

Example: 
Joe Nelson is a city planning 
commissioner. Joe received 
rental income of $12,000 
during the reporting period 
from a single tenant who 
rented property Joe owned 
in	the	city’s	jurisdiction.	If	Joe	
had received the $12,000 
from two or more tenants, the 
tenants’	names	would	not	be	
required as long as no single 
tenant paid $10,000 or more.  
A married couple would be 
considered a single tenant.

Instructions – Schedule B
Interests in real Property

Reminders
•	 Income	and	loans	already	reported	on	Schedule	B	are	

not also required to be reported on Schedule C.
•	 Real property already reported on Schedule A-2, Part 4 

is not also required to be reported on Schedule B.
•	Code	filers	– do your disclosure categories require 

disclosure of real property?

FPPC Form 700 (2017/2018)
FPPC Advice Email: advice@fppc.ca.gov

FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/275-3772 www.fppc.ca.gov
Instructions – 12

Report	interests	in	real	property	located	in	your	agency’s	
jurisdiction in which you, your spouse or registered domestic 
partner, or your dependent children had a direct, indirect, or 
beneficial	interest	totaling	$2,000	or	more	any	time	during	
the reporting period.  Real property is also considered to be 
“within	the	jurisdiction”	of	a	local	government	agency	if	the	
property or any part of it is located within two miles outside 
the boundaries of the jurisdiction or within two miles of any 
land owned or used by the local government agency.  See 
Reference Pamphlet, page 13.

Interests in real property include:
•	 An	ownership	interest	(including	a	beneficial	ownership	

interest)
•	 A deed of trust, easement, or option to acquire property
•	 A	leasehold	interest	(See	Reference	Pamphlet,	page	14.)
•	 A mining lease
•	 An interest in real property held in a retirement account 

(See	Reference	Pamphlet,	page	15.)
•	 An interest in real property held by a business entity or 

trust in which you, your spouse or registered domestic 
partner, and your dependent children together had a 10% 
or	greater	ownership	interest	(Report	on	Schedule	A-2.)

•	 Your	spouse’s	or	registered	domestic	partner’s	interests	in	
real property that are legally held separately by him or her

you are not required to report:
•	 A residence, such as a home or vacation cabin, used 

exclusively	as	a	personal	residence	(However,	a	residence	
in which you rent out a room or for which you claim a 
business	deduction	may	be	reportable.		If	reportable,	
report the fair market value of the portion claimed as a tax 
deduction.)
Please note:  A non-reportable residence can still be 
grounds	for	a	conflict	of	interest	and	may	be	disqualifying.

•	 Interests	in	real	property	held	through	a	blind	trust	(See	
Reference	Pamphlet,	page	16,	for	exceptions.)

To Complete Schedule B:
•	 Report	the	precise	location	(e.g.,	an	assessor’s	parcel	

number	or	address)	of	the	real	property.
•	 Check the box indicating the fair market value of your 

interest	in	the	property	(regardless	of	what	you	owe	on	the	
property).

•	 Enter the date acquired or disposed only if you initially 
acquired or entirely disposed of your interest in the 
property during the reporting period.

•	 Identify	the	nature	of	your	interest.		If	it	is	a	leasehold,	
disclose the number of years remaining on the lease.

	 NAME	OF	LENDER*

 
 ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

 
	 BuSINESS	ACTIvITY,	 IF	ANY,	OF	LENDER

 

IF	APPLICABLE,	LIST	DATE:

/ /  / /
 ACQuIRED DISPOSED

IF	APPLICABLE,	LIST	DATE:

/ /  / /
 ACQuIRED DISPOSED

17 1717 17

SChEDuLE B
Interests in real Property

(Including Rental Income)

Name

►		ASSESSOR’S	PARCEL	NuMBER	OR	STREET ADDRESS

 

►		ASSESSOR’S	PARCEL	NuMBER	OR	STREET ADDRESS

 
CITY CITY

INTEREST RATE TERM (Months/Years)

%  None 

SOuRCES	OF	RENTAL	 INCOME:	  If you own a 10% or greater 
interest, list the name of each tenant that is a single source of 
income of $10,000 or more.

SOuRCES	OF	RENTAL	 INCOME:	  If you own a 10% or greater 
interest, list the name of each tenant that is a single source of 
income of $10,000 or more.

NATuRE OF INTEREST

 Ownership/Deed	of	Trust	  Easement

 Leasehold	   
                    Yrs. remaining    Other

NATuRE OF INTEREST

 Ownership/Deed	of	Trust	  Easement

 Leasehold	   
                    Yrs. remaining    Other

Comments: 

FAIR	MARkET	vALuE
 $2,000 - $10,000
 $10,001 - $100,000
 $100,001 - $1,000,000
 Over $1,000,000

FAIR	MARkET	vALuE
 $2,000 - $10,000
 $10,001 - $100,000
 $100,001 - $1,000,000
 Over $1,000,000

IF	RENTAL	PROPERTY,	GROSS	INCOME	RECEIvED

 OvER $100,000

 $500 - $1,000 $0 - $499  $1,001 - $10,000

 $10,001 - $100,000

IF	RENTAL	PROPERTY,	GROSS	INCOME	RECEIvED

 OvER $100,000

 $500 - $1,000 $0 - $499  $1,001 - $10,000

 $10,001 - $100,000

HIGHEST	BALANCE	DuRING	REPORTING	PERIOD

 Guarantor, if applicable

 OvER $100,000

 $500 - $1,000  $1,001 - $10,000

 $10,001 - $100,000

FPPC Form 700 (2017/2018) Sch. B
FPPC Advice Email: advice@fppc.ca.gov

FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/275-3772  www.fppc.ca.gov

700
FAIr POLITICAL PrACTICES COMMISSION

CALIFORNIA FORM

	 NAME	OF	LENDER*

 
 ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

 
	 BuSINESS	ACTIvITY,	 IF	ANY,	OF	LENDER

 
INTEREST RATE TERM (Months/Years)

%  None 

 Guarantor, if applicable

HIGHEST	BALANCE	DuRING	REPORTING	PERIOD

 OvER $100,000

 $500 - $1,000  $1,001 - $10,000

 $10,001 - $100,000

* You	are	not	required	to	report	loans	from	commercial	lending	institutions	made	in	the	lender’s	regular	course	of	
business	on	terms	available	to	members	of	the	public	without	regard	to	your	official	status.		Personal	loans	and	
loans	received	not	in	a	lender’s	regular	course	of	business	must	be	disclosed	as	follows:

 None  None

4600 24th Street

Sacramento

Henry Wells

Sophia Petroillo

2121 Blue Sky Parkway, Sacramento

Restaurant Owner

8 15 Years

	 NAME	OF	LENDER*

 
 ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

 
	 BuSINESS	ACTIvITY,	 IF	ANY,	OF	LENDER

 

IF	APPLICABLE,	LIST	DATE:

/ /  / /
 ACQuIRED DISPOSED

IF	APPLICABLE,	LIST	DATE:

/ /  / /
 ACQuIRED DISPOSED

17 1717 17

SChEDuLE B
Interests in real Property

(Including Rental Income)

Name

►		ASSESSOR’S	PARCEL	NuMBER	OR	STREET ADDRESS

 

►		ASSESSOR’S	PARCEL	NuMBER	OR	STREET ADDRESS

 
CITY CITY

INTEREST RATE TERM (Months/Years)

%  None 

SOuRCES	OF	RENTAL	 INCOME:	  If you own a 10% or greater 
interest, list the name of each tenant that is a single source of 
income of $10,000 or more.

SOuRCES	OF	RENTAL	 INCOME:	  If you own a 10% or greater 
interest, list the name of each tenant that is a single source of 
income of $10,000 or more.

NATuRE OF INTEREST

 Ownership/Deed	of	Trust	  Easement

 Leasehold	   
                    Yrs. remaining    Other

NATuRE OF INTEREST

 Ownership/Deed	of	Trust	  Easement

 Leasehold	   
                    Yrs. remaining    Other

Comments: 

FAIR	MARkET	vALuE
 $2,000 - $10,000
 $10,001 - $100,000
 $100,001 - $1,000,000
 Over $1,000,000

FAIR	MARkET	vALuE
 $2,000 - $10,000
 $10,001 - $100,000
 $100,001 - $1,000,000
 Over $1,000,000

IF	RENTAL	PROPERTY,	GROSS	INCOME	RECEIvED

 OvER $100,000

 $500 - $1,000 $0 - $499  $1,001 - $10,000

 $10,001 - $100,000

IF	RENTAL	PROPERTY,	GROSS	INCOME	RECEIvED

 OvER $100,000

 $500 - $1,000 $0 - $499  $1,001 - $10,000

 $10,001 - $100,000

HIGHEST	BALANCE	DuRING	REPORTING	PERIOD

 Guarantor, if applicable

 OvER $100,000

 $500 - $1,000  $1,001 - $10,000

 $10,001 - $100,000

FPPC Form 700 (2017/2018) Sch. B
FPPC Advice Email: advice@fppc.ca.gov

FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/275-3772  www.fppc.ca.gov

700
FAIr POLITICAL PrACTICES COMMISSION

CALIFORNIA FORM

	 NAME	OF	LENDER*

 
 ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

 
	 BuSINESS	ACTIvITY,	 IF	ANY,	OF	LENDER

 
INTEREST RATE TERM (Months/Years)

%  None 

 Guarantor, if applicable

HIGHEST	BALANCE	DuRING	REPORTING	PERIOD

 OvER $100,000

 $500 - $1,000  $1,001 - $10,000

 $10,001 - $100,000

* You	are	not	required	to	report	loans	from	commercial	lending	institutions	made	in	the	lender’s	regular	course	of	
business	on	terms	available	to	members	of	the	public	without	regard	to	your	official	status.		Personal	loans	and	
loans	received	not	in	a	lender’s	regular	course	of	business	must	be	disclosed	as	follows:

 None  None

4600 24th Street

Sacramento

Henry Wells

Sophia Petroillo

2121 Blue Sky Parkway, Sacramento

Restaurant Owner

8 15 Years

35



	 NAME	OF	LENDER*

 
 ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

 
	 BuSINESS	ACTIvITY,	 IF	ANY,	OF	LENDER

 

IF	APPLICABLE,	LIST	DATE:

/ /  / /
	 ACQuIRED	 DISPOSED

IF	APPLICABLE,	LIST	DATE:

/ /  / /
	 ACQuIRED	 DISPOSED

17 1717 17

SChEDuLE B
Interests in real Property

(Including	Rental	 Income)

Name

►		ASSESSOR’S	PARCEL	NuMBER	OR	STREET ADDRESS

 

►		ASSESSOR’S	PARCEL	NuMBER	OR	STREET ADDRESS

 
CITY CITY

INTEREST	RATE	 TERM	(Months/Years)

%  None 

SOuRCES	OF	RENTAL	 INCOME:	  If	you	own	a	10%	or	greater	
interest, list the name of each tenant that is a single source of 
income of $10,000 or more.

SOuRCES	OF	RENTAL	 INCOME:	  If	you	own	a	10%	or	greater	
interest, list the name of each tenant that is a single source of 
income of $10,000 or more.

NATuRE	OF	 INTEREST

 Ownership/Deed	of	Trust	  Easement

 Leasehold	   
                    Yrs. remaining    Other

NATuRE	OF	 INTEREST

 Ownership/Deed	of	Trust	  Easement

 Leasehold	   
                    Yrs. remaining    Other

Comments: 

FAIR	MARKET	vALuE
 $2,000 - $10,000
 $10,001 - $100,000
 $100,001 - $1,000,000
 Over $1,000,000

FAIR	MARKET	vALuE
 $2,000 - $10,000
 $10,001 - $100,000
 $100,001 - $1,000,000
 Over $1,000,000

IF	RENTAL	PROPERTY,	GROSS	INCOME	RECEIvED

 OvER	$100,000

 $500 - $1,000 $0 - $499  $1,001 - $10,000

 $10,001 - $100,000

IF	RENTAL	PROPERTY,	GROSS	INCOME	RECEIvED

 OvER	$100,000

 $500 - $1,000 $0 - $499  $1,001 - $10,000

 $10,001 - $100,000

HIGHEST	BALANCE	DuRING	REPORTING	PERIOD

 Guarantor, if applicable

 OvER	$100,000

 $500 - $1,000  $1,001 - $10,000

 $10,001 - $100,000

FPPC Form 700 (2017/2018) Sch. B
FPPC Advice Email: advice@fppc.ca.gov

FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/275-3772  www.fppc.ca.gov

700
FAIr POLITICAL PrACTICES COMMISSION

CALIFORNIA FORM

	 NAME	OF	LENDER*

 
 ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

 
	 BuSINESS	ACTIvITY,	 IF	ANY,	OF	LENDER

 
INTEREST	RATE	 TERM	(Months/Years)

%  None 

 Guarantor, if applicable

HIGHEST	BALANCE	DuRING	REPORTING	PERIOD

 OvER	$100,000

 $500 - $1,000  $1,001 - $10,000

 $10,001 - $100,000

* You	are	not	required	to	report	loans	from	commercial	lending	institutions	made	in	the	lender’s	regular	course	of	
business	on	terms	available	to	members	of	the	public	without	regard	to	your	official	status.		Personal	loans	and	
loans	received	not	in	a	lender’s	regular	course	of	business	must	be	disclosed	as	follows:

 None  None

36



Instructions – Schedule C
Income, Loans, & Business Positions

(Income Other Than Gifts and Travel Payments)

FPPC Form 700 (2017/2018)
FPPC Advice Email: advice@fppc.ca.gov

FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/275-3772 www.fppc.ca.gov
Instructions – 14

reporting Income:
Report the source and amount of gross income of $500 or 
more you received during the reporting period.  Gross income 
is the total amount of income before deducting expenses, 
losses, or taxes and includes loans other than loans from a 
commercial lending institution.  See Reference Pamphlet, 
page 11.  You must also report the source of income to your 
spouse or registered domestic partner if your community 
property share was $500 or more during the reporting period.

The source and income must be reported only if the source 
is located in, doing business in, planning to do business in, 
or has done business during the previous two years in your 
agency’s	jurisdiction.		See	Reference	Pamphlet,	page	13,	
for more information about doing business in the jurisdiction. 
Reportable sources of income may be further limited by 
your	disclosure	category	located	in	your	agency’s	conflict	of	
interest code.

reporting Business Positions:
You must report your job title with each reportable business 
entity even if you received no income during the reporting 
period.  Use the comments section to indicate that no income 
was received.

Commonly reportable income and loans include:
•	 Salary/wages,	per	diem,	and	reimbursement	for	expenses	

including travel payments provided by your employer
•	 Community	property	interest	(50%)	in	your	spouse’s	

or	registered	domestic	partner’s	income	-	report the 
employer’s name and all other required information

•	 Income	from	investment	interests,	such	as	partnerships,	
reported on Schedule A-1

•	 Commission income not required to be reported on 
Schedule	A-2	(See	Reference	Pamphlet,	page	8.)

•	 Gross income from any sale, including the sale of a house 
or	car	(Report	your	pro	rata	share	of	the	total	sale	price.)

•	 Rental income not required to be reported on Schedule B
•	 Prizes or awards not disclosed as gifts
•	 Payments received on loans you made to others 
•	 An	honorarium	received	prior	to	becoming	a	public	official	

(See	Reference	Pamphlet,	page	10,	concerning	your	ability	
to	receive	future	honoraria.)	

•	 Incentive	compensation	(See	Reference	Pamphlet,	page	
12.)

you are not required to report:
•	 Salary, reimbursement for expenses or per diem, or 

social	security,	disability,	or	other	similar	benefit	payments	
received by you or your spouse or registered domestic 
partner from a federal, state, or local government agency.

•	 Stock dividends and income from the sale of stock unless 
the	source	can	be	identified.

•	 Income	from	a	PERS	retirement	account.

See reference Pamphlet, page 11, for more exceptions to 
income reporting.

To Complete Schedule C:
Part 1.  Income received/Business Position Disclosure
•	 Disclose the name and address of each source of income 

or each business entity with which you held a business 
position.

•	 Provide a general description of the business activity if the 
source is a business entity.

•	 Check the box indicating the amount of gross income 
received.

•	 Identify	the	consideration	for	which	the	income	was	
received.

•	 For income from commission sales, check the box 
indicating the gross income received and list the name of 
each source of commission income of $10,000 or more. 
See Reference Pamphlet, page 8.  Note:  If you receive 
commission income on a regular basis or have an 
ownership interest of 10% or more, you must disclose 
the business entity and the income on Schedule A-2.

•	 Disclose the job title or business position, if any, that you 
held with the business entity, even if you did not receive 
income during the reporting period.

Part 2.  Loans received or Outstanding During the 
reporting Period
•	 Provide the name and address of the lender.
•	 Provide a general description of the business activity if the 

lender is a business entity.
•	 Check the box indicating the highest balance of the loan 

during the reporting period.
•	 Disclose the interest rate and the term of the loan.

 - For variable interest rate loans, disclose the conditions 
of	the	loan	(e.g.,	Prime	+	2)	or	the	average	interest	rate	
paid during the reporting period.

 - The term of the loan is the total number of months or 
years given for repayment of the loan at the time the 
loan was entered into.

•	 Identify	the	security,	if	any,	for	the	loan.

Reminders
•	 Code	filers	–	your	disclosure	categories	may	not	require	

disclosure of all sources of income.
•	 If	you	or	your	spouse	or	registered	domestic	partner	are	

self-employed, report the business entity on Schedule A-2.
•	 Do not disclose on Schedule C income, loans, or business 

positions already reported on Schedules A-2 or B.

37



FPPC Form 700 (2017/2018) Sch. C
FPPC Advice Email: advice@fppc.ca.gov

FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/275-3772  www.fppc.ca.gov

(Real property, car, boat, etc.) (Real property, car, boat, etc.)

SChEDuLE C
Income, Loans, & Business 

Positions
(Other	 than	Gifts	and	Travel	Payments)

GROSS	INCOME	RECEIvED No	 Income - Business Position Only No	 Income - Business Position OnlyGROSS	INCOME	RECEIvED

Name

 OvER	$100,000  OvER	$100,000
 $500 - $1,000  $500 - $1,000 $1,001 - $10,000  $1,001 - $10,000

 $10,001 - $100,000  $10,001 - $100,000

700
FAIr POLITICAL PrACTICES COMMISSION

CALIFORNIA FORM

►	 1. INCOME rECEIVED
 NAME	OF	SOuRCE	OF	 INCOME

 
 ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

 
	 BuSINESS	ACTIvITY,	 IF	ANY,	OF	SOuRCE

 
	 YOuR	BuSINESS	POSITION

 

►	 1. INCOME rECEIVED
 NAME	OF	SOuRCE	OF	 INCOME

 
 ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

 
	 BuSINESS	ACTIvITY,	 IF	ANY,	OF	SOuRCE

 
	 YOuR	BuSINESS	POSITION

 

 NAME	OF	LENDER*

 
 ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

 
	 BuSINESS	ACTIvITY,	 IF	ANY,	OF	LENDER

 

INTEREST	RATE	 TERM	(Months/Years)

%  None 

HIGHEST	BALANCE	DuRING	REPORTING	PERIOD

 $500 - $1,000

 $1,001 - $10,000

 $10,001 - $100,000

 OvER	$100,000

Comments:  

►	 2. LOANS rECEIVED Or OuTSTANDING DurING ThE rEPOrTING PErIOD

* You are not required to report loans from commercial lending institutions, or any indebtedness created as part of a 
retail	installment	or	credit	card	transaction,	made	in	the	lender’s	regular	course	of	business	on	terms	available	to	
members	of	the	public	without	regard	to	your	official	status.		Personal	loans	and	loans	received	not	in	a	lender’s	
regular course of business must be disclosed as follows:

SECuRITY	FOR	LOAN

 None  Personal residence

 Real Property  

  

 Guarantor 

 Other  

Street address

City

(Describe)

CONSIDERATION	FOR	WHICH	INCOME	WAS	RECEIvED
 Salary  Spouse’s	or	 registered	domestic	partner’s	 income 

	 	 	 (For	self-employed	use	Schedule	A-2.)

 Partnership	 (Less	 than	10%	ownership.	For	10%	or	greater	use	 	
	 Schedule	A-2.)

 Sale of  
 

   

 

 Other 

CONSIDERATION	FOR	WHICH	INCOME	WAS	RECEIvED
 Salary  Spouse’s	or	 registered	domestic	partner’s	 income 

	 	 	 (For	self-employed	use	Schedule	A-2.)

 Partnership	 (Less	 than	10%	ownership.	For	10%	or	greater	use	 	
	 Schedule	A-2.)

 Sale of  
 

   

 

 Other 

(Describe) (Describe)

(Describe) (Describe)

Rental	 Income,	 list each source of $10,000 or more Rental	 Income,	 list each source of $10,000 or moreCommission or Commission or

Loan	repayment Loan	 repayment

38



Instructions – Schedule D
Income – Gifts

Reminders
•	 Gifts from a single source are subject to a $470 limit 

during 2017.  See Reference Pamphlet, page 10.
•	Code	filers	– you only need to report gifts from 

reportable sources.

Gift Tracking Mobile Application

•	FPPC has created a gift tracking app for mobile  
devices	that	helps	filers	track	gifts	and	provides	a	quick	
and easy way to upload the information to the Form 
700.	visit	FPPC’s	website	to	download	the	app.

FPPC Form 700 (2017/2018)
FPPC Advice Email: advice@fppc.ca.gov

FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/275-3772 www.fppc.ca.gov
Instructions – 16

A gift is anything of value for which you have not provided 
equal or greater consideration to the donor.  A gift is 
reportable	if	its	fair	market	value	is	$50	or	more.		In	addition,	
multiple gifts totaling $50 or more received during the 
reporting period from a single source must be reported. 

It	is	the	acceptance	of	a	gift,	not	the	ultimate	use	to	which	it	is	
put, that imposes your reporting obligation.  Except as noted 
below, you must report a gift even if you never used it or if you 
gave it away to another person.

If	the	exact	amount	of	a	gift	is	unknown,	you	must	make	a	
good	faith	estimate	of	the	item’s	fair	market	value.		Listing	
the	value	of	a	gift	as	“over	$50”	or	“value	unknown”	is	not	
adequate	disclosure.		In	addition,	if	you	received	a	gift	through	
an intermediary, you must disclose the name, address, and 
business activity of both the donor and the intermediary.  You 
may	indicate	an	intermediary	either	in	the	“source”	field	
after	the	name	or	in	the	“comments”	section	at	the	bottom	
of Schedule D.

Commonly reportable gifts include:
•	 Tickets/passes	to	sporting	or	entertainment	events
•	 Tickets/passes	to	amusement	parks
•	 Parking	passes	not	used	for	official	agency	business
•	 Food, beverages, and accommodations, including those 

provided in direct connection with your attendance at a 
convention, conference, meeting, social event, meal, or like 
gathering

•	 Rebates/discounts	not	made	in	the	regular	course	of	
business	to	members	of	the	public	without	regard	to	official	
status

•	 Wedding	gifts	(See	Reference	Pamphlet,	page	16)
•	 An	honorarium	received	prior	to	assuming	office	(You	may	

report an honorarium as income on Schedule C, rather 
than as a gift on Schedule D, if you provided services of 
equal or greater value than the payment received.  See 
Reference Pamphlet, page 10, regarding your ability to 
receive	future	honoraria.)

•	 Transportation	and	lodging	(See	Schedule	E.)
•	 Forgiveness of a loan received by you

you are not required to disclose:
•	 Gifts that were not used and that, within 30 days after 

receipt, were returned to the donor or delivered to a 
charitable organization or government agency without 

being claimed by you as a charitable contribution for tax 
purposes

•	 Gifts from your spouse or registered domestic partner, 
child, parent, grandparent, grandchild, brother, sister, and 
certain	other	famly	members	(See	Regulation	18942	for	a	
complete	list.).		The	exception	does	not	apply	if	the	donor	
was acting as an agent or intermediary for a reportable 
source who was the true donor.

•	 Gifts of similar value exchanged between you and an 
individual, other than a lobbyist registered to lobby your 
state agency, on holidays, birthdays, or similar occasions

•	 Gifts of informational material provided to assist you in the 
performance	of	your	official	duties	(e.g.,	books,	pamphlets,	
reports,	calendars,	periodicals,	or	educational	seminars)

•	 A	monetary	bequest	or	inheritance	(However,	inherited	
investments or real property may be reportable on other 
schedules.)

•	 Personalized plaques or trophies with an individual value of 
less than $250

•	 Campaign contributions
•	 Up to two tickets, for your own use, to attend a fundraiser 

for a campaign committee or candidate, or to a fundraiser 
for an organization exempt from taxation under Section 
501(c)(3)	of	the	Internal	Revenue	Code.	The	ticket	must	
be received from the organization or committee holding the 
fundraiser.

•	 Gifts given to members of your immediate family if the 
source has an established relationship with the family 
member and there is no evidence to suggest the donor had 
a	purpose	to	influence	you.		(See	Regulation	18943.)

•	 Free	admission,	food,	and	nominal	items	(such	as	a	pen,	
pencil,	mouse	pad,	note	pad	or	similar	item)	available	to	
all	attendees,	at	the	event	at	which	the	official	makes	a	
speech	(as	defined	in	Regulation	18950(b)(2)),	so	long	as	
the admission is provided by the person who organizes the 
event.

•	 Any	other	payment	not	identified	above,	that	would	
otherwise	meet	the	definition	of	gift,	where	the	payment	is	
made by an individual who is not a lobbyist registered to 
lobby	the	official’s	state	agency,	where	it	is	clear	that	the	
gift was made because of an existing personal or business 
relationship	unrelated	to	the	official’s	position	and	there	
is no evidence whatsoever at the time the gift is made to 
suggest	the	donor	had	a	purpose	to	influence	you.

To Complete Schedule D:
•	 Disclose	the	full	name	(not	an	acronym),	address,	and,	if	a	

business entity, the business activity of the source.
•	 Provide	the	date	(month,	day,	and	year)	of	receipt,	and	

disclose the fair market value and description of the gift.

39



SChEDuLE D
Income – Gifts

Comments: 

Name

FPPC Form 700 (2017/2018) Sch. D
FPPC Advice Email: advice@fppc.ca.gov

FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/275-3772  www.fppc.ca.gov

700
FAIr POLITICAL PrACTICES COMMISSION

CALIFORNIA FORM

►	NAME OF SOURCE (Not an Acronym)

 
 ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

 
	 BuSINESS	ACTIvITY,	 IF	ANY,	OF	SOuRCE

 
 DATE (mm/dd/yy)	 vALuE	 DESCRIPTION	OF	GIFT(S)

 / /  $  

 / /  $  

 / /  $  

►	NAME OF SOURCE (Not an Acronym)

 
 ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

 
	 BuSINESS	ACTIvITY,	 IF	ANY,	OF	SOuRCE

 
 DATE (mm/dd/yy)	 vALuE	 DESCRIPTION	OF	GIFT(S)

 / /  $  

 / /  $  

 / /  $  

►	NAME OF SOURCE (Not an Acronym)

 
 ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

 
	 BuSINESS	ACTIvITY,	 IF	ANY,	OF	SOuRCE

 
 DATE (mm/dd/yy)	 vALuE	 DESCRIPTION	OF	GIFT(S)

 / /  $  

 / /  $  

 / /  $  

►	NAME OF SOURCE (Not an Acronym)

 
 ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

 
	 BuSINESS	ACTIvITY,	 IF	ANY,	OF	SOuRCE

 
 DATE (mm/dd/yy)	 vALuE	 DESCRIPTION	OF	GIFT(S)

 / /  $  

 / /  $  

 / /  $  

►	NAME OF SOURCE (Not an Acronym)

 
 ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

 
	 BuSINESS	ACTIvITY,	 IF	ANY,	OF	SOuRCE

 
 DATE (mm/dd/yy)	 vALuE	 DESCRIPTION	OF	GIFT(S)

 / /  $  

 / /  $  

 / /  $  

►	NAME OF SOURCE (Not an Acronym)

 
 ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

 
	 BuSINESS	ACTIvITY,	 IF	ANY,	OF	SOuRCE

 
 DATE (mm/dd/yy)	 vALuE	 DESCRIPTION	OF	GIFT(S)

 / /  $  

 / /  $  

 / /  $  

40



FPPC Form 700 (2017/2018)
FPPC Advice Email: advice@fppc.ca.gov

FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/275-3772 www.fppc.ca.gov
Instructions - 18

Travel payments reportable on Schedule E include advances 
and reimbursements for travel and related expenses, 
including lodging and meals.

Gifts	of	travel	may	be	subject	to	the	gift	limit.		In	addition,	
certain travel payments are reportable gifts, but are not 
subject to the gift limit.  To avoid possible misinterpretation 
or the perception that you have received a gift in excess of 
the	gift	limit,	you	may	wish	to	provide	a	specific	description	of	
the purpose of your travel.  See the FPPC fact sheet entitled 
“Limitations	and	Restrictions	on	Gifts,	Honoraria,	Travel,	and	
Loans”	at	www.fppc.ca.gov.

you are not required to disclose:
•	 Travel payments received from any state, local, or federal 

government agency for which you provided services equal 
or greater in value than the payments received, such as 
reimbursement for travel on agency business from your 
government agency employer.

•	 A payment for travel from another local, state, or federal 
government agency and related per diem expenses when 
the travel is for education, training or other inter-agency 
programs or purposes.

•	 Travel payments received from your employer in the 
normal course of your employment that are included in the 
income reported on Schedule C.

•	 A	travel	payment	that	was	received	from	a	non-profit	
entity	exempt	from	taxation	under	Internal	Revenue	
Code	Section	501(c)(3)	for	which	you	provided	equal	or	
greater consideration, such as reimbursement for travel on 
business	for	a	501(c)(3)	organization	for	which	you	are	a	
board member.
Note:  Certain travel payments may not be reportable 
if reported on Form 801 by your agency.

To Complete Schedule E:
•	 Disclose	the	full	name	(not	an	acronym)	and	address	of	the	

source of the travel payment.
•	 Identify	the	business	activity	if	the	source	is	a	business	

entity.
•	 Check the box to identify the payment as a gift or income, 

report	the	amount,	and	disclose	the	date(s).	
 - Travel payments are gifts if you did not provide 

services that were equal to or greater in value than the 
payments received.  You must disclose gifts totaling 
$50 or more from a single source during the period 
covered by the statement.  
 
When	reporting	travel	payments	that	are	gifts,	you	must	
provide a description of the gift, the date(s) received, 
and the travel destination.

 - Travel payments are income if you provided services 
that were equal to or greater in value than the 
payments received.  You must disclose income totaling 
$500 or more from a single source during the period 
covered by the statement.  You have the burden of 
proving the payments are income rather than gifts. 
When	reporting	travel	payments	as	income,	you	must	
describe the services you provided in exchange for the 
payment.		You	are	not	required	to	disclose	the	date(s)	
for travel payments that are income.

Example:
City council member Rick Chandler is the chairman of a 501 
(c)(6)	trade	association	and	the	association	pays	for	Rick’s	
travel to attend its meetings.  Because Rick is deemed to be 
providing equal or greater 
consideration for the 
travel payment by virtue of 
serving on the board, this 
payment may be reported 
as income.  Payments 
for Rick to attend other 
events for which he is not 
providing services are 
likely considered gifts.

Instructions – Schedule E
Travel Payments, Advances, 

and Reimbursements

SChEDuLE E
Income – Gifts

Travel Payments, Advances,
and Reimbursements

Name

Comments: 

FPPC Form 700 (2016/2017) Sch. E
FPPC Advice Email: advice@fppc.ca.gov

FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/275-3772  www.fppc.ca.gov

700
FAIr POLITICAL PrACTICES COMMISSION

CALIFORNIA FORM

• Mark either the gift or income box.
• Mark the “501(c)(3)” box for a travel payment received from a nonprofit 501(c)(3) organization 

or the “Speech” box if you made a speech or participated in a panel.  These payments are not 
subject to the gift limit, but may result in a disqualifying conflict of interest.

• For gifts of travel, provide the travel destination.

DATE(S): / /  - / /  AMT: $
 (If gift)

DATE(S): / /  - / /  AMT: $
 (If gift)

►	NAME OF SOURCE (Not an Acronym)

 
 ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

 
	 CITY	AND	STATE

 
 

 

501	(c)(3)	or	DESCRIBE	BuSINESS	ACTIvITY,	IF	ANY,	OF	SOuRCE

►	NAME OF SOURCE (Not an Acronym)

 
 ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

 
	 CITY	AND	STATE

 
 

 

501	(c)(3)	or	DESCRIBE	BuSINESS	ACTIvITY,	IF	ANY,	OF	SOuRCE

►	NAME OF SOURCE (Not an Acronym)

 
 ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

 
	 CITY	AND	STATE

 
 

 

501	(c)(3)	or	DESCRIBE	BuSINESS	ACTIvITY,	IF	ANY,	OF	SOuRCE

►	NAME OF SOURCE (Not an Acronym)

 
 ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

 
	 CITY	AND	STATE

 
 

 

501	(c)(3)	or	DESCRIBE	BuSINESS	ACTIvITY,	IF	ANY,	OF	SOuRCE

►	MuST	CHECK	ONE:

	 Made	a	Speech/Participated	 in	a	Panel

 Other - Provide Description 

Gift   -or- Income

►	If Gift, Provide Travel Destination

►	MuST	CHECK	ONE:

	 Made	a	Speech/Participated	 in	a	Panel

 Other - Provide Description 

Gift   -or- Income

►	If Gift, Provide Travel Destination

►	MuST	CHECK	ONE:

	 Made	a	Speech/Participated	 in	a	Panel

 Other - Provide Description 

Gift   -or- Income

►	If Gift, Provide Travel Destination

►	MuST	CHECK	ONE:

	 Made	a	Speech/Participated	 in	a	Panel

 Other - Provide Description 

Gift   -or- Income

►	If Gift, Provide Travel Destination

DATE(S): / /  - / /  AMT: $
 (If gift)

DATE(S): / /  - / /  AMT: $
 (If gift)

Health Services Trade Association

1230 K Street, Suite 610

Sacramento, CA

Association of Healthcare Workers

150.00

● Travel reimbursement for
board meeting

Clear Page Print

41



SChEDuLE E
Income – Gifts

Travel Payments, Advances,
and Reimbursements

Name

Comments: 

FPPC Form 700 (2017/2018) Sch. E
FPPC Advice Email: advice@fppc.ca.gov

FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/275-3772  www.fppc.ca.gov

700
FAIr POLITICAL PrACTICES COMMISSION

CALIFORNIA FORM

• Mark either the gift or income box.
• Mark the “501(c)(3)” box for a travel payment received from a nonprofit 501(c)(3) organization 

or the “Speech” box if you made a speech or participated in a panel.  These payments are not 
subject to the gift limit, but may result in a disqualifying conflict of interest.

• For gifts of travel, provide the travel destination.

DATE(S):	 / /  - / /  AMT: $
 (If gift)

DATE(S):	 / /  - / /  AMT: $
 (If gift)

►	NAME OF SOURCE (Not an Acronym)

 
 ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

 
	 CITY	AND	STATE

 
 

 

501	(c)(3)	or	DESCRIBE	BuSINESS	ACTIvITY,	IF	ANY,	OF	SOuRCE

►	NAME OF SOURCE (Not an Acronym)

 
 ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

 
	 CITY	AND	STATE

 
 

 

501	(c)(3)	or	DESCRIBE	BuSINESS	ACTIvITY,	IF	ANY,	OF	SOuRCE

►	NAME OF SOURCE (Not an Acronym)

 
 ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

 
	 CITY	AND	STATE

 
 

 

501	(c)(3)	or	DESCRIBE	BuSINESS	ACTIvITY,	IF	ANY,	OF	SOuRCE

►	NAME OF SOURCE (Not an Acronym)

 
 ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

 
	 CITY	AND	STATE

 
 

 

501	(c)(3)	or	DESCRIBE	BuSINESS	ACTIvITY,	IF	ANY,	OF	SOuRCE

►	MuST	CHECK	ONE:

	 Made	a	Speech/Participated	 in	a	Panel

 Other - Provide Description 

Gift   -or- Income

►	If Gift, Provide Travel Destination

►	MuST	CHECK	ONE:

	 Made	a	Speech/Participated	 in	a	Panel

 Other - Provide Description 

Gift   -or- Income

►	If Gift, Provide Travel Destination

►	MuST	CHECK	ONE:

	 Made	a	Speech/Participated	 in	a	Panel

 Other - Provide Description 

Gift   -or- Income

►	If Gift, Provide Travel Destination

►	MuST	CHECK	ONE:

	 Made	a	Speech/Participated	 in	a	Panel

 Other - Provide Description 

Gift   -or- Income

►	If Gift, Provide Travel Destination

DATE(S):	 / /  - / /  AMT: $
 (If gift)

DATE(S):	 / /  - / /  AMT: $
 (If gift)

42



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Measure T Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee 
Meeting Attendance and Fee Request/Waiver Form 

 
 
 

The undersigned   , 
      (print name) 
 

confirms that they were in attendance for three quarters of the Measure T 
 
 

Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee (ITOC) meeting on 
 
 
 

  , 20  , and wishes to   the 

(receive or waive) 
 
$250 stipend in accordance with the Measure T Ordinance. 
 

 
Signature of ITOC Member  Date:    
 
 

 

Acknowledged by  Date:    

 

ATTACHMENT 2 
ITOC Agenda Item 6.4 

April 4, 2018 

43



ATTACHMENT 3
ITOC Agenda Item 6.4

April 4, 2018

44



45



46



47



48



49



April 4, 2018 
ITOC Agenda Item 6.5 
Continued From: New 

Action Requested: INFORMATION 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY-Tax Agency 
ITOC Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 

REPORT BY: Vicki A. Clayton, NVTA General Council 
(415) 686-2978 / Email: vclayton@sloansakai.com

SUBJECT: Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee (ITOC) Bylaws, the 
Brown Act, and the Standard Code of Parliamentary Procedure 
Review 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee receive a presentation on (1) the 
ITOC Bylaws (Attachment 1), (2) the Brown Act (Attachment 2), and (3) Standard Code 
of Parliamentary Procedure by Alice Sturgis, as presented by legal counsel. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

A presentation to review provisions in the ITOC Bylaws, the Brown Act, and the Standard 
Code of Parliamentary Procedure, all of which govern how the committee is required to 
conduct its meetings, will be provided by legal counsel. 

PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 

1. Staff Report
2. Public Comment

FISCAL IMPACT 

Is there a Fiscal Impact?  No 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

Attachments:  (1) Resolution No. 18-02-TA ITOC Bylaws 
(2) The Brown Act
https://oag.ca.gov/sites/all/files/agweb/pdfs/publications/brownAct2003.pdf
(3) The Standard Code of Parliamentary Procedures 4th Edition by Alice

Sturgis (to be distributed to Committee Members at the meeting)

50

mailto:vclayton@sloansakai.com
https://oag.ca.gov/sites/all/files/agweb/pdfs/publications/brownAct2003.pdf


ATTACHMENT 1 
ITOC Agenda Item 6.5

April 4, 2018

51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



April 4, 2018 
ITOC Agenda Item 6.6 
Continued From: New 

Action Requested: APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEYCTRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY-Tax Agency 
ITOC Agenda Letter 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 

REPORT BY: Karrie Sanderlin, Program Manager-Administration and Human 
Resources 
(707) 259-8633 / Email: ksanderlin@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Approve the Meeting Schedule of the Napa Valley Transportation 
Authority-Tax Agency (NVTA-TA) Independent Taxpayer Oversight 
Committee (ITOC) for Calendar Year (CY) 2018 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the ITOC approve the meeting schedule of the Napa Valley Transportation Authority-
Tax Agency (NVTA-TA) Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee (ITOC) for Calendar 
Year (CY) 2018 (Attachment 1) 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

None 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The ITOC meetings fall under the requirements of the State of California Brown Act, and 
therefore must establish a regular meeting date, time, and place, and publish notice of each 
meeting.   

PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 

1. Staff Report
2. Public Comment
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote

59

mailto:ksanderlin@nvta.ca.gov


ITOC Agenda Letter                   Wednesday, April 18, 2018 
Agenda Item 6.6 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a Fiscal Impact?  No  
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
The ITOC meetings fall under the requirements of the State of California Brown Act, and 
therefore must establish a regular meeting date, time, and place, and publish notice of each 
meeting.  The regular meeting place will be the Soscol Gateway Transit Center and Board 
Room (NVTA Board Room) at 625 Burnell Street, Napa, CA, the regular meeting time for 
the Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee (ITOC) will be 2:00 p.m., and the 
recommended regular meeting schedule for CY 2018 is as follows: 
 

Wednesday, April 4 
Wednesday, July 11 
Wednesday, October 3 
Wednesday, December 5 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachment: (1) Draft 2018 Calendar 

60



Sun Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat Sun Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat Sun Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 1 2 3

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 11 12 13 14 15 16 17

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 25 26 27 28 29 30 31

Sun Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat Sun Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat Sun Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 5 1 2

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 17 18 19 20 21 22 23

29 30 27 28 29 30 31 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

Sun Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat Sun Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat Sun Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 1

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22

29 30 31 26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 29

30

Sun Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat Sun Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat Sun Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 1

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 16 17 18 19 20 21 22

28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 30 23 24 25 26 27 28 29

30 31

HOLIDAY

July August September

October November December

2018

NVTA-TA ITOC

2:00 PM1:30 PM

DRAFT NVTA-TA Board of Directors and Committee Meeting Calendar

January February March

April May June

ATTACHMENT 1
ITOC Agenda Item 6.6

April 4, 2108

61



April 4, 2018 
ITOC Agenda Item 6.7 
Continued From: New 

Action Requested: INFORMATION 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
ITOC Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee 

FROM:    Kate Miller, Executive Director 

REPORT BY: Danielle Schmitz, Director – Projects, Programs and Planning 
(707) 259-5968 | dschmitz@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Jurisdictions’ Maintenance of Effort (MOE) Overview 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

Information only.  The ITOC will have the opportunity to review each jurisdiction’s MOE. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Jurisdictions eligible to receive Measure T revenues are subject to the Maintenance of 
Effort (MOE) provision in the ordinance.  This provision establishes a minimum general 
funds expenditure threshold equal to the average amount a jurisdiction expended in Fiscal 
Years (FY) 2007-08, 2008-09, 2009-10 on local streets and roads maintenance and 
supporting infrastructure within the public right-of-way. All agencies must submit their 
maintenance of effort amount and supporting documentation for FY 2007-08, 2008-09, 
2009-10 to demonstrate MOE for those three fiscal years before receiving Measure T 
revenues.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

Is there a fiscal impact? No  

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

The Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee (ITOC) is required by Measure T to 
review the minimum MOE for each jurisdiction.   

To meet the maintenance of effort requirements, each jurisdiction submitted its FY 2007-
08, FY 2008-09, and FY 2009-10 3-year average MOE documentation when submitting 
its five year proposed project list and related materials to validate expenditures.  
Thereafter, each jurisdiction will submit its annual MOE certification report and audit.  

62

mailto:dschmitz@nvta.ca.gov


ITOC Agenda Letter                      Wednesday April 4, 2018 
Agenda Item 6.7 

Page 2 of 2 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Jurisdictions that have included expenditures that are not deemed Measure T relevant 
have explained and isolated those expenditures from calculations that establish that 
jurisdiction’s 3-year average.   
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachment: (1) Jurisdictions’ MOE (amounts and supporting documentation) 

63



 
 

MAINTENANCE OF EFFORT 

Jurisdiction 
FY 

2007/08 
FY  

2008/09 
FY 

2009/2010 
Measure T 

City of American 
Canyon 

$99,626  $0  $9,444  $36,357  

City of Calistoga $465,994  $212,614  $182,396  $287,001  

City of Napa $3,333,292  $3,458,785  $3,357,588  $3,383,221  

County of Napa $0  $2,839,321  $932,000  $1,257,107  

City of St. Helena $261,217  $510,388  $365,963  $379,189  

Town of Yountville $15,932.00  $281,600  $142,500  $215,504  

 

ATTACHMENT 1 
ITOC Agenda Item 6.7 

April 4, 2018 

64



 
 

 

 

 
 

 

City of Calistoga 
Measure T MOE Calculation and Approach Methodology 

 
 
The City of Calistoga determined its Maintenance of Effort (MOE) expenditure by 
identifying General Fund expenditures related to street and sidewalk maintenance 
reflected in the FY Budgets of 2007/08, 2008/09 and 2009/10. The expenditures 
included individual funds for salaries, benefits, services, materials, etc. Using these 
funds allows the City to consistently track expenditures going forward and document 
that we are meeting our MOE requirements.  
 
The Street Funds monitored include: salaries (full-time, part-time and over-time), 
employee benefits, standby and special pay, materials and supplies, contract 
services (tree trimming, sidewalk maintenance and replacement, refuse collection 
and disposal), repair and maintenance, training, uniforms and boots, fuel, health and 
safety equipment, weed and pest control, utilities, equipment rental, vehicle repair 
and replacement, administrative services and capital projects. 
 
In addition to the above monitored funds typical expenditures included:  sidewalk 
repair and elimination of trip hazards, curb, gutter and ADA ramps, street sweeping, 
storm water management, street light maintenance, signing (including radar signs), 
striping, pot hole filling, crack seal, slurry seal, chip seal, asphalt overlay, road 
reconstruction, utility relocation, bike lane and pathway maintenance and 
construction, bridge maintenance and replacement,  
 
The attached spreadsheet reflects the expenditures for each fund and capital 
projects for the three year period (FY 07-10) as required by Measure T.  The average 
of the General Fund expenditures for the Measure T years is $287,001 for Calistoga. 
 
Calistoga is requesting two categories of exclusion.  The first is to exclude outside 
revenues that off-set part of the annual expenditures.  These outside revenues 
include gas tax, fee for services (banner installation), grants (CDBG, Proposition 1B, 
TDA3, TFCA) and tree mitigation fees.  
    
The second is expenditure exclusions associated with one-time expenses or non-
road items. Planning efforts for a previously proposed round-about at Lincoln and 
Silverado Trail ($8,405) and regrading a parking lot at Fair Way Extension ($2,585).    
 
Calistoga respectfully reserves the right to revise the MOE amount if additional 
forensic auditing identifies other expenditures, outside revenues or one-time 
expenses.  

CITY OF CALISTOGA 
Public Works Department 

414 Washington Street  •  Calistoga, CA  94515 
Telephone 707-942-2828 

Fax 707-942-9472 
www.ci.calistoga.ca.us 

 

65



66



	

City Hall: 955 School Street, Napa CA 94559      Mailing Address: P.O. Box 660, Napa CA 94559      (707) 257-9500      www.cityofnapa.org 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M E M O  
 

TO:  NVTA 

FROM:  City of Napa 

DATE: August 1, 2017 

SUBJECT:  Measure T Maintenance of Effort Calculation Methodology 

 

 
 

The	City	of	Napa	computed	its	Maintenance	of	Effort	(MOE)	amount	by	calculating	average	
expenditures	of	the	General	Fund	organizational	keys	related	to	street	and	sidewalk	
maintenance	(listed	below).	The	expenditure	total	for	each	organizational	key	included	all	
expenditure	categories	(salaries,	benefits,	services,	materials,	etc.).	This	methodology	
allows	us	to	easily	track	our	expenditures	going	forward	to	ensure	that	we	continue	to	
meet	our	MOE	requirements.	The	organizational	keys	used	for	the	calculation	are:	Street	
Operations	(including	Stormwater),	Street	Drainage,	Street	Maintenance,	Street	Signing	
and	Striping,	Sidewalk	Replacement,	Electrical	Admin/Overhead,	Street	Lighting	and	
Traffic	Control	Signal	System.	
	
Note	that	the	City	of	Napa	switched	to	a	new	financial	system	between	FY	2008/09	and	
2009/10;	this	causes	some	difficulties	in	translating	between	the	accounts	that	were	in	use	
at	that	time	and	accounts	that	are	in	use	today.	The	“Street	Operations”	organizational	key	
previously	included	the	expenses	that	the	City	now	reports	separately	in	the	“Stormwater	
Operations”	key.	Thus,	while	Stormwater	Operations	does	not	directly	appear	in	the	list	of	
keys	for	the	MOE	calculation,	it	will	be	included	as	part	of	Napa’s	annual	calculation	moving	
forward.	Similarly,	while	“Electrical	Admin	/	Overhead”	first	appears	in	2009/10,	those	
expenses	were	also	previously	included	in	“Street	Operations”.	The	City	intends	to	include	
these	charges	in	the	MOE	calculation	in	the	future	as	well.	
	
 

67



6/30/2017

FY 2007/08 FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10

Street Operations * 1,357,571.04        1,529,133.22        1,155,195.10        

Street Drainage 121,152.43            125,730.27            40,401.07              

Street Maintenance 793,145.64            798,543.24            535,904.25            

Signing and Striping 201,576.28            184,662.48            153,829.97            

Sidewalk Replacement 278,971.17            271,881.05            254,584.84            

Electrical - Admin/Overhead ** n/a n/a 681,438.06            

Electrical - Street Lighting 353,127.45            339,788.08            371,107.64            

Electrical - Traffic Control Signal System 227,747.49            209,046.17            165,127.11            

3,333,291.50        3,458,784.51        3,357,588.04        

Maintenance of Effort 3,383,221.35        

Notes: The City of Napa switched financial systems between FY 2008/09 and FY 2009/10

City of Napa: Measure T Maintenance of Effort Calculation

* Street Operations: Includes Stormwater Operations for these three years. A separate chart of 

accounts code has since been created to track these charges; which will be included in future years 

to count towards meeting the MOE requirement.

** Electrical - Admin/Overhead: In the old financial system, these charges were included in Street 

Operations. A separate chart of accounts code was created in the new financial system to track 

these charges from FY10 forward.

See associated City of Napa Measure T MOE Descriptor document for descriptions of each 

category calculated herein.

68



69



70



TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

NVTA 

City of St. Helena 
"We will co11duct city affairs on behalf of our citizens 

using an open and creative process." 

City of St. Helena 

August 18, 2017 

Measure T Maintenance of Effort Calculation Methodology 

1480 Main Street 
St. Helena, CA 94574 
Phone (707) 967-2792 
Fax (707) 963-7748 

www.ci.st-hclena.ca.us 

The City of St. Helena expended $379,189.33 on average in local general fund revenues 
for fiscal years 2007 /08, 2008/09 and 2009/10 for local streets and roads maintenance, 
supporting infrastructure within the public-right-of way for pavement sealing, overlays, 
reconstruction, and associated infrastructure, as required, eliminating any local 
revenues expended for the purpose of storm damage repair as verified by an 
independent auditor. 

Typical associated infrastructure for road rehab and maintenance are striping, street 
sweeping, design engineering, access ramps, sidewalks and curbs, signals, safety devices 
and street light replacement. 

If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact me by 
telephone at 707-968-2751 or via email at AMitts@cityofsthelena.org. 

Sincerely, 

April Mitts 
Finance Director 

, 

71



 

Town of Yountville • 6550 Yount Street • Yountville • California • 94599  
Telephone (707) 944-8851 • FAX (707) 944-9619 

 

 
 

Town of Yountville  
Measure T MOE Calculation and Approach Methodology 

 

The Town of Yountville assembled the attached Measure T MOE calculation using budgets from 
the three year period as required by the Measure T Ordinance. The MOE for the three year 
period is $215,504.00 
 
In the FY 2007/08 period the only exclusions were for Gas tax contributions and the bike path 
construction. There were no additonal exceptions or one-time allocations. 
 
In the FY 2008/09 period again the exclusions are used for Gas Tax or Federal Stimulus Grant 
Funds. In addition there was a onetime allocation for ST-51 Finnell Bridge Repairs. This project 
was initiated due to damage to the bridge caused by a vehicle accident. The funds for this work 
came via insurance payment. 
 
In the FY 2009/10 period we again used Gas Tax, Fed Stimulus funds, and a contribution from a 
development for exclusions to our calculations. We also took a one-time allocation to remove 
and replace an old railroad tie curb system in mid-town under project CP-32 Mid Town Drainage 
and removal of rail ties as curbing. The Town removed the last of the railroad ties in the last FY, 
and as such this project is now finished. The town also finished the Finnell Street Bridge project 
carried over to construction from the previous year. 
 
Typical lists of projects undertaken by the Town of Yountville:  
 
A variety of street rehabilitation including but not limited to, Slurry seal, Micro-surfacing, 
Overlay, reconstruction. 
Streetlights repair and replace 
Sidewalk, Curb, and Gutter remediate, remove, and replace. This includes ADA ramps as 
required by law. 
Bike and Pedestrian path treatments – includes crack seal, slurry seal, overlay, reconstruct, and 
remove and replace with a variety of materials including AC, and concrete. 
Urban forest management – in the ROW includes trimming, removal, and re-planting of 
vegetation in the ROW. 
Traffic Calming measures- speed humps, bulb outs, radar feedback signs and a variety of traffic 
control devices and materials to help create safe travel ways, and paths. 
Drainage improvements to remediate or eliminate traffic hazards in the right of way. 
Bridges in the ROW- repair and replace various components of the bridge and bridge systems. 
MUTCD and town required markings and signs in the ROW. 
 
 

72



Town of Yountville - Measure T for FY 2007/08, FY 2008/09

2007/08 Special Projects/CIPs per 

2010/11 Budget

Actual Other 

Funding 

Source

Other 

Funding 

Amount

Notes Measure T 

Fund 

Contribution

General street maintenance Force account $141,302 Force Account $141,302

Street lighting $24,300 Utility billing $0

Street lighting $581 Street lighting $581 $0

Dues $500 Dues $500 $0

Street Maintenance $6,040 Street Maintenance $6,040 $0

Street Maintenance $7,797 $7,797

Dump truck purchase $24,300

One-time allocation 

(*1) $0

ST-26 Washington street improvements $28,954

Washington street 

improvements $28,954 $0

ST-48 Finnell road $800 Finnell road $800 $0

ST-04 Street overlay and slurry seal $72,749

Street overlay and slurry 

seal $72,749 $0

ST-02 Bike paths - Construction of pedestrian 

ways and bikepaths $4,787 New construction $0

ST-05 Traffic calming study $4,072 $4,072

DF-14 Stormwater Management Program - 

Construction of storm drains $28,696 Measure A $0

ST-13 Pedestrian Pathways - Construction of 

pedestrian ways and bikepaths $7,076 $7,076

CP-12 Street tree, sidewalk, pavement repairs $46,414 $46,414
Total = $398,368 $109,624 $0 $206,661

2008/09 Special Projects/CIPs per 

2010/11 Budget

Actual Other 

Funding 

Source

Other 

Funding 

Amount

Notes Measure T 

Fund 

Contribution

Street maintenance $5,185 Street maintenance $5,185 $0

Utilities $493 Utilities $493 $0

PVT study $24,243 Fed stim funds $0

ST-04 Slurry seal program $39,520 ST-04 Slurry seal program $39,520 $0

ST-01 Pavement management program $257,465 ST-04 Street Resurfacing $257,465 $0

ST-02 Bike Paths $17,613 $17,613

Gas Tax CIP Contributions

Gas Tax CIP Contributions

H:\NVTA - TA\Agendas\Agendas 18 - NVTA - TA\ITOC\AgItems 04 04\6.7_Jurisdictions' MOE Attch 1 MOE Youtnville 09-10 08-09 and 07-08.xlsx73



ST-03 Hwy 29 Bike Path $34,663

ST-03 Hwy 29 

Bike Path 

Federal grant $34,663 $0

ST-51 Finnell bridge enhancements $29,215 Insurance repair

One-time allocation 

(*1) $0

DF-17 Hopper creek restoration $34,093 Measure A $0

DF-14 Town wide storm drains $154,151 Measure A $0

ST-13 Pedestrian paths $51,533 $51,533

General street maintenance $180,220 Force Account $180,220

Street lighting $24,362 Utility billing $0
Total = $852,756 $302,663 $34,663 $249,366

2009/10 Special Projects/CIPs per 

2011/12 Budget

Actual Other 

Funding 

Source

Other 

Funding 

Amount

Notes Measure T 

Fund 

Contribution

ST-01 Pavement Management Program $46,871

ST-01 Pavement 

Management Program $46,871 $0

Utilities $617 Utilities $617 $0

CP32 Mid-Town Pedestrian & Drainage. 

Removal of wood railroad ties as curbing. $364,843

Whistle Stop 

$20,000. PG&E 

$10,614. $30,614

One-time allocation 

(*1) $0

ST-0001 ST03 Hwy 29 Bike Path - Federal 

Stimulus Grant $235,010

Federal Stimulus 

Grant $235,010

One-time allocation 

(*1) $0

ST-51 Finnell Bridge $98,001 $98,001

Insurance 

settlement $0

DF-17 Hopper Creek Restoration $30,115 Measure A $0

ST-05 Traffic Calming Study $683 $683

Street Maintenance $190,486 Force Account $190,486

Purchase power street lights $22,001 Utility billing $0
Total = $988,627 $145,489 $265,624 $190,486

Average for FY2007/08, FY2008/09, 

and FY2009/10 $215,504

* Note:

1) One-time allocations that have been expended for Local Streets and Roads Maintenance,

but which may not be available on an ongoing basis shall not be considered when calculating

an Agency’s annual maintenance of effort. 

Gas Tax CIP Contributions

H:\NVTA - TA\Agendas\Agendas 18 - NVTA - TA\ITOC\AgItems 04 04\6.7_Jurisdictions' MOE Attch 1 MOE Youtnville 09-10 08-09 and 07-08.xlsx74



April 4, 2018 
ITOC Agenda Item 6.8 
Continued From: New 

Action Requested: INFORMATION 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY-Tax Agency 
ITOC Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 

REPORT BY: Kate Miller, Executive Director 
(707) 259-8634 / Email: kmiller@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Pavement Management 101 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee (ITOC) receive an overview of the 
process and methodology for prioritizing pavement maintenance.   

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This memo is intended to provide an overview of standard road maintenance practices. 
In general, the idea is to maintain existing roads to delay or avoid the need for major 
rehabilitation.  This requires that jurisdiction will frequently prioritize routine maintenance 
over roads that require major rehabilitation or reconstruction.  Applications like crack seal 
and fog seal are frequently used to maintain street surfaces because the practice is 
relatively inexpensive and helps maintain roadways in a state of good repair.  Filling 
potholes and minor repaving also works to stave of major rehabilitation but is more costly. 

PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 

1. Staff Report
2. Public Comment

FISCAL IMPACT 

Is there a Fiscal Impact? No. 

75

mailto:kmiller@nvta.ca.gov


ITOC Agenda Letter                     Wednesday, April 4, 2018 
Agenda Item 6.8 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
It may seem counterintuitive but fixing the worst roads first is not the best approach for 
improving the overall condition of a jurisdiction’s streets and roads.  Roads that are in the 
worst condition take on average five to ten times more financial resources to repair than 
roads that are regularly maintained.  Said another way, the financial resources used to 
repair a road that is in very poor condition diverts scarce funding away from a greater 
number of roads in the rest of the system.   
 
To aid jurisdictions in bringing their road condition to a reasonably good state of repair, 
the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) developed StreetSaver® as a tool to 
rate road systems and to ensure investments are prioritized in an optimum way.  Chart A 
below illustrates cost factors associated with delayed maintenance and how routine 
investments in pavement can reduce overall maintenance costs. 
 
Chart A 

 
 
Each year, MTC produces a Bay Area-wide report titled Pavement Condition of Bay Area 
Jurisdictions which rates the road conditions of all jurisdictions using five broad ratings:  
Very Good (pavement condition index (PCI) of 80-89), Good (PCI 70-79), Fair (PCI 60-
69), At Risk (PCI  50-59) and Poor (PCI 25-49).  The ratings are a compilation of a 
jurisdiction’s road assessment and specific investments (road treatments) for various road 
types.  In a nutshell, StreetSaver® helps cities and counties allocate resources by 
predicting the future condition of their pavement at different levels of funding.  It helps 
jurisdictions prioritize road segments and road treatments strategically so that the 
maintenance of the entire system is optimized given a jurisdictions financial constraints.   

76



ITOC Agenda Letter                     Wednesday, April 4, 2018 
Agenda Item 6.8 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 
The City of Napa used the chart below (Chart A) to illustrate what occurs when routine 
maintenance is ignored in its City.  The chart suggests that major rehab can be delayed 
if regular maintenance practices are used to maintain roads. 
 

 
 
Since not all Cities and Counties are the same, jurisdictions do not always follow the exact 
prescribed techniques recommended by StreetSaver® but they generally abide by similar 
principles.   
 
Measure T will certainly aid in bringing Napa Valley’s roads to an improved state of good 
repair. Nevertheless, modeling the amount of revenues that Measure T will generate will 
not result in addressing all of the deferred maintenance but it will go a long way to help 
the jurisdictions keep up with current maintenance.   
 
A copy of the 2016 Pavement Condition of Bay Area Jurisdictions is included as 
Attachment 1 to this memo. 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachment 1:  2016 Pavement Condition of Bay Area Jurisdictions 

77



Pavement Condition  
Of Bay Area Jurisdictions 
2016

ATTACHMENT 1
ITOC Agenda Item 6.8

April 4, 2018

78



Pavement Condition Index (PCI) for Bay Area Jurisdictions, 2016  
3-Year Moving Average*

Jurisdiction County
Total  

Lane Miles 2014 2015 2016

Very Good (PCI= 80–89)
Dublin Alameda  276.5 86 85 85

El Cerrito Contra Costa  145.3 84 84 84

Brentwood Contra Costa  419.5 86 85 84

Colma San Mateo  24.2 78 83 84

Clayton Contra Costa  94.2 80 81 83

Union City Alameda  328.7 81 81 82

Foster City San Mateo  119.9 81 82 82

Palo Alto Santa Clara  414.5 78 79 81

San Ramon Contra Costa  488.4 78 80 80

Solano County —  925.4 77 79 80

Good (PCI=70–79)
Emeryville Alameda  47.0 76 78 79

Portola Valley San Mateo  70.1 80 79 79

Daly City San Mateo  255.0 77 77 79

Lafayette Contra Costa  199.4 76 77 79

Pleasanton Alameda  511.3 78 79 78

Redwood City San Mateo  353.6 77 78 78

Los Altos Hills Santa Clara  119.8 76 77 78

Brisbane San Mateo  67.2 77 76 77

Belvedere Marin  23.4 80 79 77

Atherton San Mateo  105.8 79 78 77

Livermore Alameda  710.6 76 77 76

Sunnyvale Santa Clara  637.4 77 77 76

San Pablo Contra Costa  103.5 77 77 76

Burlingame San Mateo  162.3 75 77 76

San Mateo San Mateo  417.9 74 75 76

Newark Alameda  254.6 76 76 76

Oakley Contra Costa  277.7 75 75 76

Windsor Sonoma  170.7 70 73 75

Tiburon Marin  68.1 74 74 75

* For annual (non-averaged) PCI scores, please contact MTC. MTC in 2016 implemented an improved ASTM D6433 pavement rating standard. Under 
the previous standard, data for 2015 indicated a half-point increase in the region's average PCI score; under the new standard, 2016 data indicate 
an additional half-point increase. 79



Pavement Condition Index (PCI) for Bay Area Jurisdictions, 2016 (continued)

Danville Contra Costa  323.4 73 74 75

Menlo Park San Mateo  195.5 77 76 74

Yountville Napa  16.5 69 71 74

Santa Clara Santa Clara  589.8 74 73 73

South San Francisco San Mateo  293.2 71 73 73

Woodside San Mateo  96.0 71 72 73

Los Altos Santa Clara  227.0 78 76 73

Milpitas Santa Clara  298.2 72 72 73

Hillsborough San Mateo  166.4 72 71 73

Sonoma Sonoma  68.2 70 72 73

Ross Marin  22.0 72 72 72

Walnut Creek Contra Costa  435.0 71 71 72

Contra Costa County —  1,326.5 70 71 72

Fairfield Solano  742.0 71 71 72

San Mateo County —  623.2 70 70 72

Cupertino Santa Clara  297.5 65 67 72

Alameda County —  993.4 71 71 71

Mountain View Santa Clara  332.1 72 70 71

Hercules Contra Costa  122.3 72 71 71

Rohnert Park Sonoma  228.3 68 69 71

Fremont Alameda  1,073.0 66 69 71

Alameda Alameda  275.9 67 69 71

Novato Marin  318.5 70 70 70

Campbell Santa Clara  229.8 73 72 70

Fair (PCI= 60–69)
Vacaville Solano  616.0 69 69 69

Pittsburg Contra Costa  342.9 65 67 69

American Canyon Napa  111.9 67 69 69

Dixon Solano  130.2 75 72 69

Santa Clara County —  1,427.0 72 70 69

Morgan Hill Santa Clara  282.2 71 68 69

Corte Madera Marin  71.2 69 68 69

3-Year Moving Average*

Jurisdiction County
Total  

Lane Miles 2014 2015 2016

* For annual (non-averaged) PCI scores, please contact MTC. MTC in 2016 implemented an improved ASTM D6433 pavement rating standard. Under 
the previous standard, data for 2015 indicated a half-point increase in the region's average PCI score; under the new standard, 2016 data indicate 
an additional half-point increase. 80



Hayward Alameda  654.9 67 67 68

San Francisco —  2,141.6 66 67 68

Saratoga Santa Clara  282.9 70 67 68

Gilroy Santa Clara  269.5 73 69 68

Pinole Contra Costa  118.2 67 67 68

San Rafael Marin  331.1 69 68 67

Napa Napa  464.3 64 66 67

Antioch Contra Costa  680.2 67 66 67

Moraga Contra Costa  110.4 58 64 67

Los Gatos Santa Clara  230.1 70 68 67

Pleasant Hill Contra Costa  224.3 65 65 66

Half Moon Bay San Mateo  55.4 63 67 66

Sausalito Marin  58.0 65 66 65

San Bruno San Mateo  180.5 62 65 64

Fairfax Marin  54.7 65 65 64

East Palo Alto San Mateo  83.1 58 58 63

Piedmont Alameda  77.6 67 65 62

Monte Sereno Santa Clara  26.8 65 63 62

San Jose Santa Clara  4,313.7 62 62 62

San Anselmo Marin  81.4 59 60 62

Marin County —  845.0 59 60 62

Healdsburg Sonoma  93.2 60 61 61

San Carlos San Mateo  175.1 60 59 61

Richmond Contra Costa  571.1 64 63 61

Mill Valley Marin  115.9 58 60 61

Cloverdale Sonoma  64.6 63 62 61

Santa Rosa Sonoma  1,099.8 62 61 60

Concord Contra Costa  716.7 62 61 60

Pavement Condition Index (PCI) for Bay Area Jurisdictions, 2016 (continued)

3-Year Moving Average*

Jurisdiction County
Total  

Lane Miles 2014 2015 2016

* For annual (non-averaged) PCI scores, please contact MTC. MTC in 2016 implemented an improved ASTM D6433 pavement rating standard. Under 
the previous standard, data for 2015 indicated a half-point increase in the region's average PCI score; under the new standard, 2016 data indicate 
an additional half-point increase. 81



Pavement Condition Index (PCI) for Bay Area Jurisdictions, 2016 (continued)

3-Year Moving Average*

Jurisdiction County
Total  

Lane Miles 2014 2015 2016

* For annual (non-averaged) PCI scores, please contact MTC. MTC in 2016 implemented an improved ASTM D6433 pavement rating standard. Under 
the previous standard, data for 2015 indicated a half-point increase in the region's average PCI score; under the new standard, 2016 data indicate 
an additional half-point increase.

At Risk (PCI=50–59)
Albany Alameda  58.4 56 57 59

Sebastopol Sonoma  47.5 62 60 58

Suisun City Solano  152.5 59 55 58

Berkeley Alameda  453.7 58 58 58

Rio Vista Solano  46.0 57 57 56

San Leandro Alameda  393.6 57 56 56

Benicia Solano  195.8 59 57 56

Oakland Alameda  2,023.1 58 57 56

St Helena Napa  51.5 45 50 55

Belmont San Mateo  137.7 56 55 54

Pacifica San Mateo  186.1 56 55 54

Orinda Contra Costa  193.3 49 49 54

Calistoga Napa  31.1 55 54 52

Cotati Sonoma  47.9 55 53 52

Millbrae San Mateo  121.5 56 54 52

Napa County —  838.0 56 53 52

Vallejo Solano  714.5 47 49 51

Poor (PCI=25–49)
Sonoma County —  2,706.1 45 47 49

Martinez Contra Costa  232.6 56 52 48

Petaluma Sonoma  396.3 45 46 46

Larkspur Marin  66.0 40 39 41

Bay Area  43,280 66 66 67

82



Figure 1: Bay Area Local Roadways by Condition Category 
Lane Miles of Local Street & Road Pavement

  Excellent  Very Good  Good   Fair   At-Risk   Poor   Failed   No 
Data 

Totals 
Annual

Weighted
Avg PCI 

 
  PCI=90–100  PCI=80–89  PCI=70–79  PCI=60–69  PCI=50–59  PCI=25–49  PCI=0–24 

Bay Area  4,301  10,374  8,975  5,671  4,170  6,837  2,900  53   42,281 
67 

Percent  10.0%  24.0%  20.7%  13.1%  9.6%  15.8%  6.7%  0.1%  100% 

Aggregate City and County PCI for Bay Area Counties, 2016  
3-Year Moving Average*

Jurisdiction
Total  

Lane Miles 2014 2015 2016

Good (PCI= 70–79)
San Mateo County  3,890  70 70 71

Contra Costa County  7,125  69 69 70

Fair (PCI= 60–69)
Alameda County  8,132  68 68 68

San Francisco County  2,142  66 67 68

Santa Clara County  9,978  68 68 68

Solano County  3,522  64 65 66

Marin County  2,055  64 64 65

At Risk (PCI=50–59)
Napa County  1,513  60 59 59

Sonoma County  4,922  54 55 55

* For annual (non-averaged) PCI scores, please contact MTC. MTC in 2016 implemented an improved ASTM D6433 pavement 
rating standard. Under the previous standard, data for 2015 indicated a half-point increase in the region's average PCI 
score; under the new standard, 2016 data indicate an additional half-point increase.

83



Figure 2: Year-Over-Year Comparison of Local Roadway Conditions 

34%

35%

33%

32%

31%

31%

32%

31%

34%

31%

32%

34%

34%

35%

35%

34%

35%

34%

10%

10%

11%

11%

11%

11%

10%

10%

10%

25%

22%

21%

23%

23%

23%

23%

23%

22%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

2006

2007

2008/09

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

34% 34% 10% 23%2016

Pavement Conditions for Local Roadways, 
2006–2016 (Lane Miles)

Excellent or Very Good Good or Fair At Risk Poor or Failed No Data

 
 

Year

Weighted
PCI

2008/09 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 20162015

66 66 66 66 66 66 67 67

Regional Weighted PCI (Network)

84



April 4, 2018 
ITOC Agenda Item 6.9 
Continued From: New 

Action Requested: RECOMMENDATION 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
ITOC Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:     Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee 

FROM:    Kate Miller, Executive Director 

REPORT BY: Danielle Schmitz, Director – Projects, Programs and Planning 
(707) 259-5968 | dschmitz@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Jurisdictions’ Five-Year Project Lists 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the ITOC make a finding that the projects lists are consistent with the intent of the 
measure and make a recommendation on which of the items on those project lists should 
be approved to the Authority.    

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee (ITOC) is required by Measure T to 
review the minimum maintenance of effort, and the 5-year project lists developed by 
NVTA in coordination with the jurisdictions.  The 5-year list will include proposed projects 
for each jurisdiction funded by Measure T.  Once reviewed by the ITOC the project lists 
will go before the NVTA-TA Board for approval.   

Jurisdictions will present their 5-year project lists to the ITOC and answer any questions 
the ITOC may have.   

FISCAL IMPACT 

Is there a fiscal impact? No 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

On November 6, 2012, the voters in Napa County approved Measure T, the Napa 
Countywide Road Maintenance Act.  Measure T is a ½% sales tax expected to generate 
over $400 million over a 25-year period beginning July 1, 2018, when the Measure A 
Flood Tax expires.  The revenues allocated to each Agency under the Measure T 
Ordinance must be used for maintenance, reconstruction or rehabilitation of local streets, 
roads, and infrastructure within the public right-of-way. NVTA in coordination with the six 
(6) jurisdictions eligible to receive Measure T developed a list of eligible project

85

mailto:dschmitz@nvta.ca.gov


ITOC Agenda Letter                      Wednesday April 4, 2018 
Agenda Item 6.9 

Page 2 of 2 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
categories.  Attachment 1 is a universal list of eligible road maintenance and rehabilitation 
project that have been identified to date.  Because code upgrades are specifically 
included in the ordinance, the eligible project list is likely to grow.  Other project categories 
are likely to be added from time to time as specific issues arise.  NVTA staff will brief 
ITOC on any changes to the list. 
 
The Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee (ITOC) is required by Measure T to 
review the 5-year projects lists for each jurisdiction. The 5-year project lists will include 
proposed projects for each jurisdiction funded by Measure T.  Specifically, the measure 
states: 
 

SECTION 7.  PROJECT PROGRAMMING APPROVAL: Prior to the operative date of 
the tax, and biennially thereafter, the Authority shall approve a five-year list of projects 
eligible to be funded with the revenues made available under Section 3 herein, 
provided that the submittal meets all of the requirements of this Ordinance and funding 
is, or is estimated to be, available.  Prior to Authority approval, the Independent 
Taxpayer Oversight Committee shall consider each Agency’s biennial five-year list of 
projects and make a finding that such projects are consistent with the intent of the 
measure, and make a recommendation on which of the items on those project lists 
should be approved to the Authority. 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachment(s): (1) City of American Canyon Five-Year Project List  
                          (2) City of Napa Five-Year Project List 
                          (3) County of Napa Five-Year Project List  
                          (4) Town of Yountville Five-Year Project List  
                          (5) City of St. Helena Five-Year Project List  
                          (6) City of Calistoga Five-Year Project List 
                          (7) Measure T Examples of Eligible Project Expenses   
                          (8) Measure T Project Progress Report 

86



Measure T  Napa Countywide Road Maintenance Active Five-Year List of Projects

Project Submittal Form

Jurisdiction Name:

Primary Contract #1 Email: jholley@cityofamericancanyon.orgPhone: 7076474351

Secondary Contract #2 Email: shartwig@cityofamericancanyon.orgPhone: 7076474366

Email: cbraulik@cityofamericancanyon.orgPhone: 7076474588

Maintenance of Effort (MOE)

Please provide the certified MOE amount of the jurisdiction: $36,357

Planned Measure T Expenditures

Program Year Total Cost Measure T Other Length Location

Overlay 2018/2019 $129,500 900

Overlay 2018/2019 $35,903 250

Overlay 2019/2020 $373,389 2600

Overlay 2018/2019 $17,864 264

Overlay 2018/2019 $176,250 1500

Overlay 2018/2019 $57,288 792

Overlay 2018/2019 $99,638 1294

Overlay 2018/2019 $21,450 317

Overlay 2018/2019 $17,864 264

Overlay 2018/2019 $134,365 1745

Overlay 2018/2019 $17,864 264

Overlay 2018/2019 $21,383 316

Overlay 2018/2019 $17,864 264

Reconstruct 2018/2019 $167,958 894

Reconstruct 2018/2019 $175,522 903

Surface Treatment 2019/2020 $2,506 216

Surface Treatment 2019/2020 $5,162 445

Surface Treatment 2019/2020 $5,417 467

Surface Treatment 2019/2020 $5,478 500

Surface Treatment 2019/2020 $2,262 195

Surface Treatment 2019/2020 $39,208 3380

Surface Treatment 2019/2020 $22,852 1970

Surface Treatment 2019/2020 $17,835 1628

Surface Treatment 2019/2020 $2,520 230

Surface Treatment 2019/2020 $19,677 1796

Surface Treatment 2019/2020 $5,368 490

Surface Treatment 2019/2020 $2,401 207

Surface Treatment 2019/2020 $13,294 1146

Surface Treatment 2019/2020 $4,176 360

Surface Treatment 2019/2020 $5,478 500

Surface Treatment 2019/2020 $9,860 900

Surface Treatment 2019/2020 $5,150 470

Surface Treatment 2019/2020 $1,566 135

Surface Treatment 2019/2020 $2,848 260

Surface Treatment 2019/2020 $3,631 313

Surface Treatment 2019/2020 $8,964 732

Surface Treatment 2019/2020 $12,470 1075

Surface Treatment 2019/2020 $8,216 750

Overlay 2019/2020 $35,728 528

Overlay 2019/2020 $152,155 560

Overlay 2019/2020 $70,187 468

Overlay 2019/2020 $41,548 1214

Overlay 2019/2020 $81,312 1056

Overlay 2019/2020 $81,312 1056

Overlay 2019/2020 $272,600 2900

Overlay 2019/2020 $166,286 2196

Overlay 2019/2020 $40,656 528

Overlay 2019/2020 $106,260 720

Overlay 2019/2020 $48,246 667

Overlay 2019/2020 $82,652 833

Overlay 2019/2020 $44,660 580

Overlay 2019/2020 $45,481 629

Overlay 2019/2020 $64,811 896

Surface Treatment 2020/2021 $6,682 576

Surface Treatment 2020/2021 $3,364 290

Surface Treatment 2020/2021 $3,396 310

Surface Treatment 2020/2021 $3,167 289

Surface Treatment 2020/2021 $3,178 290

Surface Treatment 2020/2021 $1,868 161

Surface Treatment 2020/2021 $2,662 243

Surface Treatment 2020/2021 $15,776 1440

Surface Treatment 2020/2021 $7,610 656

Surface Treatment 2020/2021 $9,677 910

Strand Court

James Road - Crawford to Donaldson

James Road - W AmCan to Crawford

Aranda Court 

Barcelona Drive

Jason Holley

City of American Canyon

Steve Hartwig

Please note:   Eligible expenses include local streets and roads maintenance and supporting infrastructure within the public right of way 

including, but  not limited to pavement, sealing, overlays, reconstruction, associated infrastructure, as required, excluding any local revenues 

expended for the pupose of storm damage repair as verified by an independent auditor.  One time allocations that have been expended for 

local streets and road maintenance, but which may not be available on an ongoing basis shall not be considered when calculating an Agency's 

annual maintenance of effort.

Cheryl Braulik
Staff Member Completing LS&R 

State Controller Report:

Please provide 5 year planned streets and road maintenance projects beginning in FY  2018-19 (add more lines as needed). Per  the Measure T Expenditure Plan, a Project  is a 

single effort with a beginning and an end that would cause the construciton or maintenance or reconstruction of some tangible portion of a transportation asset owned or operated 

by public agency that has indepdependent utility.  A project is not repeated on an annual basis, it does not appear without a detailed description as to cost and location in a local 

agency budget, and it must appear in a capital budget.  Project numbers will be assigned by NVTA-TA.

Project Description

Mill and Overlay

Mill and Overlay

Mill and Overlay

Mill and Overlay

Mill and Overlay

Mill and Overlay

Mill and Overlay

Mill and Overlay

Mill and Overlay

Mill and Overlay

Mill and Overlay

Mill and Overlay

Mill and Overlay

Slurry Seal

Slurry Seal

Slurry Seal

Slurry Seal

Slurry Seal

Reconstruct, pedestrian and bicycle improvements

Reconstruct, pedestrian and bicycle improvements

Slurry Seal

Slurry Seal

Slurry Seal

Slurry Seal

Slurry Seal

Slurry Seal

Slurry Seal

Slurry Seal

Slurry Seal

Slurry Seal

Slurry Seal

Slurry Seal

Slurry Seal

Mill and Overlay

Mill and Overlay

Mill and Overlay

Mill and Overlay

Mill and Overlay

Slurry Seal

Slurry Seal

Slurry Seal

Slurry Seal

Slurry Seal

Mill and Overlay

Mill and Overlay

Mill and Overlay

Mill and Overlay

Mill and Overlay

Mill and Overlay

Mill and Overlay

Mill and Overlay

Mill and Overlay

Mill and Overlay

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

AmCan Rd East - SR29 to Bridge

AmCan Rd East - Flosden Intx

AmCan Rd East - Bridge to Flosden Intx

Arden Court 

Chaucer Lane - W Amcan to Benton

Kensington Way - E end to Chaucer

Knightsbridge Way - Elliott to Danrose

Lansford Court

Linwood Lane

Northampton Drive - Elliott to Danrose

Park Lane

Regent Court

Goldfinch Drive

Highridge Court

Highridge Drive

Hillcrest Court

Independence Court

Catalonia Drive

Condor Court

Eisenhower Court

Entrada Circle

Ford Drive

Palencia Court

Starling Court

Truman Court

Ventana Drive - Broadway to Highridge

Ventana Drive - Highridge to Independence

Independence Drive

Marbella Court

Mockingbird Drive

Montevino Drive

Oriole Court

Blanco Street

Brophy Street

Cartagena Way

Chaucer Lane - S. End to W Amcan Rd

Corsicana Drive

Vine Terrace Way

Banbury Way

Benton Way - Hummingbird to Huntington

Benton Way - Hummingbird to Wetlands

Benton Way - Huntington to Elliott

Northampton Drive - Chaucer to Elliott

Bettona Way

Blue Elder Court

Bresso Court

Carrara Court

Donaldson Way - Euclayptus to 1060 Donaldson 

Elke Drive

Elliott Drive - Kimberly to Folland

Folland Drive - Danrose to Corbin

Gisela Drive - Donaldson to Rio del Mar

Knightsbridge - Chaucer  to Elliott

Chaucer to W end (NM #7)

Bullrush Court

Gull Court

Hummingbird Way

Kensington Way - Chaucer to Wetlands Edge

ATTACHMENT 
 ITOC Agenda Item 6.9

April 4, 2018

87

mailto:jholley@cityofamericancanyon.org
mailto:shartwig@cityofamericancanyon.org
mailto:cbraulik@cityofamericancanyon.org


Surface Treatment 2020/2021 $4,870 458

Surface Treatment 2020/2021 $9,676 910

Surface Treatment 2020/2021 $2,662 243

Surface Treatment 2020/2021 $1,624 140

Surface Treatment 2020/2021 $3,506 320

Surface Treatment 2020/2021 $3,177 290

Surface Treatment 2020/2021 $16,971 1549

Surface Treatment 2020/2021 $20,578 1774

Surface Treatment 2020/2021 $3,480 300

Surface Treatment 2020/2021 $23,316 2010

Surface Treatment 2020/2021 $32,538 2805

Surface Treatment 2020/2021 $10,811 932

Surface Treatment 2020/2021 $1,677 137

Surface Treatment 2020/2021 $3,898 336

Overlay 2020/2021 $93,100 1140

Overlay 2020/2021 $19,096 264

Overlay 2020/2021 $19,096 264

Overlay 2020/2021 $20,160 240

Overlay 2020/2021 $142,296 1848

Overlay 2020/2021 $20,328 264

Overlay 2020/2021 $80,243 905

Overlay 2020/2021 $114,680 1464

Reconstruction 2020/2021 $326,278 962

Reconstruction 2020/2021 $241,487 712

Reconstruction 2020/2021 $156,695 462

Reconstruction 2020/2021 $37,004 264

Reconstruction 2020/2021 $218,550 940

Reconstruction 2020/2021 $74,008 528

Surface Treatment 2021/2022 $4,640 400

Surface Treatment 2021/2022 $5,800 500

Surface Treatment 2021/2022 $8,514 734

Surface Treatment 2021/2022 $7,569 691

Surface Treatment 2021/2022 $1,644 150

Surface Treatment 2021/2022 $7,604 694

Surface Treatment 2021/2022 $8,282 714

Surface Treatment 2021/2022 $13,746 1185

Surface Treatment 2021/2022 $9,628 830

Surface Treatment 2021/2022 $2,146 185

Surface Treatment 2021/2022 $1,644 150

Surface Treatment 2021/2022 $12,110 1044

Surface Treatment 2021/2022 $21,692 1870

Surface Treatment 2021/2022 $10,869 937

Surface Treatment 2021/2022 $9,068 938

Surface Treatment 2021/2022 $10,869 992

Surface Treatment 2021/2022 $13,572 1170

Surface Treatment 2021/2022 $16,820 1450

Surface Treatment 2021/2022 $5,220 450

Surface Treatment 2021/2022 $11,368 980

Overlay 2021/2022 $105,840 672

Overlay 2021/2022 $162,440 992

Overlay 2021/2022 $278,630 2015

Overlay 2021/2022 $108,351 1092

Overlay 2021/2022 $337,773 3696

Overlay 2021/2022 $18,480 264

Overlay 2021/2022 $38,192 528

Overlay 2021/2022 $155,232 1848

Reconstruction 2021/2022 $327,360 2640

Surface Treatment 2022/2023 $2,436 210

Surface Treatment 2022/2023 $3,364 290

Surface Treatment 2022/2023 $3,828 330

Surface Treatment 2022/2023 $19,094 1646

Surface Treatment 2022/2023 $2,796 241

Surface Treatment 2022/2023 $3,283 283

Surface Treatment 2022/2023 $18,563 1516

Surface Treatment 2022/2023 $8,526 735

Surface Treatment 2022/2023 $5,626 485

Surface Treatment 2022/2023 $9,280 800

Surface Treatment 2022/2023 $9,199 793

Surface Treatment 2022/2023 $14,639 1262

Surface Treatment 2022/2023 $16,762 1445

Surface Treatment 2022/2023 $8,410 725

Surface Treatment 2022/2023 $1,546 120

Surface Treatment 2022/2023 $3,721 251

Surface Treatment 2022/2023 $9,744 840

Surface Treatment 2022/2023 $14,558 1255

Surface Treatment 2022/2023 $9,512 820

Surface Treatment 2022/2023 $3,596 310

Surface Treatment 2022/2023 $7,030 606

Surface Treatment 2022/2023 $20,080 1731

Surface Treatment 2022/2023 $13,549 1168

Overlay 2022/2023 $177,100 2300

Overlay 2022/2023 $141,000 1800

Overlay 2022/2023 $183,822 3200

Reconstruction 2022/2023 $159,030 1041

Reconstruction 2022/2023 $204,383 810

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Mill and overlay

Mill and overlay

Mill and overlay

Mill and overlay

Mill and overlay

Mill and overlay

Mill and overlay

Mill and overlay

Reconstruct, drainage improvements, curb and gutter

Reconstruct, drainage improvements, curb and gutter

Reconstruct, drainage improvements, curb and gutter

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Mill and overlay

Mill and overlay

Mill and overlay

Mill and overlay

Mill and overlay

Mill and overlay

Mill and overlay

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Mill and overlay

Mill and overlay

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Reconstruct

Reconstruct

Reconstruct

Reconstruct

Reconstruct

Mill and overlay, curb and gutter

Reconstruct surface

Slurry seal

Slurry seal

Mill and overlay

Knightsbridge- W. End to Chaucer

Knightsbridge Way - Chaucer to Elliott

Lark Court

Northampton Drive - Chaucer to San Marco Way

San Marco Way

Spikerush Circle

Vinci Way

W. Carolyn Drive - Rio Grande to Spikerush Cir

Water Fern Court

Northrup Lane - W end to 140'

Northrup Lane - Chaucer to W end (NM #7)

Peacock Circle

Red Clover Way

Reedgrass Court

Tyler Court

West Carolyn Drive - Rio Grande to Donaldson

Wetlands Edge Road - Kensington to AmCan

Andrew Road - Crawford to Donaldson

Andrew Road - Donaldson to Wilson

Folland Drive - Elliott to Danrose

Kemp Lane

Kemp Way

Marla Drive - Kilpatrick to 240' west 

Marla Drive - Kilpatrick to Blanco

Blue Bell Street

Bufflehead Street

Canyon Meadows Drive

Cattail Court

Cattail Drive

Andrew Road - Thayer to Crawford 

Brixton Court

Donaldson Way - Rio del Mar to Amarillo

Dorchester Place

Black Duck Court

Kimberly Drive - Elliott to Meadow Bay

Marla Drive - Kilpatrick 240' west to Meadow Bay

Marshcreek Drive

Meadow Bay Drive

Poppyfield  Drive

Gadwall Court

Gadwall Street

Goldeneye Court

Greenwing Street

Kimberly Court

Danrose Drive - Knightsbridge to West Amcan

Danrose Drive - Marla to Kimberly

Elliott Drive - Marla to Kimberly

Broadway

Lisa Court

Redhead Street

Ringneck Street

Rio Grande Drive - Carmel to Ringneck

Wood Duck Ct

Danrose Drive - Kimberly to Knightsbridge

Camerino Court

Castellina Circle

Elba Court

Marcello Court

Montecarlo Way

Sheffield Way

Theresa Avenue - Eucalyptus to NJ  Rd

Flosden Road - Am Can Rd to S. City Limits -nb

Biella Court

Brunello Drive

Sarcedo Way

Tolentino Drive

Treviso Court

Verona Drive

Via Firenze

Palestria Drive

Palestrina Court

Pelleria Drive

Pienza Drive

Plazzo Way

Rio Del Mar - Rio Grande to Donaldson

Via Treviso

Carolyn Drive -  225 Carolyn  to Rio del Mar

Wetlands Edge Road - Benton to AmCan 

Wetlands Edge Road - Benton to Euclayptus

Rio Del Mar - Donaldson to Carolyn

Via La Morra

Via Marciana

Via Montalcino

Via Pesaro

Via Pescara

88



Reconstruction 2022/2023 $184,507 528

Reconstruction 2022/2023 $379,867 1056

TOTAL ####### ####### #######

Program Definitions:  

Surface Treatment includes:  slurry seal, fog seal, chip seal, microseal, etc.

Overlay - asphalt resurfacing

Reconstruction - includes in or all components associated with complete reconstruction of the roadway including road bed, widening to meet  complete streets requirements, and paving

Concrete work - includes ramps, sidewalks, curbs,  gutters, and pavement

Drainage  - includes any work required to address water run off and drainage including culverts, etc. associated with a roadway

Safety includes lights, signage, striping, traffic signals and pavement markings

Intelligent Traffic Systems - includes traffic signal interconnects or other systems to improve traffic management/operations and safety on raodways

Note:  The above Program Definitions and listed project types are not all-inclusive. Other project types and/or means and methods may be included in the work plan provided the type of work is consistent with the intent of the 

Measure T Ordinance language.

Note:  Final project list to be determined, depending on available revenues and when revenues become available, but distributed proportionately unless otherwise agreed to as part of a funding exchange proportionately as outlined in 

the Measure T Expenditure Plan.  Prior to any allocation, jurisdictions will  also be required to submit all of the necessary documentation requested above as well as a Resolution of support of the proposed project list.  Requirements 

associated with the Class 1 Bike Facility expenditures to be agreed upon between the jurisdictions and memorialized in resolutions of support by affected jurisdictions.

Reconstruct, drainage improvements, curb and gutter

Reconstruct, drainage improvements, curb and gutter

Thayer Way

Wilson Way

89



EXHIBIT A

Fiscal Year Street Name From To Description of Improvements
Estimated Project 

Cost

1 TROWER AVENUE Hwy 29 Jefferson Street Cold In-place Recycling and Curb Ramps $1,126,000
TROWER AVENUE Dry Creek Road Linda Vista Avenue Curb, Gutter, Sidewalk and Curb Ramps $311,000

TRANCAS STREET Hwy 29 Jefferson Street
HMA Overlay, Curb, Gutter, Sidewalk, Curb 
Ramps, Traffic Signals and Interconnect 
(Trancas/Clairemont)

$1,186,000

MAIN ST/LINCOLN AVE N/A N/A Traffic Signal $391,000

JEFFERSON ST/HAYES ST INTERSECTION N/A N/A Traffic Signals & Interconnect $928,000

WESTWOOD NEIGHBORHOOD PH1 N/A N/A HMA Overlay, Curb, Gutter and Curb Ramps $2,339,000
PROGRAMS (Concrete, Street Lights, Signing/Striping) $1,600,000

Total Estimated Project Costs: $7,881,000

2 TROWER AVENUE Dry Creek Road Linda Vista Avenue Cold in-place Recycling $823,000
TROWER AVENUE Jefferson Street East End (City Limits) Curb, Gutter, Sidewalk and Curb Ramps $192,000

SOSCOL AVENUE Central Avenue LaHoma Drive
HMA Overlay, Curb, Gutter, Sidewalk, Curb 
Ramps and Traffic Signal (Soscol/Pueblo) $2,393,000

WESTWOOD NEIGHBORHOOD PH2A N/A N/A Curb, Gutter and Curb Ramps $2,488,000
(1) TRAFFIC SIGNAL Traffic Signals & Interconnect $474,000
PROGRAMS (Concrete, Street Lights, Signing/Striping) $1,600,000

Total Estimated Project Costs: $7,970,000

3 TROWER AVENUE Jefferson Street East End (City Limits) Cold in-place Recycling $723,000
COOMBS STREET & S. COOMBS 5th street W. Imola Avenue Curb, Gutter, Sidewalk and Curb Ramps $606,000

LAUREL STREET Browns Valley Rd/1st St Foothill Boulevard
HMA Overlay, preventative maintenance, curb 
ramps $1,208,000

LAUREL STREET Foothill Boulevard Homewood Avenue
Cold In-place Recycling, Preventative 
Maintenance, and Curb Ramps $1,087,000

LAUREL STREET Homewood Avenue Hwy 29
HMA Overlay, Preventative Maintenance and 
Curb Ramps $819,000

W. LINCOLN AVE Lone Oak Avenue Solano Avenue/Hwy 29 Preventative Maintenance and Curb Ramps $433,000
WESTWOOD NEIGHBORHOOD PH2B N/A N/A HMA Overlay $660,000
(2) TRAFFIC SIGNAL w/INTERCONNECT $949,000
PROGRAMS (Concrete, Street Lights, Signing/Striping) $1,600,000

Total Estimated Project Costs: $8,085,000

4 BROWNS VALLEY ROAD/1ST STREET Westview Drive Hwy 29 Preventative Maintenance and Curb Ramps $2,510,000
COOMBSVILLE ROAD 3rd St/Silverado Trail Pascale Place Preventative Maintenance and Curb Ramps $526,000
COOMBSVILLE ROAD Pascale Place East End (City Limits) HMA Overlay and Curb Ramps $408,000
COOMBS STREET & S. COOMBS 5th street W. Imola Avenue HMA Overlay $1,082,000
REDWOOD DRIVE Dry Creek Road Carol Drive Cold in-place Recycling and Curb Ramps $1,618,000
(2) TRAFFIC SIGNAL w/INTERCONNECT $949,000
PROGRAMS (Concrete, Street Lights, Signing/Striping) $1,600,000

Total Estimated Project Costs: $8,693,000

5 LINCOLN AVENUE California Boulevard Silverado Trail Preventative Maintenance and Curb Ramps $2,402,000
FREEWAY DRIVE 1st Street Laurel Street Cold in-place Recycling and Curb Ramps $1,215,000
REDWOOD DRIVE West End (City Limits) Dry Creek Road Preventative Maintenance and Curb Ramps $953,000
E. IMOLA AVENUE Soscol Ave (Hwy 121) East End (City Limits) Cold In-Place Recycling and Curb Ramps $1,042,000

W. IMOLA ROAD Foster Road Hwy 29
Cold In-Place Recycling, Curb, Gutter, Sidewalk 
and Curb Ramps $720,000

(2) TRAFFIC SIGNAL w/INTERCONNECT $949,000
PROGRAMS (Concrete, Street Lights, Signing/Striping) $1,600,000

Total Estimated Project Costs: $8,881,000

FY 2022-23

City of Napa
Measure "T", 5-Year Expenditure Plan

FY2018-23

FY 2018-19

FY 2019-20

FY 2020-21

FY 2021-22

ATTACHMENT 2
ITOC Agenda Item 6.9 

April 4, 2018

90



Fiscal Year Street Name From To Description of Improvements Estimated Project Cost

1 TROWER AVENUE Hwy 29 Jefferson Street Cold in-place Recycling and Curb Ramps $1,458,785 

TROWER AVENUE Dry Creek Road Linda Vista Avenue Curb, Gutter, Sidewalk and Curb Ramps $422,133 

TRANCAS STREET Hwy 29 Jefferson Street
HMA Overlay, Curb, Gutter, Sidewalk and Curb Ramps, Traffic 
Signals and Interconnect

$1,383,660 

MAIN ST/LINCOLN AVE INTX N/A N/A Traffic Signals and Interconnect $656,100 

JEFFERSON ST/HAYES ST INTX N/A N/A Traffic Signals and Interconnect $656,100 

WESTWOOD NEIGHBORHOOD PH1 N/A N/A HMA Overlay, Curb, Gutter and Curb Ramps $2,822,870 

Programs (Concrete Only) $1,000,000 

Total Estimated Project Costs: $8,399,648

2 TROWER AVENUE Dry Creek Road Linda Vista Avenue Cold in-place Recycling $1,042,910

TROWER AVENUE Jefferson Street East End (City Limits) Curb, Gutter, Sidewalk and Curb Ramps $253,605

SOSCOL AVENUE Central Avenue LaHoma Drive
HMA Overlay, Curb, Gutter, Sidewalk, Curb Ramps and Traffic 
Signals $1,918,240

WESTWOOD NEIGHBORHOOD PH2A N/A N/A Curb, Gutter and Curb Ramps $3,039,027

PROGRAMS (Concrete, Street Lights, Signing/Striping) $1,400,000
Total Estimated Project Costs: $7,653,782

3 COOMBSVILLE ROAD 3rd St/Silverado Trail Pascale Place Preventative Maintenance and Curb Ramps $641,710

COOMBSVILLE ROAD Pascale Place East End (City Limits) HMA Overlay and Curb Ramps $517,882

TROWER AVENUE Jefferson Street East End (City Limits) Cold in-place Recycling $916,244

COOMBS STREET & S. COOMBS 5th street W. Imola Avenue Curb, Gutter, Sidewalk and Curb Ramps $800,136

WESTWOOD NEIGHBORHOOD PH2B N/A N/A HMA Overlay $796,259

PROGRAMS(EVERYTHING) $2,662,200
Total Estimated Project Costs: $6,334,431

4 BROWNS VALLEY ROAD/1ST STREET Westview Drive Hwy 29 Preventative Maintenance and Curb Ramps $3,060,012

REDWOOD DRIVE Dry Creek Road Carol Drive Cold in-place Recycling and Curb Ramps $2,051,195

REDWOOD DRIVE West End (City Limits) Dry Creek Road Preventative Maintenance and Curb Ramps $1,161,237

PROGRAMS(EVERYTHING) $2,662,200

Total Estimated Project Costs: $8,934,644

5 LINCOLN AVENUE California Boulevard Silverado Trail Preventative Maintenance and Curb Ramps $2,927,819

LAUREL STREET Foothill Boulevard Homewood Avenue Cold in-place Recycling and Curb Ramps $1,325,567

LAUREL STREET Homewood Avenue Hwy 29 Preventative Maintenance and Curb Ramps $998,886

FREEWAY DRIVE 1st Street Laurel Street Cold in-place Recycling and Curb Ramps $1,481,411

PROGRAMS(EVERYTHING) $2,662,200

Total Estimated Project Costs: $9,395,883

FY 2022-23

City of Napa                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               
Measure "T", 5-Year Expenditure Plan                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            

FY2018-23                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
"PROJECTS"                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               

FY 2018-19

FY 2020-21

FY 2019-20

FY 2021-22

91



kj

kj

kj

kj

S
tate H

ighw
ay 29

S
olano Ave

1st A
ve

3rd St

Jefferson S
t

M
ain S

t

S
oscol A

ve

Old Sonoma Rd

F
os

te
r 

R
d

S
ilverado Trl

B
ig R

anch R
d

B
uhm

an Ave

Trancas St

D
ry C

reek R
d Trower A

ve

Linda Vista Ave

Oak St

State Highway 12

S
tanly Ln

G St

S
tate H

ighw
ay 221

M
on

tic
el

lo
 R

d
2nd St

Imola Ave

D
ealy Ln

Redwood Rd

Salva
dor A

ve

Hagen Rd

Vichy Ave

F St

W Imola Ave

H StPartrick Rd

Henry Rd

Pueblo Ave

Brow
n St

V
illa Ln

C
alifornia B

lvd

G
ol

de
n 

G
at

e 
D

r

A
t l a

s  
P

ea
k  

R
d

Orchard Ave

Scenic Dr

Laurel St

T
ho

m
ps

on
 A

ve

Coombsville Rd

Hillc
re

st
 D

r
Elm St

W Pueblo Ave

E
ast A

ve

Clay St

1st St

C
uttings W

harf R
d

F
ra

nk
lin

 S
t

M
arin S

t

E St

C
oo

m
bs

 S
t

B St

M
ck

in
le

y 
Rd

B
yw

ay E

Kilburn Ave

Pine St

W Park Ave

Sierra Ave

York S
t

Hardman Ave

Los C
arneros Ave

Shetler Ave

O
xford St

Basalt R
d

Browns Valley Rd

S
 Jefferson S

t

Kansas Ave

F
reew

ay D
r

Shurtleff Ave

C
arol D

r

Walnut Ave

Ash St

D
rivew

ay

Bell Ln

C
ed

ar
 D

r

Spruce St

El C
entro

 Ave

Central Ave

E
stee A

ve

With
ers 

Rd

Soscol Ferry Rd

Te
rr

ac
e 

D
r

Kaiser Rd

Wise Dr

M
aher St

Park Ave

Stanly 
Cross

road

B
eard R

d

Young Ave

Montecito Blvd

Ashlar Dr

S
ev

ill
e 

D
r

W
es

tv
ie

w
 D

r

Yajom
e St

Cayetano Dr

Oak Knoll Ave

Lassen S
t

Stonecrest Dr

D
iablo S

t

Menlo Ave

W F St

S
 T

e r
ra

ce
 D

r

Vine Hill D
r

Congress Valley Rd

S
pencer S

t

M
of

fit
t D

r

R
oss C

ir

Lone Oak Ave

La Homa Dr

R
iv

er
si

de
 D

r

4th St

Twin Oaks Dr
Pinot D

r

Juarez S
t

W
estgate Dr

B
ro

ad
m

oo
r 

D
r

Euclid Ave

Streblow Dr

Duhig Rd

K
ing A

ve

S
pr

uc
e 

D
r

E 1st St

P
en

ny
 L

n

H
om

ew
ood A

ve

Janette Dr

Lorraine D
r

W
al

nu
t S

t

Rubicon St

W
illis D

r

P
et

ra
 D

r

Clark St

Tokay D
r

Oak Knoll W

Locust St

Rose Dr

Delpha Dr

N Newport Dr

C
assw

all S
t

P
in

ew
oo

d 
D

r

Utah St

W Lincoln Ave

Hedgeside Rd

A
drian S

t

Lincoln Ave

F
oo

t h
ill

 B
lv

d

Luke Dr

Marina Dr

Garfie
ld Ln

N
orfolk St

Grandview Dr

D
ale D

r

Devlin Rd

Forest Dr

Mck
innon R

d

G
as

se
r 

D
r

Eva St

La
rk

in
 W

ay

D
aisy D

r

Sto
ny

br
oo

k 
Dr

Argyle S
t

B
or

re
tte

 L
n

Lernhart St

Lathrop St

Polk St

Palm Dr

S
ilv

er
 T

rl

M
ckinstry St

Soscol C
reek Rd

Elder Dr

P
lass D

r

S Newport Dr

Robin St

Patric
ia D

r

Future

H
arkness St

Leaning Oak Dr

Magnolia Dr

Stockton St

Stadium Ave

Summit Ave

South Ave

Cabot Way

Future Trower A
ve

M
ar

ia
 D

r

Syar Dr

S
proul A

ve

Berna Ave

Lupine H
ill R

d

Dillo
n D

r

Stonehouse Dr

Valle Verde D
r

Darlin
g St

Alley

B
utte S

t

Ellen Way

Baywood Ln

P
arrett Ave

Crestview Way

Morlan Dr

Kingston Ave

M
eadow

lark D
r

Tanen S
t

Karen Dr

Lo
m

a 
H

ei
g h

ts
 R

d

D
unhill S

t

London Way

Costa Dr

Arthur St

H
am

ilton S
t

Ridgetop W
ay

Atrium Pkwy

Ida S
t

Lynn Dr

H
ar

ts
on

 S
t

H
ahnem

ann Ln

D
av

is
 A

ve

V
ista R

anch R
d

Maclennan St

M
assa D

r
Glen Ct

H
ow

ard Ln

N
B

 S
R

29 O
ff T

rancas

H
erm

osa D
r

Elks Way

M
onte Vista C

t

Trent D
r

Old Sonoma Hwy

Verna Dr

Sweetbria
r D

r

Shoreline Dr

Sumner Ave

Newell Cir

Los Robles Dr

Dum
as St

Sherry DrRollingwood Dr

M
oss Ln

Hilton Ave

Griff
en Ln

Juniper Cir

W
oodside D

r

Latour Ct

David Dr

Anselmo Ct

Cedar Ave

Swiss
 C

t

Rose
wood Ln

S
tonebridge D

r

S
B

 S
R

29
 O

ff 
Im

ol
a

Via La P
az

Maclean St

Dickerson Ln

Laguna St

K
aa

na
pa

l i 
D

r

Flor
a 

St

Berks
 St

Erin W
ay

E
l N

ido D
r

Cas
pe

r W
ay

Juanita St

S
unnydale D

r

Sheveland Ln

Troon Dr

S
ey

m
ou

r 
S

t
L e

g a
c y

 C
t

Alle
gheny D

r

Clifford St

M
ain S

t

D
riv

ew
ay

Si
lv

er
ad

o 
Tr

l

Driveway

D
riv

ew
ay

Driveway

Driveway

B
ro

w
n 

S
t

D
rivew

ay

Driveway

D
rivew

ay

Driveway

S
tate H

ighw
ay 221

D
rivew

ay

D
rivew

ay

D
riv

ew
ay

D
rivew

ay

D
r iv

ew
a y

State Highway 29

D
iablo S

t

D
rivew

ay

Elm St

D
riv

ew
ay

4th St

D
rivew

ay

Laurel St

Driveway

Driveway

D
rivew

ay

D
rivew

ay

D
riv

ew
ay

D
riv

ew
ay

Driveway

Pine St

±

Legend

Traffic Signals

FY 2018-19

kj New Traffic Signal

FY 2019-20

kj New Traffic Signal

Measure T FY 2018-1

Measure T FY 2019-2

Measure T FY 2020-3

Measure T FY 2021-4

Measure T FY 2022-5

Roads

Napa City Limits

City of Napa - Measure T
5 Year Plan

92



Measure T  Napa Countywide Road Maintenance Act Five-Year List of Projects
Project Submittal Form

Jurisdiction Name:

Primary Contract #1 Email: juan.arias@countyofnapa.org Phone: (707) 259-8374

Secondary Contract #2 Email: steven.lederer@countyofnapa.org Phone: (707) 259-8228

Email: maiko.klieman@countyofnapa.org Phone: (707) 259-8382

Maintenance of Effort (MOE)

Please provide the certified MOE amount of the jurisdiction: $1,257,107

Napa County

Steve Lederer

Please note:   Eligible expenses include local streets and roads maintenance and supporting infrastructure within the public right of way including, but  not limited to pavement, 
sealing, overlays, reconstruction, associated infrastructure, as required, excluding any local revenues expended for the pupose of storm damage repair as verified by an 
independent auditor.  One time allocations that have been expended for local streets and road maintenance, but which may not be available on an ongoing basis shall not be 
considered when calculating an Agency's annual maintenance of effort.

Maiko Klieman
Staff Member Completing LS&R 
State Controller Report:

Juan Arias

ATTACHMENT 3
ITOC Agenda Item 6.9 

April 4, 2018

93

mailto:juan.arias@countyofnapa.org
mailto:steven.lederer@countyofnapa.org
mailto:maiko.klieman@countyofnapa.org


Planned Measure T Expenditures

Program Fiscal Year Total Project Cost Measure T Other Funds
$0.00

Repair 2018-19 $315,000.00 $315,000.00 $0.00
Repair 2018-19 $1,415,000.00 $1,415,000.00 $0.00
Repair 2018-19 $1,000,000.00 $1,000,000.00 $0.00
Replacement 2018-19 $6,300,000.00 $730,000.00 $5,570,000.00
Replacement 2018-19 $6,700,000.00 $145,000.00 $6,555,000.00
Replacement 2018-19 $6,500,000.00 $145,000.00 $6,355,000.00
Repair 2019-20 $1,200,000.00 $1,200,000.00 $0.00
Repair 2019-20 $77,000.00 $77,000.00 $0.00
Repair 2019-20 $833,000.00 $833,000.00 $0.00
Repair 2019-20 $833,000.00 $833,000.00 $0.00
Repair 2019-20 $924,000.00 $924,000.00 $0.00
Repair 2019-20 $2,000,000.00 $2,000,000.00 $0.00
Repair 2019-20 $665,000.00 $665,000.00 $0.00
Repair 2019-20 $1,050,000.00 $1,050,000.00 $0.00
Repair 2020-21 $1,050,000.00 $1,050,000.00 $0.00
Repair 2020-21 $700,000.00 $700,000.00 $0.00
Repair 2020-21 $700,000.00 $700,000.00 $0.00
Repair 2020-21 $700,000.00 $700,000.00 $0.00
Repair 2020-21 $98,000.00 $98,000.00 $0.00
Repair 2020-21 $122,000.00 $122,000.00 $0.00
Repair 2020-21 $350,000.00 $350,000.00 $0.00
Repair 2020-21 $1,400,000.00 $1,400,000.00 $0.00
Overlay 2020-21 $2,281,397.00 $1,592,397.00 $689,000.00
Surface Treatment 2020-21 $5,355.00 $5,355.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2020-21 $53,050.00 $53,050.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2020-21 $26,880.00 $26,880.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2020-21 $12,902.00 $12,902.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2020-21 $8,616.00 $8,616.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2020-21 $6,720.00 $6,720.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2020-21 $2,426.00 $2,426.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2020-21 $8,282.00 $8,282.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2020-21 $12,204.00 $12,204.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2020-21 $6,268.00 $6,268.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2020-21 $8,610.00 $8,610.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2020-21 $1,245.00 $1,245.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2020-21 $13,376.00 $13,376.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2020-21 $13,195.00 $13,195.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2020-21 $4,901.00 $4,901.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2020-21 $20,073.00 $20,073.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2020-21 $8,043.00 $8,043.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2020-21 $19,996.00 $19,996.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2020-21 $9,720.00 $9,720.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2020-21 $10,740.00 $10,740.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2020-21 $4,182.00 $4,182.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2020-21 $35,733.00 $35,733.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2020-21 $40,514.00 $40,514.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2020-21 $37,904.00 $37,904.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2020-21 $19,000.00 $19,000.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2020-21 $11,444.00 $11,444.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2020-21 $23,484.00 $23,484.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2020-21 $2,287.00 $2,287.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2020-21 $72,605.00 $72,605.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2020-21 $4,903.00 $4,903.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2020-21 $1,750.00 $1,750.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2020-21 $71,105.00 $71,105.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2020-21 $14,453.00 $14,453.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2020-21 $6,120.00 $6,120.00 $0.00
Overlay 2020-21 $126,232.00 $126,232.00 $0.00
Safety 2020-21 $95,000.00 $95,000.00 $0.00
Reconstruction 2020-21 $106,311.00 $106,311.00 $0.00
Reconstruction 2020-21 $19,307.00 $19,307.00 $0.00
Reconstruction 2020-21 $85,405.00 $85,405.00 $0.00
Reconstruction 2020-21 $27,090.00 $27,090.00 $0.00
Reconstruction 2020-21 $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $0.00
Reconstruction 2020-21 $93,781.00 $93,781.00 $0.00

Inverness Drive - St. Andrews to Hillcrest

Falls Road - Howell Mtn

 Road Seal 

 Road Seal 
 Road Overlay 

 Road Guardrail 

Prestwick Drive - St. Andrews to Hillcrest

Westgate Drive - Hillcrest to loop
Petrified Forest Road - Franz Valley Rd to Calistoga
Petrified Forest Road - Sonoma County to Calistoga

 Road Reconstruction 
 Road Reconstruction 

 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 

 Road Reconstruction 
 Road Reconstruction 

Westgate Drive - Hillcrest to Atlas Peak
Westgate Drive - loop to end

Coronado Ave - CitylLimit
London Way - Coronado Ave to City limit

Republic Avenue - Coronado Ave
Cook Road - Yount Mill Rd to end

 Road Reconstruction 

Kirkland Ave - East Third Ave to end Road Reconstruction 

 Road Seal 

Diogenes Drive - Brookside to Washburn
Eastern Ave - Clark to Manzanita
Edgewood Place - Clark to end

 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 

Olive Avenue - Keyes to end
Sky Oaks Drive - Wht Cottage to College

Smith Way Clark to McReynolds
Sunset Drive - Howell Mtn to Wht Cottage

Liparita Avenue - Wht Cottage to end
Mariposa Drive - Sky Oaks to end
Manzanita Drive - Bay to Eastern

McReynolds Ct - McReynolds Dr to end
McReynolds Dr - N end to S end

 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 

Keyes Avenue - Wht Cottage

 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 

Newton Way - Eastern to Toyon

Crystal Springs - Silverado Trail to Creek Road Seal 
 Road Seal 
 Road Seal Glass Mountain Road - Silverado Trail to Sanitarium

Tobin Ave - Keyes to end
Toyon Street - Wht Cottage to Newton

Washburn Street - Diogenes to Sky Oaks Road Seal 

Crystal Springs - Sanitarium to Creek

Dry Creek Road  - Dry Creek

Dry Creek Road MPM 7.75
Diamond Mtn Rd MPM 1.1

Greenwood Avenue - Garnett Creek
Sunnyhill Drive

Redwood Rd MPM 1.75

Dry Creek Rd MPM 4.50

 Bridge Replacement 
 Road Storm Repair 
 Road Storm Repair 
 Road Storm Repair 

 Road Storm Repair 

 Road Storm Repair 

 Road Storm Repair 

 Road Storm Repair 

Berryessa/Knoxville Rd MPM 20.50 to 22.00
Mt. Veeder Rd MPM 1.85
Redwood Rd MPM 5.76

Mt. Veeder Rd MPM 4.75
Ridgecrest Dr. (Circle Oaks) MPM 0.40

Dry Creek Rd MPM 7.51

Dry Creek Rd MPM 10.5

Please provide 5 year planned streets and road maintenance projects beginning in FY  2018-19 (add more lines as needed). Per  the Measure T Expenditure Plan, a Project  is a single effort with a beginning and an end 
that would cause the construciton or maintenance or reconstruction of some tangible portion of a transportation asset owned or operated by public agency that has indepdependent utility.  A project is not repeated on 
an annual basis, it does not appear without a detailed description as to cost and location in a local agency budget, and it must appear in a capital budget.  Project numbers will be assigned by NVTA-TA.

Project Description

Mt. Veeder Road - MPM 4.0
Chiles Pope Valley Rd - Chiles Crk

Dry Creek Road - Mile Post Marker 10.75
Mt. Veeder Road - MPM 5.2

Location (intersection, mile marker, length of alignment)

 Road Seal 
 Road Overlay 

 Road Seal 

 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 

 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 

 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 

 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 

 Road Seal 

Silverado Trail L - Oak Knoll Avenue to Hardman Avenue
Bay Street - Newton to Manzanita

Brookside Dr - Howell Mtn to Wht Cottage
Clark Way - Howell Mtn to Eastern

Clark Way - Eastern to College

 Road Seal 

Meadowood Lane - Howell Mtn to Meadowood Rd
Meadowood Road - Silverado Trail to Meadowood Ln
North Fork Crystal Springs - Crystal Springs to end

Rosehaven Lane - Sanitarium to end
Hillcrest Drive - Atlas Peak to Westgate

 Road Storm Repair 
 Road Storm Repair 
 Road Storm Repair 
 Bridge Replacement 
 Bridge Replacement 

 Road Storm Repair 
 Road Storm Repair 
 Road Storm Repair 

 Road Storm Repair 
 Road Storm Repair 
 Road Storm Repair 
 Road Storm Repair 

Dry Creek Rd MPM 9.75
Berryessa/Knoxville Rd MPM 22.1

Redwood Rd MPM 2.50
Redwood Rd MPM 3.50

 Road Storm Repair 
 Road Storm Repair 

94



Overlay 2021-22 $1,060,146.00 $1,060,146.00 $0.00
Overlay 2021-22 $1,824,000.00 $1,824,000.00 $0.00
Overlay 2021-22 $804,099.00 $804,099.00 $0.00
Overlay 2021-22 $421,976.00 $421,976.00 $0.00
Overlay 2021-22 $536,698.00 $536,698.00 $0.00
Overlay 2021-22 $448,747.00 $448,747.00 $0.00
Overlay 2021-22 $464,613.00 $464,613.00 $0.00
Overlay 2021-22 $228,660.00 $228,660.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2021-22 $26,075.00 $26,075.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2021-22 $46,120.00 $46,120.00 $0.00
Overlay 2021-22 $400,882.00 $400,882.00 $0.00
Overlay 2021-22 $891,147.00 $891,147.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2021-22 $51,306.00 $51,306.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2021-22 $56,500.00 $56,500.00 $0.00
Overlay 2021-22 $359,333.00 $359,333.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2021-22 $95,922.00 $95,922.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2021-22 $35,519.00 $35,519.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2021-22 $32,631.00 $32,631.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2021-22 $10,301.00 $10,301.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2021-22 $10,938.00 $10,938.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2021-22 $60,560.00 $60,560.00 $0.00
Overlay 2021-22 $321,206.00 $321,206.00 $0.00
Overlay 2022-23 $381,419.00 $381,419.00 $0.00
Overlay 2022-23 $740,444.00 $740,444.00 $0.00
Overlay 2022-23 $796,073.00 $796,073.00 $0.00
Overlay 2022-23 $223,721.00 $223,721.00 $0.00
Overlay 2022-23 $458,578.00 $458,578.00 $0.00
Overlay 2022-23 $214,186.00 $214,186.00 $0.00
Overlay 2022-23 $131,414.00 $131,414.00 $0.00
Overlay 2022-23 $502,357.33 $502,357.33 $0.00
Overlay 2022-23 $229,974.00 $229,974.00 $0.00
Overlay 2022-23 $260,400.00 $260,400.00 $0.00
Overlay 2022-23 $732,917.00 $732,917.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $11,540.00 $11,540.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $35,152.00 $35,152.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $106,250.00 $106,250.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $19,502.00 $19,502.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $26,094.00 $26,094.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $119,600.00 $119,600.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $62,504.00 $62,504.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $17,465.00 $17,465.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $24,915.00 $24,915.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $5,377.00 $5,377.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $12,697.00 $12,697.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $11,897.00 $11,897.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $17,824.00 $17,824.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $36,359.00 $36,359.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $25,333.00 $25,333.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $6,542.00 $6,542.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $6,922.00 $6,922.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $5,733.33 $5,733.33 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $11,759.00 $11,759.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $54,075.00 $54,075.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $7,600.00 $7,600.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $5,163.00 $5,163.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $4,191.00 $4,191.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $5,227.00 $5,227.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $29,480.00 $29,480.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $12,511.00 $12,511.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $7,518.00 $7,518.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $15,001.00 $15,001.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $13,200.00 $13,200.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $15,246.00 $15,246.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $9,339.00 $9,339.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $9,867.00 $9,867.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $66,441.00 $66,441.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $23,807.00 $23,807.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $5,115.00 $5,115.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $8,689.00 $8,689.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $11,007.00 $11,007.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $7,774.67 $7,774.67 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $5,948.00 $5,948.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $22,460.00 $22,460.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $17,194.00 $17,194.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2022-23 $18,805.00 $18,805.00 $0.00

Technology Court - Technology to end
Technology Way - Gateway West to Airpark

Technology Way - W Gateway W to Gateway W
Technology Way - Airpark to W/Gateway W

Camino Oruga - Camindo Dorado to end

Executive Way - N. Kelly to end
Gateway Drive - Airport to Technology

Gateway East - Devlin to end
Gateway West - Devlin to 303 Gateway

 Road Seal 
Executive Court - Executive Way to end

Gateway West - 303 Gateway to Technology
Green Island Road - ACCL to end

Greenwood Road - S Kelly to S Kelly
Harlow Court - Airpark to end

Morris Court - Technology to end

 Road Seal 

 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 

Sheehy Court - Devlin to end
Skyway Court - Airpark to end

 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 

 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 

 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 

Camino Dorado - N Kelly to end

Airpark Road - Technology to Airport
 Airpark Road - Airport to Skyway
Airpark Road - Skyway to Devlin
Alexis Court - Technology to end

Aviation Way - Airport to end

Kortum Canyon Road - SR 128 to end
Larkmead Lane - SR 128 to Silverado Trail

 Road Seal 

 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 

Lommel Road - Silverado Trail

Pachateau Road - Diamond Mtn to end
Palisades Road - SR 29 to end
Peterson Road - SR 128 to end

Pickett Road - Silverado Trail to end
Rosedale Road - Silverado Trail to Pickett

Scott Way - end to end
Shaw Williams Court - Franz Valley to end

Tucker Road - SR 128 to Peterson

Café Court - S Kelly to end Road Seal 

Tubbs Lane - SR 128 to SR 29
Azalea Springs Way - SR 128 

Bale Lane - SR 128 to Silverado Trail
Dunaweal Lane - SR 128 to Silverado Trail

Evey Road - Bennett to end
Greewood Ave - Grant to SR 29

Lodi Lane - SR 128 to Silverado Trail

Lommel Extension - Silverado Trail to end

Maple Lane - SR 128 to end

 Road Overlay 

 Road Seal 

 Road Seal 

 Road Seal 

 Road Seal 

 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 

 Road Overlay 
 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 

 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 

Big Tree Road - SR 128 to end
Franz Valley Road - Sonoma Co to N/PFR

Buchli Station Road - Las Amigas to end
Congress Valley Road - Old Sonoma to Buhman

Cuttings Wharf Road - SR 121 to Middle
Cuttings Wharf Road - Middle to end
Dealy Lane - Old Sonoma to Henry

Duhig Road - Las Amigas to Sonoma Co.
Foster Road - Napa City limits to Golden Gate
Golden Gate Drive - Napa City limits to end

Henry Road - Buhman to Dealy
McKinnon Road - Los Carneros to end

Old Sonoma Road - SR 121 to Old Sonoma
Sunset Road - Congress Valley to End

Thompson Ave - Napa City Limits to Congress Valley
Silverado Trail (G2) - SR 29 to Calistoga City limit

 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 

 Road Overlay 
 Road Overlay 

 Road Seal 

 Road Overlay 
 Road Overlay 

 Road Overlay 

Pope Canyon Road -Chiles Pope to Pope Valley XR
Pope Canyon Road - Pope Valley X to East Pope Valley X

Franz Valley Road - N/PFR to Petrified Forest

 Road Overlay 
 Road Overlay 
 Road Overlay 
 Road Overlay 
 Road Overlay 
 Road Overlay 

Pope Canyon Road - Pope Valley Cross Rd to Pope Ck
El Centro Ave - Big Ranch to Napa City limit

Wooden Valley Crossroad - Wooden Valley to Gordon Valley
Salvador Ave - Big Ranch to Napa City limit

 Road Overlay 

 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 

 Road Overlay 
 Road Seal 

 Road Overlay 
Sanitarium Road - Deer Park N to Sunnyside Road Overlay 

 Road Overlay 

Silverado Trail M - Hardman to Trancas
Airport Blvd - SR 29 to end

White Cottage Road - Deer Park to Brookside
White Cottage Road - Brookside to College
White Cottage Road - College to Howell Mtn

 Road Overlay 
 Road Overlay 
 Road Overlay 
 Road Overlay 

Sanitarium Road - Sunnyside to Deer Park S
Bayview Lane - Las Amigas to end Road Overlay 

95



Surface Treatment 2022-23 $12,130.00 $12,130.00 $0.00
Overlay 2022-23 $992,539.00 $992,539.00 $0.00
Overlay 2022-23 $340,000.00 $340,000.00 $0.00
Overlay 2022-23 $625,000.00 $625,000.00 $0.00
Overlay 2023-24 $1,479,069.00 $1,479,069.00 $0.00
Overlay 2023-24 $1,336,932.00 $1,336,932.00 $0.00
Overlay 2023-24 $425,643.00 $425,643.00 $0.00
Overlay 2023-24 $621,450.67 $621,450.67 $0.00
Overlay 2023-24 $848,821.00 $848,821.00 $0.00
Overlay 2023-24 $941,528.00 $941,528.00 $0.00
Overlay 2023-24 $697,288.00 $697,288.00 $0.00
Overlay 2023-24 $462,774.00 $462,774.00 $0.00
Overlay 2023-24 $700,236.00 $700,236.00 $0.00
Overlay 2023-24 $1,651,426.00 $1,651,426.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2024-25 $336,000.00 $336,000.00 $0.00
Surface Treatment 2024-25 $374,827.00 $374,827.00 $0.00
Overlay 2024-25 $577,762.00 $577,762.00 $0.00
Overlay 2024-25 $483,012.00 $483,012.00 $0.00
Overlay 2024-25 $695,784.00 $695,784.00 $0.00
Overlay 2024-25 $718,693.00 $718,693.00 $0.00
Overlay 2024-25 $539,675.00 $539,675.00 $0.00
Overlay 2024-25 $336,000.00 $336,000.00 $0.00
Overlay 2024-25 $525,000.00 $525,000.00 $0.00
Overlay 2024-25 $477,866.67 $477,866.67 $0.00
Overlay 2024-25 $652,723.00 $652,723.00 $0.00

$69,064,774.67 $49,895,774.67 $19,169,000.00

Program Definitions:  
Surface Treatment includes:  slurry seal, fog seal, chip seal, microseal, etc.
Overlay - asphalt resurfacing
Reconstruction - includes in or all components associated with complete reconstruction of the roadway including road bed, widening to meet  complete streets requirements, and paving
Concrete work - includes ramps, sidewalks, curbs,  gutters, and pavement
Drainage  - includes any work required to address water run off and drainage including culverts, etc. associated with a roadway
Safety includes lights, signage, striping, traffic signals and pavement markings
Intelligent Traffic Systems - includes traffic signal interconnects or other systems to improve traffic management/operations and safety on raodways

 Road Overlay 
 Road Overlay 
 Road Overlay 
 Road Overlay 
 Road Overlay 
 Road Overlay 
 Road Overlay 
 Road Overlay 

 Road Seal 
 Road Seal 

Howell Mountain Road - Clark to Wht Cottage
Soda Canyon Road - Loma Vista to end

Steele Canyon Road - SR 128 to N/SR 128
Steele Canyon Road - N/SR 128 to Steele Park

Deer Park Road - SR 128 to Silverado Trail
Deer Park Road - Silverado Trail to Mund
Deer Park Road - Mund to Sanitarium N

Total

Third Ave - North Ave to N/North Ave
Third Ave - N/North Ave to Hagen Rd

Gordon Valley Road - Solano Co to N/Solano Co
Gordon Valley Road - N/Solano Co. to end
Oakville Crossroad - SR 29 to Money Ln

Oakville Crossroad - Money Ln to Silverado Trail
Trancas Street - Napa City limit to SR 121
Dry Creek Road - Sonoma Co to 4500 ft N.
Mt. Veeder Road - Dry Creek to 1400 ft N.

Steele Canyon Road - Steele Park to Rimrock
Steele Canyon Road - Rimrock to end

Deer Park Road - Sanitarium N to White Cottage
Howell Mountain Road - Deer Park to Cold Springs

Howell Mountain Road - Cold Springs to Clark

Watson Lane - ACCL to end
Yountville Crossroad - YV TL to Silverado Trail

Dry Creek Road - 4500 ft N of bridge

 Road Overlay 
 Road Overlay 
 Road Overlay 

Mt. Veeder Road - 7000 ft N

 Road Overlay 
 Road Overlay 
 Road Overlay 
 Road Overlay 

 Road Overlay 
 Road Overlay 
 Road Overlay 
 Road Overlay 
 Road Overlay 

 Road Seal 
 Road Overlay 

Note:  The above Program Definitions and listed project types are not all-inclusive. Other project types and/or means and methods may be included in the work plan provided the type of work is consistent with the intent of the Measure T Ordinance language.

Note:  Final project list to be determined, depending on available revenues and when revenues become available, but distributed proportionately unless otherwise agreed to as part of a funding exchange proportionately as outlined in the Measure T Expenditure Plan.  Prior 
to any allocation, jurisdictions will  also be required to submit all of the necessary documentation requested above as well as a Resolution of support of the proposed project list.  Requirements associated with the Class 1 Bike Facility expenditures to be agreed upon 
between the jurisdictions and memorialized in resolutions of support by affected jurisdictions.

 Road Overlay 

96



Measure T  Napa Countwide Road Maintenance Act
Application for Funding
Jurisdiction Name:
Primary Contract #1   Joe Tagliaboschi  Email:  Phone:
Secondary Contract #2 Steve Rogers  Email:  Phone:
Staff Member Completing
LS&R State Controller

Maintenance of Effort (MOE)
Please provide the following information to establish MOE amounts and to validate information:
1. Attach copies of Local Streets and Roads State Controller Reports for three years - FY 2007-08, FY 2008-09, FY 2009-10
2. Attach independent auditors validation for each Local Streets and Roads State Controller Report
3. Enter MOE Amounts Claiming:           FY 2007-08 FY 2008-09  FY 2009-10 190,486 215,504

33

206,661 249,366
Please note:   Eligible expenses include local streets and roads maintenance and supporting infrastructure within the public right of way
for pavement, sealing, overlays, reconstruction, associated infrastructure, as required, excluding any local revenues expended for the pupose of storm damage

Town of Yountville

Jtagliaboschi@Yville.com 944.8851

Srogers@Yville.com 945.8851
Maria Ojeda  Email: Mojeda@Yville.com  Phone: 9448851

ATTACHMENT 4
ITOC Agenda Item 6.9

April 4, 2018

97

mailto:Jtagliaboschi@Yville.com
mailto:Srogers@Yville.com
mailto:Mojeda@Yville.com


Expenditures

Program Project Description Fiscal Year Total
Project
Cost Measure T Amount Other
Funds Location (intersection, mile marker, length of alignment)

Surface
Treatment $476,098.00
Heavy Maint Micro Surface with dig outs 2018/19 $14,714.00 $14,714.00 HUTA Ivy Ct - Mulberry to dead end
Heavy Maint Micro Surface with dig outs 2018/20 $7,524.00 $7,524.00 HUTA Mulberry Street- Washington St to Dead end *
Heavy Rehab Micro Surface with dig outs 2018/19 $303,680.00 $303,680.00 HUTA Yount Street- Mount to Finnel
Light Maintenance Micro Surface 2018/19 $9,438.00 $9,438.00 HUTA Adams Street- Yount to Lande *
Light Maintenance Micro Surface 2018/19 $11,329.00 $11,329.00 HUTA Heather Street- end to Mulberry *
Light Maintenance Micro Surface 2018/19 $11,401.00 $11,401.00 HUTA Holly Street-Larkspur to Mulberry*
Light Maintenance Micro Surface 2018/19 $5,508.00 $5,508.00 HUTA Jefferson Street- Washington to Jefferson*
Light Maintenance Micro Surface 2018/19 $9,199.00 $9,199.00 HUTA Lande Way- Adams  to Lande*
Light Maintenance Micro Surface 2018/19 $21,325.00 $21,325.00 HUTA Larkspur Way- E/S Heather - Holly St*
Light Maintenance Micro Surface 2018/19 $8,976.00 $8,976.00 HUTA Madison Street- HWY 29 ROW to Washington*
Light Maintenance Micro Surface 2018/19 $15,708.00 $15,708.00 HUTA Madison Street-Washington to Yount*
Light Maintenance Micro Surface 2018/19 $10,568.00 $10,568.00 HUTA Mulberry Street Washington Sst to W/S Ivy Ct*
Light Maintenance Micro Surface 2018/19 $23,800.00 $23,800.00 HUTA Mulberry Street-Heather ST to Holly ST*
Light Maintenance Micro Surface 2018/19 $6,379.00 $6,379.00 HUTA Pedroni Street -Washington to Jefferson*
Light Maintenance Micro Surface 2018/19 $16,549.00 $16,549.00 HUTA Stags View Lane  Yville Cross to Lande*
Light Maintenance Micro Surface 2018/20 $15,151.00 $15,151.00 HUTA Washington St -Oak Circle to Califonia Dr
Light Maintenance Micro Surface 2018/21 $20,128.00 $20,128.00 HUTA Washington St - Califonia Dr to Champagne
Light Maintenance Micro Surface 2018/22 $11,526.00 $11,526.00 HUTA Washington St -  Champagne to Town Limits

$          -
$          - *depending on available funds
$          -
$          -
$          -
$          -
$          -

Program Definitions:
Surface Treatment includes: slurry seal, fog seal, chip seal, microseal, etc. Overlay - resurfacing
Reconstruction - includes in or all components associated with complete reconstruction of the roadway including road bed, widening to meet code, and paving
Concrete work - includes ramps, sidewalks, curbs, and gutters
Drainage - includes any work required to address water run off and drainage including culverts, etc. Safety includes lights, signage, striping

single effort with a beginning and an end that would cause the construciton or maintenance or reconstruction of some tangible portion of a transportation asset owned or operated by public agency that has indepdependent utility. A project is not repeated on an annual basis, it 
does not appear without a detailed description as to cost and location in a local agency budget, and it must appear in a capital budget. Project numbers will be assigned by NCTPA.

Please provide 5 year planned streets and road maintenance projects beginning in FY 2013-14 (add more lines as needed). Per the Measure T Expenditure Plan, a Project is a

Note: Final project list to be determined, depending on available revenues and when revenues become available, but distributed proportionately unless otherwise agreed to as part of a funding exchange 
proportionately as outlined in the Measure T Expenditure Plan. Prior to any allocation, jurisdictions will also be required to submit all of the necessary documentation requested above as well as a Resolution of 
support of the proposed project list. Requirements associated with the Class 1 Path expenditures to be agreed upon between the jurisdictions and memorialized in resolutions of support by affected jurisdictions.

98



Planned Measure T Expenditures

Program Project Description Fiscal Year Total
Project
Cost
Measure T 
Amount

Other
Funds Location (intersection, mile marker, length of alignment)

Surface
Treatment $619,523.00
Light Rehab  2" overlay or Mill and Fill 2019/20 $107,178.00 $107,178.00 HUTA Oak Circle- Washington St to Heather St
Light Rehab  2" overlay or Mill and Fill 2019/20 $177,822.00 $177,822.00 HUTA Oak Circle- 1410 East of Oak Circle Intersection to Oak Circle Intersection
Heavy Rehab Reconstruction 2019/21 $334,523.00 $334,523.00 HUTA Oak Circle- Oak Circle Intersection to 1410' East of Oak Circle Intersection

Program Definitions:

Surface Treatment includes: slurry seal, fog seal, chip seal, microseal, etc. Overlay - resurfacing

Reconstruction - includes in or all components associated with complete reconstruction of the roadway including road bed, widening to meet code, and paving
Concrete work - includes ramps, sidewalks, curbs, and gutters

Drainage - includes any work required to address water run off and drainage including culverts, etc. Safety includes lights, signage, striping

single effort with a beginning and an end that would cause the construciton or maintenance or reconstruction of some tangible portion of a transportation asset owned or operated by public agency that has indepdependent utility. A project is not repeated on an 
annual basis, it does not appear without a detailed description as to cost and location in a local agency budget, and it must appear in a capital budget. Project numbers will be assigned by NCTPA.

Please provide 5 year planned streets and road maintenance projects beginning in FY 2013-14 (add more lines as needed). Per the Measure T Expenditure Plan, a Project is a

Note: Final project list to be determined, depending on available revenues and when revenues become available, but distributed proportionately unless otherwise agreed to as part of a funding exchange proportionately as outlined in the Measure T 
Expenditure Plan. Prior to any allocation, jurisdictions will also be required to submit all of the necessary documentation requested above as well as a Resolution of support of the proposed project list. Requirements associated with the Class 1 Path 
expenditures to be agreed upon between the jurisdictions and memorialized in resolutions of support by affected jurisdictions.

99



Planned Measure T Expenditures
Please provide 5 year planned streets and road maintenance projects beginning in FY 2013-14 (add more lines as needed). Per the Measure T Expenditure Plan, a Project is a

Program Project Description Fiscal Year Total
Project
Cost
Measure T 
Amount

Other
Funds Location (intersection, mile marker, length of alignment)

Surface
Treatment $429,660.00
Light Rehab  2" overlay or Mill and Fill 2020/21 $55,692.00 $55,692.00 HUTA Foxglove- Lande to Forrester
Light Rehab  2" overlay or Mill and Fill 2020/21 $54,672.00 $54,672.00 HUTA Jasmine-Lande to Forrester
Light Rehab  2" overlay or Mill and Fill 2020/21 $92,087.00 $92,087.00 HUTA Lande Way- 29 Lande  to Stags View
Light Rehab  2" overlay or Mill and Fill 2020/21 $95,453.00 $95,453.00 HUTA Mount Ave-Yount St to Jasmine
Light Rehab  2" overlay or Mill and Fill 2020/21 $56,456.00 $56,456.00 HUTA Redwood Drive- Lande  to Forrester
Light Rehab  2" overlay or Mill and Fill 2020/21 $47,392.00 $47,392.00 HUTA Vista Court-Vista to Dead End
Light Maintenance Micro Surface 2020/21 $17,572.00 $17,572.00 HUTA Jefferson Street- Starkey ave to Webber 
Light Maintenance Micro Surface 2020/21 $10,336.00 $10,336.00 HUTA Washinton St- N/S Hopper creek to N/S Webber

Program Definitions:
Surface Treatment includes: slurry seal, fog seal, chip seal, microseal, etc. Overlay - resurfacing
Reconstruction - includes in or all components associated with complete reconstruction of the roadway including road bed, widening to meet code, and paving
Concrete work - includes ramps, sidewalks, curbs, and gutters
Drainage - includes any work required to address water run off and drainage including culverts, etc. Safety includes lights, signage, striping

single effort with a beginning and an end that would cause the construciton or maintenance or reconstruction of some tangible portion of a transportation asset owned or operated by public agency that has indepdependent utility. A project is not repeated on an annual basis, it does not appear without a detailed description as to 
cost and location in a local agency budget, and it must appear in a capital budget. Project numbers will be assigned by NCTPA.

Note: Final project list to be determined, depending on available revenues and when revenues become available, but distributed proportionately unless otherwise agreed to as part of a funding exchange proportionately as outlined in the Measure T 
Expenditure Plan. Prior to any allocation, jurisdictions will also be required to submit all of the necessary documentation requested above as well as a Resolution of support of the proposed project list. Requirements associated with the Class 1 Path 
expenditures to be agreed upon between the jurisdictions and memorialized in resolutions of support by affected jurisdictions.

100



Planned Measure T Expenditures
Please provide 5 year planned streets and road maintenance projects beginning in FY 2013-14 (add more lines as needed). Per the Measure T Expenditure Plan, a Project is a

Program Project Description Fiscal Year Total
Project
Cost
Measure T 
Amount Other
Funds Location (intersection, mile marker, length of alignment)

Surface
Treatment $466,705.00
Light Rehab  2" overlay or Mill and Fill 2021/22 $234,171.00 $234,171.00 HUTA Vineyard Circle- Vista at Vista Ct to Vista

Light Rehab  2" overlay or Mill and Fill 2021/25 $43,808.00 $43,808.00 HUTA Oak Leaf Ct- Oak Circle to End
Light Rehab  2" overlay or Mill and Fill 2021/26 $55,755.00 $55,755.00 HUTA Starkey Ave -Washington to Jefferson
Light Rehab  2" overlay or Mill and Fill 2021/27 $43,011.00 $43,011.00 HUTA Starkey Ave - Jefferson to Yount
Light Rehab  2" overlay or Mill and Fill 2021/22 $59,212.00 $59,212.00 HUTA Webber St- Washingotn to Yount
Light Maint Digout and Microsurface 2021/22 $4,385.00 $4,385.00 HUTA Creek St- Washington to Jefferson
Light Maint Digout and Microsurface 2021/22 $14,468.00 $14,468.00 HUTA  Finnel Rd_ Yount St to Hopper Creek Bridge
Light Maint Digout and Microsurface 2021/22 $11,895.00 $11,895.00 HUTA Finell Rd- Hopper Creek to Town Limits

Program Definitions:
Surface Treatment includes: slurry seal, fog seal, chip seal, microseal, etc. Overlay - resurfacing
Reconstruction - includes in or all components associated with complete reconstruction of the roadway including road bed, widening to meet code, and paving
Concrete work - includes ramps, sidewalks, curbs, and gutters
Drainage - includes any work required to address water run off and drainage including culverts, etc. Safety includes lights, signage, striping

single effort with a beginning and an end that would cause the construciton or maintenance or reconstruction of some tangible portion of a transportation asset owned or operated by public agency that has indepdependent utility. A project is not repeated on 
an annual basis, it does not appear without a detailed description as to cost and location in a local agency budget, and it must appear in a capital budget. Project numbers will be assigned by NCTPA.

Note: Final project list to be determined, depending on available revenues and when revenues become available, but distributed proportionately unless otherwise agreed to as part of a funding exchange 
proportionately as outlined in the Measure T Expenditure Plan. Prior to any allocation, jurisdictions will also be required to submit all of the necessary documentation requested above as well as a 
Resolution of support of the proposed project list. Requirements associated with the Class 1 Path expenditures to be agreed upon between the jurisdictions and memorialized in resolutions of support by 
affected jurisdictions.

101



Planned Measure T Expenditures

Program Project Description Fiscal Year Total
Project
Cost
Measure T 
Amount Other
Funds Location (intersection, mile marker, length of alignment)

Surface
Treatment $484,622.00
Heavy Maint Micro Surface with dig outs 2023/24 $22,302.00 $22,302.00 HUTA Washington ST- Madison to Hopper Creek
Light Rehab  2" overlay or Mill and Fill 2023/24 $22,302.00 $22,302.00 HUTA Mesa Ct-Yountville Cross Rd to End
Light Rehab  2" overlay or Mill and Fill 2023/24 $53,897.00 $53,897.00 HUTA Mulberry St - Ivy Ct to Heather 
Heavy Rehab Reconstruct 2023/24 $18,990.00 $18,990.00 HUTA Yount Mill Rd-Yount St to Town Limits
Light Rehab  2" overlay or Mill and Fill 2023/24 $120,416.00 $120,416.00 HUTA Yount St- Finnell to Washington
Light Maintenance Micro Surface 2023/24 $10,915.00 $10,915.00 HUTA Yount St- Yount Mill Rd to Yville Cr
Light Maintenance Micro Surface 2023/24 $14,160.00 $14,160.00 HUTA Yount St- Yville Cross to Adams
Light Rehab  2" overlay or Mill and Fill 2021/23 $115,227.00 $115,227.00 HUTA Jefferson St- Cemetary to Madison
Light Rehab  2" overlay or Mill and Fill 2021/24 $106,413.00 $106,413.00 HUTA Lincoln Ave- Jackson to Washington

Program Definitions:
Surface Treatment includes: slurry seal, fog seal, chip seal, microseal, etc. Overlay - resurfacing
Reconstruction - includes in or all components associated with complete reconstruction of the roadway including road bed, widening to meet code, and paving
Concrete work - includes ramps, sidewalks, curbs, and gutters
Drainage - includes any work required to address water run off and drainage including culverts, etc. Safety includes lights, signage, striping
Note: Final project list to be determined, depending on available revenues and when revenues become available, but distributed proportionately unless otherwise agreed to as part of a funding 
exchange proportionately as outlined in the Measure T Expenditure Plan. Prior to any allocation, jurisdictions will also be required to submit all of the necessary documentation requested above as 
well as a Resolution of support of the proposed project list. Requirements associated with the Class 1 Path expenditures to be agreed upon between the jurisdictions and memorialized in resolutions 
of support by affected jurisdictions.

single effort with a beginning and an end that would cause the construciton or maintenance or reconstruction of some tangible portion of a transportation asset owned or operated by public agency that has indepdependent utility. A project is not repeated 
on an annual basis, it does not appear without a detailed description as to cost and location in a local agency budget, and it must appear in a capital budget. Project numbers will be assigned by NCTPA.

Please provide 5 year planned streets and road maintenance projects beginning in FY 2013-14 (add more lines as needed). Per the Measure T Expenditure Plan, a Project is a

102



ATTACHMENT 5
ITOC Agenda Item 6.9 

April 4, 2018

103



104



105



106



Year RoadName BegLocation EndLocation SectionLength SectionWidth SectionArea SurfType Treatment Treatment Cost Cost per sq yd

FY 2018/19

WASHINGTON STREET N. OAK BERRY STREET 1400 42 58800 AC/AC 3" OVERLAY WITH FABRIC $457,333 $70.00

WASHINGTON STREET BERRY STREET LINCOLN AVE 950 42 39900 AC/AC 3" OVERLAY WITH FABRIC $310,333 $70.00

NORTH HALF SECTOR A 500 10 5000 PCC SIDEWALK REPAIR/REPLACEMENT $94,444 $170.00

FY 19/20 DESIGN $100,000

FY SUBTOTAL $962,111.11

FY 2019/20

GRANT STREET GARNETT CREEK COURT GREENWOOD 2450 40 98000 AC/AC RECONSTRUCT SURFACE (AC) $925,556 $85.00

SOUTH HALF SECTOR A 500 10 5000 PCC SIDEWALK REPAIR/REPLACEMENT $97,222 $175.00

FY 20/21 DESIGN $100,000

FY SUBTOTAL $1,122,777.78

FY 2020/21

LAKE STREET GRANT STREET LINCOLN AVE 1800 42 75600 AC/AC RECONSTRUCT SURFACE (AC) $739,200 $88.00

PETRIFIED FOREST ROAD FOOTHILL BLVD CITY LIMITS 1535 30 46050 CAPE/CHIP SEAL $61,400 $12.00

CEDAR STREET FOOTHILL BLVD VISTA DR 1440 24 34560 CAPE/CHIP SEAL $46,080 $12.00

NORTH HALF SECTOR B 500 10 5000 PCC SIDEWALK REPAIR/REPLACEMENT $100,000 $180.00

FY 21/22 DESIGN $100,000

FY SUBTOTAL $1,046,680.00

FY 2021/22

CEDAR STREET LINCOLN AVE SPRING 600 40 24000 PCC RECONSTRUCT $733,333 $275.00

FIRST STREET WASHINGTON ST. FAIR WAY 680 38 25840 3" OVERLAY WITH FABRIC $215,333 $75.00

SOUTH HALF SECTOR B 500 10 5000 PCC SIDEWALK REPAIR/REPLACEMENT $102,778 $185.00

FY 22/23 DESIGN $100,000

FY SUBTOTAL $1,151,444.44

FY 2022/23

FAIR WAY LINCOLN AVE LAKE ST. 1450 28 40600 PCC/AC RECONSTRUCT SURFACE (AC) $428,556 $95.00

WASHINGTON STREET GERRARD ST. CAMP ST. 1300 40 52000 AC/AC 3" OVERLAY WITH FABRIC $450,667 $78.00

NORTH HALF SECTOR C 500 10 5000 PCC SIDEWALK REPAIR/REPLACEMENT $105,556 $190.00

FY 23/24 DESIGN $100,000

FY SUBTOTAL $1,084,777.78

ESTIMATED 5 YEAR TOTAL $5,367,791

ESTIMATED FUNDING SOURCES

FY 2018/19 FY 2019/20 FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23

MEASURE T $350,030 $357,030 $364,171 $371,454 $378,884

SB1 $325,000 $333,125 $341,453 $349,989 $358,739

MOE $287,001 $287,001 $287,001 $287,001 $287,001

TOTALS $962,031 $977,156 $992,625 $1,008,444 $1,024,624

ESTIMATED EXPENSES $962,111 $1,122,778 $1,046,680 $1,151,444 $1,084,778

ADDITIONAL REVENUE NEEDED $80 $145,622 $54,055 $143,000 $60,154

EXHIBIT A,  ATTACHMENT 2

ATTACHMENT 6
ITOC Agenda Item 6.9 

April 4, 2018

107



**DASHED LINES INDICATE PARTIAL SIDEWALK 

OR SIDEWALK ONLY ON ONE SIDE **

1. Oat Hill Ct 

2. Table Rock Ct 

3. Urbani Place 

4. Falleri Dr 

5. Cinnabar Ct 

6. Carli Dr 

7. Anrora Dr 

8. Emerald Dr 

9. High Rock Dr

Sidewalk 

Repair Phasing

108

Louise
Text Box
EXHIBIT "B", ATTACHMENT 2

Louise
Text Box
FISCAL YEAR                                LOCATION                        LEVEL OF INVESTMENT    FY 18/19                               North Half Sector A                              $100,000    FY 19/20                               South Half Sector A                              $100,000    FY 20/21                               North Half Sector B                              $100,000    FY 21/22                               South Half Sector B                              $100,000    FY 22/23                               North Half Sector C                              $100,000



Examples of Measure T Eligible Uses

Activity Description

1 Street Operations/Admin

Overall management and daily operations of the streets maintenance divisions. General overhead and 

administration of the streets divisions. Division Manager and support staff are fully or partially paid 

through this key.

2 Street Drainage

Typical maintenance of existing street drainage facilities. This maintenance includes, but is not limited 

to, cleaning drain inlets, replacing/repairing damaged structures, various point repairs and routine 

maintenance on storm drain pipes. Furthermore, this key involves preventative maintenance on 

drainage structures as well as responding to localized flooding resulting from deferred maintenance 

issues.     

Drainage improvements to remediate or eliminate traffic hazards in the right of way.   

3
Street Maintenance, Rehabilitation and 

Reconstruction

A variety of street rehabilitation including occurring within the road right of way, but not limited to, slurry 

seals, crack seals, chip seals, cape seals, micro-surfacing, fog seals, reconstruction, pothole repair, 

minor pavement potholing, overlays,  erosion control, grading, utility work and other maintenance 

activities needed to ensure function of the roadway as well as other activities needed to support the 

roadway outside the travelled way but within the public right of way, including approaches to railroad 

crossings. 

4 Stormwater Operations

This is a relatively new account (created in 2015) introduced to achieve compliance with the U.S. EPA 

NPDES permit. This key funds routine inlet cleaning and maintenance, storm drain cleaning and 

maintenance, trash assessments and various administrative tasks associated with permit compliance 

and contract management.

5 Signage

Staff assigned to the City’s sign shop and the various operational duties performed by the sign shop are 

covered under this key. Said duties include street sign installation and maintenance. MUTCD and 

municipality required markings and signs in the ROW.

6 Sidewalk Replacement
Maintenance, rehabilitation and replacement of existing sidewalks, curb and gutter as well as other 

methods needed to ensure adequate sidewalks. This includes ADA access ramps as required by law.

7 Electrical Admin
Overall management and daily operations of the electrical maintenance division. General overhead, 

administration and work activities of the electrical work.

8 Street Lighting
Operational and engineering duties related to street lighting. New installation, replacement, repair  and 

maintenance work related to lighting facilities, such as street lights, highway lighting.

9 Traffic Signals

Electrical support to municipalities' traffic signals, including basic electrical support, instillation of new 

signal heads and poles, synchronizing signal timing, and any other related electrical maintenance 

activities.

10 Striping

Installation of pavement markings, center lines, edge lines, curb paint, white, yellow and blue pavement 

delineators, bike lane striping and pavement markings. MUTCD and municipality required markings and 

signs in the ROW.

11 Traffic Calming Measures
Speed humps, bulb outs, radar feedback signs and a variety of traffic control devices and materials to 

help create safe travel ways, and paths.

12 Urban Forest Management

Landscaping, trimming, removal, and re-planting of vegetation in the right of way. Hazardous and 

nuisance tree removal, Road side grass and brush mowing, Brush trimming and removal, vegetation 

growth control 

13 Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities 

Bicycle and pedestrian maintenance, repair and construction within the street right of way. Includes 

crack seal, slurry seal, overlay, reconstruct, and remove and replace with a variety of materials 

including AC, and concrete. 

14 Bridges and Culverts Facilities

Inspect, maintain, repair and replace various components of the bridge and bridge systems in the street 

and road right of way. Under the road drainage facilities inspections, maintenance, repair and 

replacement.

15 Salaries and Benefits 

 Employees in the street maintenance division, their supervisors, managers, and support staff (to the 

extent they work on street maintenance).  This will include base pay, OT, part time salaries, and al 

related employee benefits.

ATTACHMENT 7
ITOC Agenda Item 6.9 

April 4, 2018

109



Examples of Measure T Eligible Uses

Activity Description

16 Engineering Design 

This would include design for curb cuts, ramps, striping, and overlays, ADA review of streets, traffic 

calming, and any sort of street maintenance project requiring professional design support outside of 

municipality staff.

17 Technology Support Software, computers, cell phones, etc. used in the street maintenance division.

18 Engineering Support 

Street maintenance support,  construction management, permit applications, procurement, project 

bidding, project management, project planning  Examples include advertising, environmental review, 

printing, state/local permitting, speed testing, etc.

19 Materials 
Supplies used in street maintenance, rehabilitation and reconstruction, including, but not limited to:  

signs, gravel, asphalt, barricades, paint, lumber, safety fencing, hardware, etc. Testing and inspecting.

20 Facilities and Engineering Dept. Supplies

Services in support of the employees and facilities used in the street maintenance division, including 

uniforms, boots, safety equipment, training, certifications, alarm system, office supplies, building 

maintenance, utilities, etc.

21 Contracting Services 
Contractors  hired to complete street maintenance projects, including striping, crack sealing, slurry 

seals, overlays, patching and similar that are not City staff

22 Vehicles and Equipment 

Fuel and maintenance of the street maintenance division fleet, to include replacement and addition of 

vehicles and equipment; Renting equipment for use in street maintenance projects, which could include 

tractors, lifts, and similar equipment; Purchase of small tools and equipment, and parts/maintenance, 

needed for street maintenance

23 General Liability Insurance General Liability insurance for street related losses.

24 Refuse Services Trash removal, roadkill removal.

25 Safety/ Traffic Control
Traffic control by municipality staff or contracted services. Guard rail installation, repair and 

maintenance.

26 Traffic Studies
Traffic studies performed by either county staff or contract staff, necessary to complete street and road 

work. 

27 Ditch cleaning Road side drainage facilities maintenance and repairs

28 Environmental Studies 
Environmental studies by contracted services, CEQA and NEPA support, necessary to complete street 

and road work. 

110



Measure T: Progress Report 
Due March 31st and September 30th 

Amount of funds in Special Measure T Revenue Fund: 

Measure T Project No. Project Name Location Program
Approved 

Budget

Measure T 

Funds
Other Funds 

surface 

treatment

surface 

treatment

surface 

treatment

surface 

treatment

surface 

treatment

surface 

treatment

surface 

treatment

surface 

treatment

surface 

treatment

TOTALS $0 $0 $0

Jurisdiction:

Qtr: 

Class I Facility Tracking 

ATTACHMENT 8
ITOC Agenda Item 6.9 

April 4, 2018

111



Measure T: Progress Report 
Due March 31st and September 30th 

Project Name Project Description Location Total Cost

Funding 

Source Start Date

Estimated 

Completion 

Date

112



Measure T: Progress Report 
Due March 31st and September 30th 

Amount Spent To-

Date

Amount 

Remaining

Project Status 

(% Complete)

Project 

Start 

Date

Estimated 

Completion 

Date

surface treatment

overlay

reconstruction

concrete work

safety

class 1 multi-use facility

113



Measure T: Progress Report 
Due March 31st and September 30th 

 "Recipients must demonstrate that 6.67% equivalent 

to Measure T funds received has been committed to 

Class 1 Bike facilities. 

114



April 4, 2018 
ITOC Agenda Item 6.10 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: INFORMATION 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
ITOC Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO: Independent Taxpayers Oversight Committee 

FROM: Kate Miller, Executive Director 

REPORT BY: Danielle Schmitz, Director – Projects, Programs and Planning 
(707) 259-5968 | dschmitz@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Measure T 6.67% Equivalent Funds Project List Review  

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

Information only 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

In order for jurisdictions to receive Measure T revenues, jurisdictions collectively must 
demonstrate that at least 6.67% of the amount of Measure T revenues (henceforth 
referred to as “Measure T Equivalent”) received each year is being committed to Class I 
facilities identified in the adopted Countywide Bicycle Plan/Active Transportation Plan, 
using funds not derived from the Measure T Ordinance. 

Specifically, the Ordinance states: 

Once this measure becomes operative, in order to receive annual allocations under this 
measure, the Agencies (collectively) must demonstrate that at least six and sixty-seven 
one-hundredths percent (6.67%) of the value of the allocations each year under Section 
3(A) has been committed to Class I Bike lane project(s) identified in the adopted 
Countywide Bicycle Plan, as the Plan may be amended from time to time, through funding 
not derived from this Ordinance.  

This can be accomplished by jurisdictions showing that they have collectively set aside 
funds in their budgets to meet the requirement and/or NVTA has programmed eligible 
funding sources towards Class 1 facilities or by stipulating specific projects.  Since 
Measure T projects will be approved on a five-year rolling basis it is proposed that the 
Measure T Equivalent projects also be identified on a five-year basis to simplify the 
process.   

115

mailto:dschmitz@nvta.ca.gov


ITOC Agenda Letter                     Wednesday, April 4, 2018 
Agenda Item 6.10 

Page 2 of 3 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a fiscal impact? No  
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
For the first five years of the ordinance, July 1, 2018 through July 1, 2023, the dollar 
amount for Measure T Equivalent Projects will be roughly $6.8 million.  This estimate is 
based on the updated revenue projection included as part of Item 6.1 on today’s ITOC 
agenda.  It should be noted that the Measure T revenues are likely to vary from year to 
year and adjustments to the Measure T Equivalent commitments will be updated as part 
of the biennial project update. If there is an excess of projects delivered in a five year 
programming cycle, the excess amount will be rolled forward to meet the requirement in 
future years. If there is a shortfall, the jurisdictions will work together to ensure that the 
requirement is being met in a timely manner in coordination with the NVTA-TA Board.   
 
Measure T Equivalent commitments can be any capital improvement to Class I facilities 
identified in the Countywide Bike Plan/Pedestrian Plan including maintenance and 
rehabilitation of a facility.  
 
Under Section 26 the Ordinance also states: 
 
Maintenance means repair, reconstruction or rehabilitation, and/or replacement of 
streets, roadways, and other infrastructure within the public right-of-way.  
 
It is by this definition of Maintenance that NVTA staff considers routine maintenance not 
to be an eligible use of Measure T Equivalent Funds.  
 
Staff has identified a draft list of projects that can be counted toward meeting the Measure 
T Equivalent commitment as follows:  
 

Project Title Agency 
Measure T 
Equivalent 

Amount 
Year 

Fund 
Source 

Total 
Project 
Amount 

SR 29 Undercrossing  
City of 
Napa  

$161,000 18/19 TFCA $742,000 

Devlin Road Segment E  
County of 
Napa  

$1,200,000 18/19 
Local 
funds  

$5,000,000 

Devlin Road Segment H  
American 
Canyon  

$570,000 18/19 STIP  $5,368,000 

Vine Trail Soscol Gap 
Closure  

City of 
Napa 

$750,000 19/20 
PCA- 
STP 

$750,000 

Green Island Road Vine 
Trail Segment  

American 
Canyon  

$1,000,000 19/20 
OBAG 2 
- STP 

$1,250,000 

Vine Trail Calistoga to County of $450,000 20/21 Local $9,917,000 

116



ITOC Agenda Letter                     Wednesday, April 4, 2018 
Agenda Item 6.10 

Page 3 of 3 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

St. Helena Napa/ St. 
Helena/ 
Calistoga 

Funds 

Bothe Park segment of 
Vine Trail Calistoga to 
St. Helena.   

NVTA 711,000 20/21 
PCA 
STP 

 9,917,000 

Vine Trail Calistoga to 
St. Helena  

NVTA 200,000 20/21 TFCA 9,917,000 

Vine Trail Crack-Seal 
and Micro Surface  

Yountville 100,000 20/21 
Local 
funds 

100,000 

Sierra Avenue 
Extension 

City of 
Napa 

50,000 18/19 
Local 
Funds 

900,000 

Main St. Exchange 
Pedestrian Bridge  

City of 
Napa 

258,000 18/19 
Local 
Funds 

425,000 

Kohl’s Parking Lot 
Multi-use Path  

City of 
Napa 

50,000 18/19 
Local 
Funds 

550,000 

Miscellaneous Class 1 
projects to be defined* 

City of 
Napa 

2,401,200 18/19 & 
19/20 

Local 
Funds 

2,401,200 

Total $7,901,200 

*The City of Napa has set-aside $2,401,200 in Measure T equivalent funds in their budget
for FY 18/19 and 19/20.  These additional funds brings the jurisdictions into compliance
with the Measure T equivalent requirement for the first five years.

As part of their semi-annual Measure T Progress Report, jurisdictions will provide updates 
on their Measure T Equivalent Projects.  NVTA will also provide Measure T equivalent 
project updates in the Annual Report and the Monthly Project Reports that go to the NVTA 
Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) to ensure the jurisdictions are in compliance with 
the requirement.    

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

None 

117



April 4, 2018 
ITOC Agenda Item 6.11 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: INFORMATION 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY-Tax Agency 
ITOC Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 

REPORT BY: Antonio Onorato - Director of Administration, Finance, and Policy 
(707) 259-8779 / Email: aonorato@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Measure T Financial Forecast 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

Information only. That the Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee (ITOC) review the 
Measure T updated financial forecast.   

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The last update of Measure T revenues forecast was incorporated into the Countywide 
Plan circulated in September 2015.  Since then, economic growth has been strong and 
steady.  Napa County has seen increased sales tax revenues due to a robust economy, 
low unemployment, and higher than anticipated tax collections.  Attachment 1 provides 
an updated financial projection of Measure T revenues. The Measure T revenue forecast 
was developed using NVTA Board policy and is an estimate for planning purposes only. 

PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 

1. Staff Report
2. Public Comment

FISCAL IMPACT 

Is there a Fiscal Impact? Not specifically for this item but there are implications for 
Measure T projects based on the refined fund estimates:  

2015 Gross Estimate:  $399 Million 
2018 Gross Estimate:  $662 Million 

118

mailto:aonorato@nvta.ca.gov


ITOC Agenda Letter                     Wednesday, April 4, 2018 
Agenda Item 6.11 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
A key component of financial sustainability includes accurate financial forecasting and 
advance planning.  The purpose of developing financial projections is to provide a level 
of confidence for planning Measure T projects by estimating revenues, expenses, and net 
proceeds the jurisdictions are expected to receive.  The forecast assists NVTA and 
Measure T recipients to plan for the future.  It is quite common to periodically review the 
forecast as well as compare it to the actual cash flow and expenses, to determine whether 
projections are playing out as expected during the course of a year and/or project 
programming cycle.  Forecasted amounts will be replaced with actual receipts as the 
year’s progress.  Projects will also be trued up with actual revenue generations.  It is 
customary to under-program in the event there is a sudden drop in the economy resulting 
in actuals being insufficient to meet contractual obligations.  Likewise, maintenance of 
effort (MOE) amounts may also be adjusted if actual revenues come in higher than 
projections. 
 
Measure T financial projections are assembled through a variety of sources.  Data 
collected from the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), County of Napa, State 
of California’s Department of Finance (DOF), California Department of Transportation 
(Caltrans), County of Napa, and Visit Napa Valley.  The estimate considers current sales 
tax receipts with a 2.5% growth rate through June 2043. The historic growth rate since 
2001 has been 5.3%. 
 
Since the projected funding is shown in current dollars, the projected revenues are shown 
in current dollars.  Actual revenues will depend on actual sales tax proceeds.  The 
allocation of revenues to each jurisdiction is described in the Expenditure Plan.  
Maintenance of Effort (MOE) amounts will be updated every two (2) years to adjust 
revenue projections to actual sales tax receipts. 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachments: (1) Measure T Financial Projections March 2018 

(2) Measure T Financial Projections April 2015 

119



NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY THIS REPORT IS FOR INTERNAL PURPOSES ONLY AND NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION.THIS REPORT IS FOR INTERNAL PURPOSES ONLY AND NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION.

MEASURE T TAX PROJECTION 1.025

JULY 2018 TO JUNE 2043 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Year 7 Year 8 Year 9 Year 10 Year 11 Year 12 Year 13 Year 14

March 2018 Totals Totals Totals Totals Totals Totals Totals Totals Totals Totals Totals Totals Totals Totals

PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION

MONTH MONTH FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR

SALES TAX EARNED PAYMENT RECEIVED 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 2030-31 2031-32

July September 1,314,200$       1,347,055$      1,380,731$       1,415,249.66$       1,450,631$       1,486,896.67$      1,524,069$       1,562,171$       1,601,225$       1,641,256$       1,682,287$       1,724,344$       1,767,453$       1,811,639$       1,856,930$       

August October 1,314,200 1,347,055 1,380,731 1,415,250 1,450,631 1,486,897 1,524,069 1,562,171 1,601,225 1,641,256 1,682,287 1,724,344 1,767,453 1,811,639 1,856,930

September November 1,752,300 1,796,108 1,841,010 1,887,035 1,934,211 1,982,567 2,032,131 2,082,934 2,135,007 2,188,383 2,243,092 2,299,169 2,356,649 2,415,565 2,475,954

1st Qtr Adjustment December 563,185 577,265 591,696 606,489 621,651 637,192 653,122 669,450 686,186 703,341 720,924 738,948 757,421 776,357 795,766

Quarter Total 4,943,885 5,067,482 5,194,169 5,324,023 5,457,124 5,593,552 5,733,391 5,876,726 6,023,644 6,174,235 6,328,591 6,486,806 6,648,976 6,815,200 6,985,580

October December 1,357,400 1,391,335 1,426,118 1,461,771 1,498,316 1,535,774 1,574,168 1,613,522 1,653,860 1,695,207 1,737,587 1,781,026 1,825,552 1,871,191 1,917,971

November January 1,295,426 1,327,812 1,361,007 1,395,032 1,429,908 1,465,656 1,502,297 1,539,854 1,578,351 1,617,810 1,658,255 1,699,711 1,742,204 1,785,759 1,830,403

December February 1,727,302 1,770,485 1,814,747 1,860,115 1,906,618 1,954,284 2,003,141 2,053,219 2,104,550 2,157,164 2,211,093 2,266,370 2,323,029 2,381,105 2,440,633

2nd Qtr Adjustment March 679,423 696,409 713,819 731,665 749,956 768,705 787,923 807,621 827,811 848,507 869,719 891,462 913,749 936,593 960,007

Quarter Total 5,059,551 5,186,040 5,315,691 5,448,583 5,584,798 5,724,418 5,867,528 6,014,217 6,164,572 6,318,686 6,476,654 6,638,570 6,804,534 6,974,648 7,149,014

January March 1,085,245 1,112,376 1,140,186 1,168,690 1,197,907 1,227,855 1,258,551 1,290,015 1,322,266 1,355,322 1,389,205 1,423,935 1,459,534 1,496,022 1,533,423

February April 1,085,245 1,112,376 1,140,186 1,168,690 1,197,907 1,227,855 1,258,551 1,290,015 1,322,266 1,355,322 1,389,205 1,423,935 1,459,534 1,496,022 1,533,423

March May 1,446,926 1,483,099 1,520,177 1,558,181 1,597,136 1,637,064 1,677,991 1,719,940 1,762,939 1,807,012 1,852,188 1,898,492 1,945,955 1,994,603 2,044,469

3rd Qtr Adjustment June 618,340 633,798 649,643 665,884 682,531 699,594 717,084 735,011 753,387 772,221 791,527 811,315 831,598 852,388 873,698

Quarter Total 4,235,756 4,341,649 4,450,191 4,561,445 4,675,482 4,792,369 4,912,178 5,034,982 5,160,857 5,289,878 5,422,125 5,557,678 5,696,620 5,839,036 5,985,012

April June 1,263,813 1,295,408 1,327,794 1,360,988 1,395,013 1,429,888 1,465,636 1,502,277 1,539,833 1,578,329 1,617,787 1,658,232 1,699,688 1,742,180 1,785,735

May July 1,263,813 1,295,408 1,327,794 1,360,988 1,395,013 1,429,888 1,465,636 1,502,277 1,539,833 1,578,329 1,617,787 1,658,232 1,699,688 1,742,180 1,785,735

June August 1,685,084 1,727,211 1,770,391 1,814,651 1,860,017 1,906,518 1,954,181 2,003,035 2,053,111 2,104,439 2,157,050 2,210,976 2,266,251 2,322,907 2,380,980

4th Qtr Adjustment September 706,571 724,235 742,341 760,899 779,922 799,420 819,405 839,890 860,888 882,410 904,470 927,082 950,259 974,015 998,366

Quarter Total 4,919,281 5,042,263 5,168,319 5,297,527 5,429,965 5,565,714 5,704,857 5,847,479 5,993,666 6,143,507 6,297,095 6,454,522 6,615,885 6,781,283 6,950,815

TOTAL 19,158,472$       19,637,434$      20,128,370$      20,631,579$       21,147,369$       21,676,053$      22,217,954$       22,773,403$       23,342,738$      23,926,307$      24,524,464$      25,137,576$      25,766,015$      26,410,166$      27,070,420$       

SBE Fee 294,562$      301,926$       299,158$      306,637$       303,465$       311,051$       307,441$       303,456$       299,079$       294,294$       301,651$       309,192$       316,922$       324,845$       

Projected Proceeds 19,158,472$       19,342,873$      19,826,445$      20,332,421$       20,840,732$       21,372,588$      21,906,903$       22,465,962$       23,039,283$      23,627,228$      24,230,171$      24,835,925$      25,456,823$      26,093,244$      26,745,575$       

All figures presented are before SBE Administration Fee is subtracted 5.94% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50%

SUMMARY BUDGET

Total Revenues (1% Admin+ ITOC Budget) $0 $263,429 $350,267 $401,459 $474,573 $554,890 $642,481 $612,560 $714,085 $823,570 $941,216 $1,067,105 $1,032,711 $1,174,310 $1,324,785

Total Expenses - 183,176 225,676 210,676 210,676 210,676 335,759 212,076 212,076 212,076 212,076 380,808 213,476 213,476 213,476 

Residual Revenue/Deficit $0 $80,253 $124,591 $190,783 $263,897 $344,214 $306,722 $400,484 $502,009 $611,494 $729,140 $686,297 $819,235 $960,834 $1,111,309

DETAILED BUDGET

REVENUES

1% Administration Revenues -$        193,429$         198,264$         203,324$         208,407$        213,726$         219,069$        224,660$        230,393$         236,272$         242,302$         248,359$         254,568$         260,932$         267,456$        

(less ITOC Budget)

Residual Revenue Reallocation Rollover 0 0 80,253$         124,591$         190,783$        263,897$         344,214$        306,722$        400,484$         502,009$         611,494$         729,140$         686,297$         819,235$         960,834$        

Total NVTA Revenues -$       193,429$      278,517$       327,915$      399,190$       477,623$       563,283$       531,382$       630,877$       738,281$       853,795$       977,499$       940,865$       1,080,168$       1,228,290$       

EXPENDITURES

NVTA Budget Executive Director # - 35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 

Finance Director # - 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 

Program Director - 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 

Senior Planner 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 

Financial Analyst - 6,500 6,500  6,500  6,500  6,500  6,500  6,500  6,500  6,500  6,500  6,500  6,500  6,500  6,500  

Legal - 9,600 9,600  9,600  9,600  9,600  9,600  9,600  9,600  9,600  9,600  9,600  9,600  9,600  9,600  

Auditor Controller (TS) - 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 

ACO Accounting Personnel - 1,500 1,500  1,500  1,500  1,500  1,500  1,500  1,500  1,500  1,500  1,500  1,500  1,500 1,500 

Accounting Checks - 576 576 576 576 576 576 576 576 576 576 576 576 576 576 

Rental Expense - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

ITS Network Charges - 2,000 2,000  2,000  2,000  2,000  2,000  2,000  2,000  2,000  2,000  2,000  2,000  2,000  2,000  

General Supplies & Expenses - 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 

NVTA (Bi) annual Report - - 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 

NVTA Reimbursements (1) - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

Website - 10,000 2,500  2,500  2,500  2,500  2,500  2,500  2,500  2,500  2,500  2,500  2,500  2,500  2,500  

Contigencies/Set up - 40,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 

Residual Revenue Re-allocation - - - - - - 123,683 - - - - 167,332 - - - 

NVTA Expenses Subtotal - 170,676 148,176 148,176 148,176 148,176 271,859 148,176 148,176 148,176 148,176 315,508 148,176 148,176 148,176 

ITOC Revenue -$       70,000$       71,750$       73,544$       75,382$       77,267$       79,199$       81,179$       83,208$       85,288$       87,420$       89,606$       91,846$       94,142$       96,496$       

ITOC Budget Stipends - 12,000 7,000  7,000  7,000  7,000  8,400  8,400  8,400  8,400  8,400  9,800  9,800  9,800  9,800  

General Supplies & Expenses - 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 

Performance/Financial Audits - - 70,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 

ITOC Expenses Subtotal - 12,500 77,500 62,500 62,500 62,500 63,900 63,900 63,900 63,900 63,900 65,300 65,300 65,300 65,300 

* Ordinance allows up to $70k (w/ inflationary increases) per year.

(1) Includes General Counsel and County Auditor Controller prior year expenditures.

H:\NVTA - TA\Agendas\Agendas 18 - NVTA - TA\ITOC\AgItems 04 04\Kate Review\[6.11_Measure T Financial Forecast Attch 1 25 year revenue estimate - March 2018- ao.xlsx]Measure T NVTA Projection

Page 1

ATTACHMENT 1
ITOC Agenda Item 6.11

April 4, 2018

120



NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

MEASURE T TAX PROJECTION

JULY 2018 TO JUNE 2043

March 2018

MONTH MONTH

SALES TAX EARNED PAYMENT RECEIVED

July September

August October

September November

1st Qtr Adjustment December

Quarter Total

October December

November January

December February

2nd Qtr Adjustment March

Quarter Total

January March

February April

March May

3rd Qtr Adjustment June

Quarter Total

April June

May July

June August

4th Qtr Adjustment September

Quarter Total

TOTAL

SBE Fee

Projected Proceeds

All figures presented are before SBE Administration Fee is subtracted

SUMMARY BUDGET

Total Revenues (1% Admin+ ITOC Budget)

Total Expenses

Residual Revenue/Deficit

DETAILED BUDGET

REVENUES

1% Administration Revenues
(less ITOC Budget)

Residual Revenue Reallocation Rollover

Total NVTA Revenues

EXPENDITURES

NVTA Budget Executive Director

Finance Director

Program Director

Senior Planner

Financial Analyst

Legal

Auditor Controller (TS)

ACO Accounting Personnel

Accounting Checks

Rental Expense

ITS Network Charges

General Supplies & Expenses

NVTA (Bi) annual Report

NVTA Reimbursements (1)

Website

Contigencies/Set up

Residual Revenue Re-allocation

NVTA Expenses Subtotal

ITOC Revenue

ITOC Budget Stipends

General Supplies & Expenses

Performance/Financial Audits

ITOC Expenses Subtotal

* Ordinance allows up to $70k (w/ inflationary increases) per year.

(1) Includes General Counsel and County Auditor Controller prior year expenditures.

H:\NVTA - TA\Agendas\Agendas 18 - NVTA - TA\ITOC\AgItems 04 04\Kate Review\[6.11_Measure T Financial Forecast Attch 1 25 year revenue estimate - March 2018- ao.xlsx]Measure T NVTA Projection

THIS REPORT IS FOR INTERNAL PURPOSES ONLY AND NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION.

Year 15 Year 16 Year 17 Year 18 Year 19 Year 20 Year 21 Year 22 Year 23 Year 24 Year 25

Totals Totals Totals Totals Totals Totals Totals Totals Totals Totals Totals

PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION

FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR TOTALS

2032-33 2033-34 2034-35 2035-36 2036-37 2037-38 2038-39 2039-40 2040-41 2041-42 2042-43 2019-2043

1,903,353$              1,950,937$              1,999,711$               2,049,703$               2,100,946$               2,153,470$               2,207,306$             2,262,489$             2,319,051$                2,377,028$              2,436,453$               46,012,387$               

1,903,353 1,950,937 1,999,711 2,049,703 2,100,946 2,153,470 2,207,306 2,262,489 2,319,051 2,377,028 2,436,453 46,012,387                 

2,537,853 2,601,299 2,666,332 2,732,990 2,801,315 2,871,348 2,943,131 3,016,710 3,092,127 3,169,430 3,248,666 61,351,016                 

815,660 836,051 856,953 878,376 900,336 922,844 945,915 969,563 993,802 1,018,647 1,044,114 19,718,069                 

7,160,220 7,339,225 7,522,706 7,710,773 7,903,543 8,101,131 8,303,660 8,511,251 8,724,032 8,942,133 9,165,686 173,093,858               

1,965,920 2,015,068 2,065,445 2,117,081 2,170,008 2,224,258 2,279,864 2,336,861 2,395,283 2,455,165 2,516,544 47,524,892                 

1,876,163 1,923,067 1,971,144 2,020,422 2,070,933 2,122,706 2,175,774 2,230,168 2,285,923 2,343,071 2,401,647 45,355,077                 

2,501,648 2,564,190 2,628,294 2,694,002 2,761,352 2,830,385 2,901,145 2,973,674 3,048,016 3,124,216 3,202,321 60,475,793                 

984,008 1,008,608 1,033,823 1,059,669 1,086,160 1,113,314 1,141,147 1,169,676 1,198,918 1,228,891 1,259,613 23,787,774                 

7,327,739 7,510,933 7,698,706 7,891,173 8,088,453 8,290,664 8,497,931 8,710,379 8,928,138 9,151,342 9,380,125 177,143,537               

1,571,758 1,611,052 1,651,329 1,692,612 1,734,927 1,778,300 1,822,758 1,868,327 1,915,035 1,962,911 2,011,984 37,996,281                 

1,571,758 1,611,052 1,651,329 1,692,612 1,734,927 1,778,300 1,822,758 1,868,327 1,915,035 1,962,911 2,011,984 37,996,281                 

2,095,580 2,147,970 2,201,669 2,256,711 2,313,129 2,370,957 2,430,231 2,490,986 2,553,261 2,617,093 2,682,520 50,659,351                 

895,540 917,929 940,877 964,399 988,509 1,013,221 1,038,552 1,064,516 1,091,129 1,118,407 1,146,367 21,649,123                 

6,134,637 6,288,003 6,445,203 6,606,333 6,771,491 6,940,779 7,114,298 7,292,156 7,474,459 7,661,321 7,852,854 148,301,036               

1,830,378 1,876,138 1,923,041 1,971,117 2,020,395 2,070,905 2,122,677 2,175,744 2,230,138 2,285,891 2,343,039 44,248,252                 

1,830,378 1,876,138 1,923,041 1,971,117 2,020,395 2,070,905 2,122,677 2,175,744 2,230,138 2,285,891 2,343,039 44,248,252                 

2,440,504 2,501,517 2,564,055 2,628,156 2,693,860 2,761,206 2,830,237 2,900,992 2,973,517 3,047,855 3,124,052 58,997,669                 

1,023,325 1,048,908 1,075,131 1,102,009 1,129,559 1,157,798 1,186,743 1,216,412 1,246,822 1,277,992 1,309,942 24,738,240                 

7,124,585 7,302,700 7,485,267 7,672,399 7,864,209 8,060,814 8,262,334 8,468,893 8,680,615 8,897,630 9,120,071 172,232,413               

27,747,181$           28,440,860$           29,151,882$             29,880,679$             30,627,696$             31,393,388$             32,178,223$           32,982,678$           33,807,245$              34,652,426$            35,518,737$             670,770,844$             

332,966$                 341,290$                 349,823$                  358,568$                  367,532$                  376,721$                  386,139$                395,792$                405,687$                   415,829$                 426,225$                  8,430,249$                 

27,414,214$           28,099,570$           28,802,059$             29,522,110$             30,260,163$             31,016,667$             31,792,084$           32,586,886$           33,401,558$              34,236,597$            35,092,512$             662,340,595$             

2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50%

$1,484,360 $1,653,260 $1,659,882 $1,846,741 $2,043,642 $2,250,839 $2,468,587 $2,524,108 $2,762,358 $3,011,970 $3,273,230 $11,896,898

213,476             385,314             214,876              214,876              214,876              214,876              387,918             216,276             216,276               216,276              390,782              5,757,001             

$1,270,884 $1,267,946 $1,445,006 $1,631,865 $1,828,766 $2,035,963 $2,080,669 $2,307,832 $2,546,082 $2,795,694 $2,882,448 $6,139,897

274,142$                       280,996$                       288,021$                        295,221$                        302,602$                        310,167$                        317,921$                      325,869$                      334,016$                          342,366$                        350,925$                        6,623,406$                        

1,111,309$                    1,270,884$                    1,267,946$                     1,445,006$                     1,631,865$                     1,828,766$                     2,035,963$                   2,080,669$                   2,307,832$                       2,546,082$                     2,795,694$                     2,882,448$                        

1,385,452$              1,551,879$              1,555,967$               1,740,227$               1,934,466$               2,138,933$               2,353,883$             2,406,537$             2,641,848$                2,888,448$              3,146,620$               9,505,854$                 

35,000                               35,000                               35,000                                 35,000                                 35,000                                 35,000                                 35,000                              35,000                              35,000                                   35,000                                35,000                                 875,000                                  

20,000                               20,000                               20,000                                 20,000                                 20,000                                 20,000                                 20,000                              20,000                              20,000                                   20,000                                20,000                                 500,000                                  

20,000                               20,000                               20,000                                 20,000                                 20,000                                 20,000                                 20,000                              20,000                              20,000                                   20,000                                20,000                                 500,000                                  

15,000                               15,000                               15,000                                 15,000                                 15,000                                 15,000                                 15,000                              15,000                              15,000                                   15,000                                15,000                                 

6,500                                  6,500                                  6,500                                   6,500                                   6,500                                   6,500                                   6,500                                 6,500                                 6,500                                     6,500                                   6,500                                   162,500                                  

9,600                                  9,600                                  9,600                                   9,600                                   9,600                                   9,600                                   9,600                                 9,600                                 9,600                                     9,600                                   9,600                                   240,000                                  

10,000                               10,000                               10,000                                 10,000                                 10,000                                 10,000                                 10,000                              10,000                              10,000                                   10,000                                10,000                                 250,000                                  

1,500                             1,500                             1,500                              1,500                              1,500                              1,500                              1,500                            1,500                            1,500                                1,500                              1,500                                   37,500                                    

576                                     576                                     576                                       576                                       576                                       576                                       576                                    576                                    576                                         576                                      576                                       14,400                                    

-                                      -                                      -                                        -                                        -                                        -                                        -                                     -                                     -                                         -                                       -                                        -                                           

2,000                                  2,000                                  2,000                                   2,000                                   2,000                                   2,000                                   2,000                                 2,000                                 2,000                                     2,000                                   2,000                                   50,000                                    

500                                     500                                     500                                       500                                       500                                       500                                       500                                    500                                    500                                         500                                      500                                       12,500                                    

15,000                               15,000                               15,000                                 15,000                                 15,000                                 15,000                                 15,000                              15,000                              15,000                                   15,000                                15,000                                 360,000                                  

-                                      -                                      -                                        -                                        -                                        -                                        -                                     -                                     -                                         -                                       -                                        -                                           

2,500                                  2,500                                  2,500                                   2,500                                   2,500                                   2,500                                   2,500                                 2,500                                 2,500                                     2,500                                   2,500                                   70,000                                    

10,000                               10,000                               10,000                                 10,000                                 10,000                                 10,000                                 10,000                              10,000                              10,000                                   10,000                                10,000                                 280,000                                  

-                                      170,438                             -                                        -                                        -                                        -                                        171,642                            -                                     -                                         -                                       174,506                               807,601                                  

148,176                             318,614                             148,176                               148,176                               148,176                               148,176                               319,818                            148,176                            148,176                                148,176                              322,682                               4,159,501                              

98,908$                   101,381$                 103,915$                  106,513$                  109,176$                  111,906$                  114,703$                117,571$                120,510$                   123,523$                 126,611$                  2,391,043$                 

9,800                                  11,200                               11,200                                 11,200                                 11,200                                 11,200                                 12,600                              12,600                              12,600                                   12,600                                12,600                                 250,000                                  

500                                     500                                     500                                       500                                       500                                       500                                       500                                    500                                    500                                         500                                      500                                       12,500                                    

55,000                               55,000                               55,000                                 55,000                                 55,000                                 55,000                                 55,000                              55,000                              55,000                                   55,000                                55,000                                 1,335,000                              

65,300                               66,700                               66,700                                 66,700                                 66,700                                 66,700                                 68,100                              68,100                              68,100                                   68,100                                68,100                                 1,597,500                              

Page 2121



NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY THIS REPORT IS FOR INTERNAL PURPOSES ONLY AND NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION.

MEASURE T TAX PROJECTION

JULY 2018 TO JUNE 2043 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Year 7 Year 8 Year 9 Year 10 Year 11 Year 12 Year 13 Year 14 Year 15

Totals Totals Totals Totals Totals Totals Totals Totals Totals Totals Totals Totals Totals Totals Totals

PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION

MONTH MONTH FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR

SALES TAX EARNED PAYMENT RECEIVED 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 2030-31 2031-32 2032-33

July September 968,600$     968,600$      978,286$      978,286$      988,069$      988,069$      988,069$      997,950$      997,950$      997,950$      1,007,929$      1,007,929$      1,007,929$      1,007,929$      1,018,008$      

August October 1,291,400 1,291,400 1,304,314 1,304,314 1,317,357 1,317,357 1,317,357 1,330,531 1,330,531 1,330,531 1,343,836 1,343,836 1,343,836 1,343,836 1,357,274

September November 1,476,092 1,476,092 1,490,853 1,490,853 1,505,761 1,505,761 1,505,761 1,520,819 1,520,819 1,520,819 1,536,027 1,536,027 1,536,027 1,536,027 1,551,388

1st Qtr Adjustment December 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Quarter Total 3,736,092 3,736,092 3,773,453 3,773,453 3,811,187 3,811,187 3,811,187 3,849,299 3,849,299 3,849,299 3,887,792 3,887,792 3,887,792 3,887,792 3,926,670

October December 1,064,600 1,064,600 1,075,246 1,075,246 1,085,998 1,085,998 1,085,998 1,096,858 1,096,858 1,096,858 1,107,827 1,107,827 1,107,827 1,107,827 1,118,905

November January 1,419,400 1,419,400 1,433,594 1,433,594 1,447,930 1,447,930 1,447,930 1,462,409 1,462,409 1,462,409 1,477,033 1,477,033 1,477,033 1,477,033 1,491,804

December February 1,362,144 1,362,144 1,375,765 1,375,765 1,389,523 1,389,523 1,389,523 1,403,418 1,403,418 1,403,418 1,417,453 1,417,453 1,417,453 1,417,453 1,431,627

2nd Qtr Adjustment March 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Quarter Total 3,846,144 3,846,144 3,884,605 3,884,605 3,923,451 3,923,451 3,923,451 3,962,686 3,962,686 3,962,686 4,002,313 4,002,313 4,002,313 4,002,313 4,042,336

January March 1,018,600 1,018,600 1,028,786 1,028,786 1,039,074 1,039,074 1,039,074 1,049,465 1,049,465 1,049,465 1,059,959 1,059,959 1,059,959 1,059,959 1,070,559

February April 1,338,400 1,338,400 1,351,784 1,351,784 1,365,302 1,365,302 1,365,302 1,378,955 1,378,955 1,378,955 1,392,744 1,392,744 1,392,744 1,392,744 1,406,672

March May 1,496,850 1,496,850 1,511,819 1,511,819 1,526,937 1,526,937 1,526,937 1,542,206 1,542,206 1,542,206 1,557,628 1,557,628 1,557,628 1,557,628 1,573,204

3rd Qtr Adjustment June 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Quarter Total 3,853,850 3,853,850 3,892,389 3,892,389 3,931,312 3,931,312 3,931,312 3,970,626 3,970,626 3,970,626 4,010,332 4,010,332 4,010,332 4,010,332 4,050,435

April June 1,065,200 1,065,200 1,075,852 1,075,852 1,086,611 1,086,611 1,086,611 1,097,477 1,097,477 1,097,477 1,108,451 1,108,451 1,108,451 1,108,451 1,119,536

May July 1,065,200 1,065,200 1,075,852 1,075,852 1,086,611 1,086,611 1,086,611 1,097,477 1,097,477 1,097,477 1,108,451 1,108,451 1,108,451 1,108,451 1,119,536

June August 1,420,200 1,420,200 1,434,402 1,434,402 1,448,746 1,448,746 1,448,746 1,463,233 1,463,233 1,463,233 1,477,866 1,477,866 1,477,866 1,477,866 1,492,644

4th Qtr Adjustment September 482,672 482,672 487,499 487,499 492,374 492,374 492,374 497,297 497,297 497,297 502,270 502,270 502,270 502,270 507,293

Quarter Total 4,033,272 4,033,272 4,073,605 4,073,605 4,114,341 4,114,341 4,114,341 4,155,484 4,155,484 4,155,484 4,197,039 4,197,039 4,197,039 4,197,039 4,239,009

TOTAL 15,469,358$     15,469,358$      15,624,051$      15,624,051$      15,780,292$      15,780,292$      15,780,292$      15,938,095$      15,938,095$      15,938,095$      16,097,476$     16,097,476$     16,097,476$     16,097,476$     16,258,451$     

SBE Fee 232,040$     154,694$      156,241$      156,241$      157,803$      157,803$      157,803$      159,381$      159,381$      159,381$      160,975$      160,975$      160,975$      160,975$      162,585$      

Projected Receipts 15,237,318$     15,314,664$      15,467,811$      15,467,811$      15,622,489$      15,622,489$      15,622,489$      15,778,714$      15,778,714$      15,778,714$      15,936,501$     15,936,501$     15,936,501$     15,936,501$     16,095,866$     

All figures presented are before SBE Administration Fee is subtracted

SUMMARY BUDGET

Total Revenues (1% Admin) $152,373 $158,824 $174,806 $209,850 $244,879 $279,908 $188,854 $223,045 $257,236 $291,428 $326,697 $193,234 $227,103 $260,972 $296,434

Total Expenses 146,696 138,696 121,196 121,196 121,196 247,279 123,596 123,596 123,596 124,096 292,828 125,496 125,496 125,496 125,996 

Residual Revenue/Deficit $5,677 $20,128 $53,610 $88,654 $123,683 $32,629 $65,258 $99,449 $133,640 $167,332 $33,869 $67,738 $101,607 $135,476 $170,438

DETAILED BUDGET

REVENUES

1% Administration Revenues 82,373$       83,147$       84,678$       86,241$       86,225$       86,225$       86,225$       87,787$       87,787$       87,787$       89,365$       89,365$       89,365$       89,365$       90,959$       

(less ITOC Budget)

Residual Revenue Reallocation Rollover 0 5,677$       20,128$       53,610$       88,654$       123,683$       32,629$       65,258$       99,449$       133,640$       167,332$       33,869$       67,738$       101,607$       135,476$       

Total NVTA Revenues 82,373$      88,824$     104,806$      139,850$      174,879$      209,908$      118,854$      153,045$      187,236$      221,428$      256,697$      123,234$      157,103$      190,972$      226,434$      

EXPENDITURES

NVTA Budget Executive Director 9,000 4,600 4,600 4,600 4,600 4,600 4,600 4,600 4,600 4,600 4,600  4,600  4,600  4,600  4,600  

Finance Manager 6,750 6,450 6,450 6,450 6,450 6,450 6,450 6,450 6,450 6,450 6,450  6,450  6,450  6,450  6,450  

Program Manager 6,020 6,020 6,020 6,020 6,020 6,020 6,020 6,020 6,020 6,020 6,020  6,020  6,020  6,020  6,020  

Financial Analyst 2,700 2,700 2,700 2,700 2,700 2,700 2,700 2,700 2,700 2,700 2,700  2,700  2,700  2,700  2,700  

Legal 14,400  9,600 9,600 9,600 9,600 9,600 9,600 9,600 9,600 9,600 9,600  9,600  9,600  9,600  9,600  

Auditor Controller 8,750 5,250 5,250 5,250 5,250 5,250 5,250 5,250 5,250 5,250 5,250  5,250  5,250  5,250  5,250  

ACO Accounting Personnel 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500  1,500  1,500 1,500 1,500 

Accounting Checks 576 576 576 576 576 576 576 576 576 576 576 576 576 576 576 

Rental Expense 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000  2,000  2,000  2,000  2,000  

ITS Network Charges 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000  2,000  2,000  2,000  2,000  

General Supplies & Expenses 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 

NVTA (Bi) annual Report - 10,000 7,500 7,500 7,500 8,500 8,500 8,500 8,500 9,000 9,000  9,000  9,000  9,000  9,500  

NCTPA Reimbursements (1) 35,000  - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

Set up Costs 10,000  - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

Contigencies 40,000  10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 

Residual Revenue Re-allocation - - - - - 123,683 - - - - 167,332 - - - - 

NVTA Expenses Subtotal 139,196 61,196 58,696 58,696 58,696 183,379 59,696 59,696 59,696 60,196 227,528 60,196 60,196 60,196 60,696 

ITOC Revenue 70,000$      70,000$     70,000$      70,000$      70,000$      70,000$      70,000$      70,000$      70,000$      70,000$      70,000$      70,000$      70,000$      70,000$      70,000$      

ITOC Budget Stipends 7,000 7,000 7,000 7,000 7,000 8,400 8,400 8,400 8,400 8,400 9,800  9,800  9,800  9,800  9,800  

General Supplies & Expenses 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 

Performance/Financial Audits - 70,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 

ITOC Expenses Subtotal 7,500 77,500 62,500 62,500 62,500 63,900 63,900 63,900 63,900 63,900 65,300 65,300 65,300 65,300 65,300 

Residual Revenue/(Deficit), 

  subject to future project re-allocation 5,677$      20,128$     53,610$      88,654$      123,683$      32,629$      65,258$      99,449$      133,640$      167,332$      33,869$      67,738$      101,607$      135,476$      170,438$      

* Ordinance allows up to $70k (w/ inflationary increases) per year.

(1) Includes General Counsel and County Auditor Controller prior year expenditures.

H:\NVTA - TA\Agendas\Agendas 18 - NVTA - TA\ITOC\AgItems 04 04\Kate Review\[6.11_Measure T Financial Forecast Attch 2 25 year revenue estimate - April 2015.xlsx]Measure T NCTPA Projection

Page 1

ATTACHMENT 2
ITOC Agenda Item 6.11

April 4, 2018

122



NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

MEASURE T TAX PROJECTION

JULY 2018 TO JUNE 2043

MONTH MONTH

SALES TAX EARNED PAYMENT RECEIVED

July September

August October

September November

1st Qtr Adjustment December

Quarter Total

October December

November January

December February

2nd Qtr Adjustment March

Quarter Total

January March

February April

March May

3rd Qtr Adjustment June

Quarter Total

April June

May July

June August

4th Qtr Adjustment September

Quarter Total

TOTAL

SBE Fee

Projected Receipts

All figures presented are before SBE Administration Fee is subtracted

SUMMARY BUDGET

Total Revenues (1% Admin)

Total Expenses

Residual Revenue/Deficit

DETAILED BUDGET

REVENUES

1% Administration Revenues

(less ITOC Budget)

Residual Revenue Reallocation Rollover

Total NVTA Revenues

EXPENDITURES

NVTA Budget Executive Director

Finance Manager

Program Manager

Financial Analyst

Legal

Auditor Controller

ACO Accounting Personnel

Accounting Checks

Rental Expense

ITS Network Charges

General Supplies & Expenses

NVTA (Bi) annual Report

NCTPA Reimbursements (1)

Set up Costs

Contigencies

Residual Revenue Re-allocation

NVTA Expenses Subtotal

ITOC Revenue

ITOC Budget Stipends

General Supplies & Expenses

Performance/Financial Audits

ITOC Expenses Subtotal

Residual Revenue/(Deficit), 

  subject to future project re-allocation

* Ordinance allows up to $70k (w/ inflationary increases) per year.

(1) Includes General Counsel and County Auditor Controller prior year expenditures.

H:\NVTA - TA\Agendas\Agendas 18 - NVTA - TA\ITOC\AgItems 04 04\Kate Review\[6.11_Measure T Financial Forecast Attch 2 25 year revenue estimate - April 2015.xlsx]Measure T NCTPA Projection

THIS REPORT IS FOR INTERNAL PURPOSES ONLY AND NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION.

Year 16 Year 17 Year 18 Year 19 Year 20 Year 21 Year 22 Year 23 Year 24 Year 25

Totals Totals Totals Totals Totals Totals Totals Totals Totals Totals

PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION PROJECTION

FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR TOTALS

2033-34 2034-35 2035-36 2036-37 2037-38 2038-39 2039-40 2040-41 2041-42 2042-43 2018-2043

1,018,008$      1,018,008$      1,028,188$      1,028,188$      1,028,188$      1,028,188$      1,038,470$      1,038,470$      1,038,470$      1,048,855$      25,214,588$      

1,357,274 1,357,274 1,370,847 1,370,847 1,370,847 1,370,847 1,384,556 1,384,556 1,384,556 1,398,401 33,617,715              

1,551,388 1,551,388 1,566,901 1,566,901 1,566,901 1,566,901 1,582,570 1,582,570 1,582,570 1,598,396 38,425,616              

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - 

3,926,670 3,926,670 3,965,937 3,965,937 3,965,937 3,965,937 4,005,596 4,005,596 4,005,596 4,045,652 97,257,919              

1,118,905 1,118,905 1,130,094 1,130,094 1,130,094 1,130,094 1,141,395 1,141,395 1,141,395 1,152,809 27,713,659              

1,491,804 1,491,804 1,506,722 1,506,722 1,506,722 1,506,722 1,521,789 1,521,789 1,521,789 1,537,007 36,949,810              

1,431,627 1,431,627 1,445,943 1,445,943 1,445,943 1,445,943 1,460,403 1,460,403 1,460,403 1,475,007 35,459,322              

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - 

4,042,336 4,042,336 4,082,759 4,082,759 4,082,759 4,082,759 4,123,587 4,123,587 4,123,587 4,164,823 100,122,792            

1,070,559 1,070,559 1,081,264 1,081,264 1,081,264 1,081,264 1,092,077 1,092,077 1,092,077 1,102,998 26,516,188              

1,406,672 1,406,672 1,420,739 1,420,739 1,420,739 1,420,739 1,434,946 1,434,946 1,434,946 1,449,295 34,841,219              

1,573,204 1,573,204 1,588,936 1,588,936 1,588,936 1,588,936 1,604,826 1,604,826 1,604,826 1,620,874 38,965,988              

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - 

4,050,435 4,050,435 4,090,939 4,090,939 4,090,939 4,090,939 4,131,849 4,131,849 4,131,849 4,173,167 100,323,395            

1,119,536 1,119,536 1,130,731 1,130,731 1,130,731 1,130,731 1,142,039 1,142,039 1,142,039 1,153,459 27,729,278              

1,119,536 1,119,536 1,130,731 1,130,731 1,130,731 1,130,731 1,142,039 1,142,039 1,142,039 1,153,459 27,729,278              

1,492,644 1,492,644 1,507,571 1,507,571 1,507,571 1,507,571 1,522,647 1,522,647 1,522,647 1,537,873 36,970,636              

507,293 507,293 512,366 512,366 512,366 512,366 517,490 517,490 517,490 522,665 12,564,912              

4,239,009 4,239,009 4,281,399 4,281,399 4,281,399 4,281,399 4,324,213 4,324,213 4,324,213 4,367,456 104,994,104            

16,258,451$     16,258,451$     16,421,035$     16,421,035$     16,421,035$     16,421,035$     16,585,245$     16,585,245$     16,585,245$     16,751,098$     402,698,210$      

162,585$      162,585$      164,210$      164,210$      164,210$      164,210$      165,852$      165,852$      165,852$      167,511$      4,104,329$      

16,095,866$     16,095,866$     16,256,825$     16,256,825$     16,256,825$     16,256,825$     16,419,393$     16,419,393$     16,419,393$     16,583,587$     398,593,881$      

$331,397 $194,522 $229,694 $264,866 $299,538 $334,211 $197,466 $232,364 $267,262 $303,802 $3,987,501

297,834           127,396           127,396           127,896           127,896           300,938           129,296           129,296           129,296           303,802           3,987,501          

$33,563 $67,126 $102,298 $136,970 $171,642 $33,273 $68,170 $103,068 $137,966 $0 $0

90,959$       90,959$       92,568$       92,568$       92,568$       92,568$       94,194$       94,194$       94,194$       95,836$       2,237,501$       

170,438$       33,563$       67,126$       102,298$       136,970$       171,642$       33,273$       68,170$       103,068$       137,966$       0$       

261,397$      124,522$      159,694$      194,866$      229,538$      264,211$      127,466$      162,364$      197,262$      233,802$      2,237,501$      

4,600  4,600  4,600  4,600  4,600  4,600  4,600  4,600  4,600  4,600  119,400 

6,450  6,450  6,450  6,450  6,450  6,450  6,450  6,450  6,450  6,450  161,550 

6,020  6,020  6,020  6,020  6,020  6,020  6,020  6,020  6,020  6,020  150,500 

2,700  2,700  2,700  2,700  2,700  2,700  2,700  2,700  2,700  2,700  67,500 

9,600  9,600  9,600  9,600  9,600  9,600  9,600  9,600  9,600  9,600  244,800 

5,250  5,250  5,250  5,250  5,250  5,250  5,250  5,250  5,250  5,250  134,750 

1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500  37,500 

576 576 576 576 576 576 576 576 576 576 14,400 

2,000  2,000  2,000  2,000  2,000  2,000  2,000  2,000  2,000  2,000  50,000 

2,000  2,000  2,000  2,000  2,000  2,000  2,000  2,000  2,000  2,000  50,000 

500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 12,500 

9,500  9,500  9,500  10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 219,500 

- - - - - - - - - - 35,000 

- - - - - - - - - - 10,000 

10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 280,000 

170,438 - - - - 171,642 - - - 174,506 807,601 

231,134 60,696 60,696 61,196 61,196 232,838 61,196 61,196 61,196 235,702 2,395,001  

70,000$      70,000$      70,000$      70,000$      70,000$      70,000$      70,000$      70,000$      70,000$      70,000$      1,750,000$      

11,200 11,200 11,200 11,200 11,200 12,600 12,600 12,600 12,600 12,600 245,000 

500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 12,500 

55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 1,335,000  

66,700 66,700 66,700 66,700 66,700 68,100 68,100 68,100 68,100 68,100 1,592,500  

33,563$      67,126$      102,298$      136,970$      171,642$      33,273$      68,170$      103,068$      137,966$      0$     0$      

Page 2123



April 4, 2018 
ITOC Agenda Item 6.12 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY-Tax Agency 
ITOC Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 

REPORT BY: Antonio Onorato- Director of Administration, Finance, and Policy 
(707) 259-8779 / Email: aonorato@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Request for Proposals (RFP) 2018-01 Professional Audit Services 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee (ITOC) review the draft Request 
for Proposals for professional audit services of the tax agency and approve the scope of 
work for its release to the public.   

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Napa Countywide Road Maintenance Act provides guidance on ITOC’s active 
involvement in the selection of an audit firm to perform a compliance and financial audit 
of Measure T.  Per the Ordinance regulations, the ITOC shall jointly recommend with 
NVTA the selection of an audit firm to conduct the annual independent audit of the 
agency’s financial transactions and compliance of Measure T that is fully compliant with 
all Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) statements and Generally 
Accepted Government Auditing Standards (GAGAS).  

While not a requirement, NVTA staff believe it is fiscally prudent to bundle all auditing 
services required by the agency.  This not only results in economies of scale – that is that 
the Measure T program alone is not likely to garner sufficient attention from a number of 
auditing firms because of its relative size, but is also likely to result in auditor time 
efficiencies as there is a nexus between the various funds and programs that NVTA 
administers.  The ITOC may consider an alternative contracting structure. 

PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 

1. Staff Report
2. Public Comment
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote

124



ITOC Agenda Letter                     Wednesday, April 4, 2018 
Agenda Item 6.12 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a Fiscal Impact?  Not for this item.  Bidders will provide a cost rate sheet for 
their services. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
The Napa Countywide Road Maintenance Act Ordinance No. 2012-01, commonly known 
as Measure T provides guidance for the selection of a professional audit services firm.  
The regulation states “The ITOC shall, under the procurement rules of the Authority jointly 
recommend with the active involvement of the Executive Director and the Authority 
Auditor, retention of an independent California Certified Public Accountant to conduct a 
biennial performance audit of the Agencies, pursuant to the provisions of this Ordinance, 
report findings based on the audits to the Authority, and recommend any additional 
considerations which the ITOC believes may improve the integrity of program 
implementation while meeting all voter mandates.” 
 
NVTA is also seeking auditing services at this time for its other activities.  With this in 
mind, NVTA is committed to working with the ITOC to select a highly qualified auditor to 
express an opinion for both the Napa Valley Transportation Authority’s financial 
statements as well as the Napa Valley Transportation Authority- Tax Agency financial 
statements and compliance of Measure T procedures.  The language in Measure T 
necessitates both a performance (financial) audit and a compliance (project) audit.   The 
firm that is selected will provide separate auditor opinions for the NVTA and NVTA-TA.  
 
Although possible, it is highly unlikely that two different firms will bid separately for each 
agency’s financial statements.  The reason is that, as noted in the ordinance, “a CPA shall 
conduct the financial and performance audits of NVTA-TA”.  This restricts the number of 
firms that can perform and audit since most compliance audits do not require a CPA 
accreditation.  Also, nearly all CPA firms have the required license to perform an audit 
according to GAGAS standards.  Retaining a single audit firm will reduce overhead cost 
by having the same audit team performing both audits at the same time. 
 
The ITOC may wish to recommend an alternative contracting structure, nevertheless, 
because of the financial benefits of contracting with one firm, NVTA staff are compelled 
to recommend to the NVTA-TA to bundle all auditing services into one contract. 
  
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachment: (1) Draft Request for Proposals No.2018-01 

125



ATTACHMENT 1 
ITOC Agenda Item 6.12 

April 4, 2018 

 
 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
 

To provide 
 

PROFESSIONAL AUDIT SERVICES 
 FOR THE  

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
AND THE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY- TAX AGENCY 
 

RFP No. 2018-01 
 

Dear Proposers: 
 

The Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) is issuing a Request for Proposals (RFP) for 
PROFESSIONAL AUDIT SERVICES for the Napa Valley Transportation Authority and the Napa 
Valley Transportation Authority- Tax Agency.  NVTA invites qualified entities or individuals that 
possess qualifications, experience and knowledge to submit a proposal. 
 

Any contract to be awarded as a result of this RFP will be awarded without discrimination based 
on race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, race, religious creed, color, national origin, 
ancestry, denial of family and medical care leave, medical condition (cancer/genetic 
characteristics) physical handicap, disability (mental or physical) including HIV and AIDS, denial 
of pregnancy disability leave or reasonable accommodation, marital status, age (40 and above). 
 

To obtain a full copy of the RFP, please contact the NVTA administrative office at (707) 259-8780 
or download the document in PDF format from our website www.nvta.ca.gov.  All inquiries 
pertaining to this RFP should be emailed to Renée Y. Kulick, Administrative Technician, at the 
following email address:  rkulick@nvta.ca.gov.  Response to all questions submitted will be 
answered in accordance with the Procurement Schedule for this RFP. 
 

Proposals must be received no later than 2:00 PM (local), on TBD. 
Late proposals will not be considered. 
 

Proposals will be accepted either by hand delivery or by mail addressed as follows: 
 

 Kate Miller 
 Executive Director  

Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
 625 Burnell Street. 
 Napa, CA  94559 
 

 RFP No. 2018-01 
 

All correspondence and transmittals should be complete, sealed, and clearly marked as 
“Proposal Submittal RFP # 2018-01” and should indicate the date and time of RFP closing.  The 
proposer shall submit one (1) original proposal, three (3) copies, and one (1) on digital media 
(USB/Flashdrive/CD) (five (5) in total). 
 

We look forward to receiving your proposal.  
 

Sincerely, 
 

 
 

Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

 

126



 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
 

To provide 
 

PROFESSIONAL AUDIT SERVICES  
 

FOR THE  
NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

AND THE 
NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY - TAX AGENCY 

 
RFP No. 2018-01 

 

Issued by:  

Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

TBD 
 
 

RESPONSES DUE: 
 

TBD 
 

at the 
 

Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
625 Burnell Street 
Napa, CA  94559 

 
 
 
 
Release of RFP authorized by: 
 
 
____________________________________________________ 
Kate Miller, NVTA Executive Director          Date 
 
 
  

127



 

Page 3 of 45 
 

PROCUREMENT SCHEDULE 
 

KEY RFP DATES 

Issue Date TBD  

Pre-proposal Conference Not scheduled 

Deadline for Submitting Written 
Questions 

TBD 

Answers to Written Questions Posted TBD  

Deadline for Proposal Submittal TBD 

Interviews (tentative) None scheduled  

Final Selection (tentative) TBD 

Award Contract TBD 

 
 
 
 

Request for Proposal 
 

 RFP No. 2018-01 
 

 PROFESSIONAL AUDIT SERVICES FOR THE  
NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

AND THE 
NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY- TAX AGENCY 

 
SECTION 1 – INTRODUCTION- Napa Valley Transportation Authority  
 
The Napa Valley Transportation Authority (herein referred as “NVTA” or “Agency” or “Vine 
Transit”) is requesting proposals from qualified certified public accounting firms to conduct 
the annual independent audit of the Agency’s financial statements and prepare related 
reports for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2019, 2020, 2021, 2022, 2023, and 2024, to 
include consolidating statements of financial position and activities, and to provide 
additional management services as requested by NVTA. These audits are to be 
performed in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States, generally accepted auditing standards and Uniform Guidance (formerly, the U.S. 
Office of Management and Budget's (OMB) Circular A-133).  
 
  

128



 

Page 4 of 45 
 

The Napa Valley Transportation Authority is a joint powers authority (JPA) established in 
June of 1998 with members including the cities of American Canyon, Calistoga, Napa, St. 
Helena, Town of Yountville, and the County of Napa. The work activities of NVTA are 
defined by the joint powers agreement and overseen by the Board of Directors made up 
of elected officials from the respective member agencies, and an ex-officio member from 
the Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC).  NVTA serves as the Congestion 
Management Agency (CMA) for Napa County and is responsible for countywide 
transportation planning and programming of State and Federal funding for transportation 
projects within the county. NVTA is the lead agency on several major transportation 
improvement projects throughout the county. 
 
NVTA serves as the countywide transportation planning body for the incorporated and 
unincorporated areas within Napa County and is responsible for programming State and 
Federal funding for transportation projects within the county.  NVTA is charged with 
coordinating short and long term planning and funding for the highways, streets and 
roads, transit and paratransit, bicycle and pedestrian improvements located within the 
county. 
 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority- Tax Agency 
 
The Napa Valley Transportation Authority- Tax Agency (NVTA-TA) is the local 
transportation sales tax authority.  NVTA-TA is responsible for the oversight and 
administration of Napa Countywide Maintenance Act, commonly known as Measure T, 
the 25-year, ½% sales tax for street and road improvements approved by the voters on 
November 6, 2012.  Measure T becomes effective on July 1, 2018.  The first audit will be 
for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020. 
 
 

SECTION 2 - INSTRUCTIONS TO PROPOSERS 
 

A. Pre-Proposal Conference 
 

A pre-proposal conference is not scheduled for this procurement.  All questions 
should be sent to Renee Y. Kulick, Administrative Technician, at 
rkulick@nvta.ca.gov, in accordance with the Procurement Schedule. 

 
B. Examination of Proposal Documents 

 
By submitting a proposal, the proposer represents that it has thoroughly 
examined and become familiar with the work required under this RFP, and that 
it is capable of performing the work identified in ATTACHMENT A, Scope of 
Work. 

 
C. Addenda/Clarifications 

 
Explanations or clarifications desired by respondents regarding the meaning or 
interpretation of the RFP in writing.   
 

129

mailto:rkulick@nvta.ca.gov


 

Page 5 of 45 
 

All inquiries pertaining to this RFP should be emailed to Renee Y. Kulick, 
Administrative Technician, at the following email address: rkulick@nvta.ca.gov.  
Questions submitted after the deadline established in the Procurement 
schedule will not be answered. 

 
D. Submission of Proposals 

 
Listed below are all documents that are required to be submitted as part of a 
response to this request for proposal.   Write “yes” on the blank space if you 
have included those items for submittal of your RFP. 
 
 
_____Cost Proposal (ATTACHMENT B) 
_____Cost Proposal Worksheet (ATTACHMENT B)  
_____Proposer’s - Reference Form (ATTACHMENT F) 
_____Proposer’s Designated Contact List (ATTACHMENT G) 
_____Receipt of Addenda Form (if issued) 
_____Technical Information Relative to RFP 
_____Agreement to insurance requirements as outlined in ATTACHMENT D  
_____Disclosure of Governmental Positions (ATTACHMENT H) 
_____Disqualification Questionnaire (ATTACHMENT G) 

 
All proposal submittals shall be transmitted with a cover letter. The person 
authorized by the proposer/team to negotiate a contract with NVTA shall sign 
the cover letter and the letter shall include the name, title, address, email 
address and the telephone number of the individual to whom correspondence 
and other contacts should be directed during the proposer selection process. 
Address the cover letter as follows: 

 

Kate Miller 
Executive Director 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
625 Burnell Street 
Napa, CA  94559 

 
RFP No. 2018-01 

 
The Proposer shall submit one (1) original proposal, three (3) copies, and one 
(1) on digital media (USB/Flash drive/CD) (five (5) in total) of its. proposal in a 
sealed envelope, addressed as noted above, bearing the proposer's name and 
address, and clearly marked as follows: 
 

"Proposal Submittal - NVTA RFP No. 2018-01" 
 

Proposals must be received in accordance with the Procurement Schedule.  
Late proposals will not be considered. 
 
 

130



 

Page 6 of 45 
 

A proposer may object to a provision of the RFP on the grounds that it is biased, 
unduly restrictive or arbitrary or to the selection of a particular proposer on the 
grounds that NVTA procedures, the provisions of the RFP or applicable 
provisions of federal, state or local law have been violated or inaccurately or 
inappropriately applied by submitting to the Procurement Officer a written 
explanation of the basis for the protest: 

 
1. Any protest alleging improprieties in a solicitation process or in solicitation 

documents must be filed in accordance with the time lines established by 
the NVTA Procurement Policy prior to the scheduled bid opening or 
deadline for submittal or proposals, as appropriate, in order to be 
considered by NVTA.  Any protest based on such grounds not timely filed 
will not be considered by NVTA. 

 
 

2. Any protests regarding the evaluation of bids or proposals by NVTA, or 
improprieties involving the approval or award or proposed approval or 
award of a contract must be filed with NVTA in accordance with the 
timelines established by the NVTA Procurement Policy after the  NVTA’s 
written notice of its decision or intended decision to award a contract.  Any 
protest filed after such date which raises issues regarding the bid proposal 
evaluation, or the contract approval or award will not be considered by 
NVTA. 

 
All documents submitted as part of the proposal will be deemed confidential 
during the evaluation process. After the award of a contract, any material 
submitted by a proposer in response to this RFP is subject to public inspection 
under the California Public Records Act (Government Code Sections 6250 et 
seq.) unless exempt by law. The proposer must identify in writing all 
copyrighted material, trade secrets, or other proprietary information that it 
claims is exempt from disclosure. 

 
E. Withdrawal of Proposal Submittal 

 
A Proposer may withdraw its proposal at any time before the expiration of the 
time for submission of proposal submittals as provided in this RFP by delivering 
to the Procurement Officer a written request for withdrawal signed by, or on 
behalf of, the Proposer. 

 
F. Rights of NVTA 

 
This RFP does not commit NVTA to enter into a contract, nor does it obligate 
NVTA to pay for any costs incurred in preparation and submission of the 
proposal or in anticipation of a contract. 

 
  

131



 

Page 7 of 45 
 

NVTA may investigate the qualifications of any proposer under consideration, 
require confirmation of information furnished by the proposer, and require 
additional evidence or qualifications to perform the Services described in this 
RFP. 

 
NVTA, in its sole discretion, reserves the right to: 

 
1. Reject any or all proposal submittals. 
2. Issue one (1) or more subsequent RFPs. 
3. Postpone opening for its own convenience. 
4. Remedy technical errors in the RFP process. 
5. Approve or disapprove the use of particular sub proposers. 
6. Negotiate with any, all, or none of the proposers responding to this RFP. 
7. Award a contract to one or more proposers. 
8. Waive informalities and irregularities in any proposal. 

 
G. Contract Type 

 
Proposers shall be prepared to accept the terms and conditions of NVTA’s 
standard form contract included as ATTACHMENT D (NVTA Sample 
Professional Service Agreement (PSA) or Master Professional Services 
Agreement (MPSA)) hereto. If a proposer desires to take exception to the 
Agreement, the proposer shall provide the following information as a section of 
the proposal identified as "Exceptions to the Agreement": 

 
1. Proposer shall clearly identify each proposed change to the Agreement, 

including all relevant Exhibits and Attachments. 
 
2. Proposer shall furnish the reasons therefore as well as specific 

recommendations for alternative language. 
 

The above factors will be taken into account during contract negotiations. 
Substantial exceptions to the Agreement may be determined by the Agency, at 
its sole discretion, to be unacceptable and the Agency will proceed with 
negotiations with the next highest ranked proposer. See Section 8 - Award. 
 

 
SECTION 3 - FORMAT AND CONTENT OF PROPOSAL 
 

A. Format 
 

1. Technical Proposal 
 

Technical Proposals shall be printed, bound and be: 1) as brief as possible, 
and 2) not include any irrelevant promotional material.  One (1) original 
proposal, three (3) copies, and one (1) on digital media (USB/Flash 
drive/CD) in PDF format of your RFP submittal. 

 

132



 

Page 8 of 45 
 

 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO PROPOSERS. 
 

The Technical Proposal shall not exceed a total of the equivalent of thirty 
(30) single sided pages.  RFP submittals must consist of letter-sized (8.5” x 
11”) pages, with the exception of no more than three tabloid-sized (11” x 
17”) pages.  General Information Form, transmittal letter and resumes are 
excluded from the total page count.  Resumes should be limited to no more 
than two (2) pages in length.  Each tabloid-size page is considered one 
page for the total page count.  Loose-leaf or binder-clipped RFP submittals 
will not be accepted.  Font size shall be at least 12 point. 

 
The nature and form of response of the Technical Proposal submittal is at 
the discretion of those responding, but shall include, at a minimum, the 
information listed in Section B below. 

 
2. Cost Proposal 

 
A Cost Proposal must be submitted.   

 
This section shall include a full description of the proposer’s charges for 
carrying out the Scope of Work as described in this RFP.  Charges should 
be structured so as to be clear and concise and easily understood.  
Minimum charges, show up time, and travel time should be clearly specified.  

 
B. Content 

 
Proposal content, clarity, and completeness are factors which will be 
considered in evaluating each proposal received in order to determine 
suitability of each proposer’s capabilities.  The entire length of the proposal 
document must be 30 pages or less and shall include: 

 

1. TITLE PAGE 
2. TRANSMITTAL LETTER 
3. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
4. PROPOSER BACKGROUND AND EXPERIENCE 
5. QUALIFICATIONS OF PROPOSER 
6. EXAMPLES OF PUBLIC SECTOR REPRESENTATION  
7. STAFFING AND ORGANIZATION 
8. COST PROPOSAL  
9. EXCEPTIONS TO THE AGREEMENT 
10. APPENDICES (not included in the 30 page limit) 

 

1. TITLE PAGE 
 

The title page should show the RFP title, the name of the proposer, name 
of a contact person, a local address, telephone number and the date. 

 
 

133



 

Page 9 of 45 
 

 

2. TRANSMITTAL LETTER 
 

A transmittal letter signed by an official authorized to contractually bind the 
proposer is required.  The transmittal letter shall state that the proposal shall 
be valid for a 180-day period and should include the name, title, address, 
telephone number and email address of the individual to whom 
correspondence and other contacts should be directed during the proposer 
selection process. 

 
Address the cover letter as follows: 
 

Kate Miller 
Executive Director 
Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency 
625 Burnell Street 
Napa, CA 94559 
 

RFP No. 2018-01 
 

3. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

This section should be limited to a brief narrative highlighting and 
summarizing the proposal.  The summary should clearly convey that the 
proposer understands the nature of the work and the general approach to 
be taken.   

 
4. PROPOSER BACKGROUND AND EXPERIENCE 

 
1. General Information about the company: 

 

a. Company name. 
b. Location(s) and size of company.  
c. Give a brief history of the company, including organizational 

chart.  State whether the firm is local, regional, national, or 
international and how long the company has been in existence, 
as well as how long the company has provided the kinds of 
services requested in this RFP.  Give the location of the office 
that would be responsible for servicing this project.  Indicate how 
long this office has been in existence and the number of 
employees in this office.  
 

2. To evaluate the proposer’s financial capacity the proposer must 
submit a copy of the company's year-end audited financial statements 
for 2017 and 2016. If 2017 is not available, the firm may provide 2016 
and 2015 statements.  These documents will be held in the strictest 
confidence and not subject to Public Records Act requests.  The 
financial statements will be shredded after the selection for award has 
been confirmed.   
 

134



 

Page 10 of 45 
 

The company should submit three credit references and any other 
information that may be relevant as evidence of sufficient operating 
reserves and financial stability.  Alternately submission of the two most 
recent completed tax returns may be submitted as acceptable 
documentation concerning the proposer’s financial capacity. 
 

3. Provide a list of at least three current customers that have acquired 
and installed the same or similar products or services as those being 
proposed for NVTA including contact name and phone number for 
each.  References may or may not be contacted 
 

4. Describe the company’s experience providing similar certification 
services or experience working with this population in another capacity.  
 

5. Identify staff experience in working with disabled persons and location of 
facility where certification process will be performed. 

 
5. QUALIFICATIONS OF PROPOSER 

 
The proposer who is awarded the contract for this work will be required to 
comply with all applicable federal, state, regional and local requirements. 

 
This section should include a brief description of the proposer’s 
qualifications and previous experience on similar or related engagements.   

 
In addition, the selected proposer will be required to provide the certification 
of eligibility that the proposer and / or any of its principals/employees has 
not been debarred or suspended from providing services paid for by the 
federal government prior to award.   

 
A successful proposer will be required to meet weekly with NVTA staff, 
prepare required reports, report information regarding the completion of all 
tasks in the work program, submit required work products by the required 
delivery dates and maintain records, accounts and books as necessary.  

 
6. EXAMPLES OF PUBLIC SECTOR REPRESENTATION 

 
This part of the Proposal shall contain a description of matters where the 
proposer performed work for a public entity in California.   The proposer 
shall relate how it perceives its role in carrying out the responsibilities 
required by this RFP.  The proposer shall also provide examples of 
challenges encountered while representing public a public entity and 
discuss its approach in handling some of the specific challenges and 
opportunities it foresees in representing and advising a public agency 

 
7. STAFFING AND PROJECT ORGANIZATION 

 
This section should identify key personnel who will be assigned to work with 

135



 

Page 11 of 45 
 

the NVTA and their experience.   
 

List any present activities and job commitments and potential or real 
conflicts of interest. 

 
 

8. COST PROPOSAL 
 

Provide a cost proposal for services to be rendered to NVTA for 
performance of the scope of Work Attached hereto. 
 

9. EXCEPTIONS TO THE AGREEMENT 
 

This section shall include any exceptions the proposer has taken to 
ATTACHMENT D – NVTA Sample Professional Service Agreement (PSA) 
or Master Professional Services Agreement (MPSA). 

 
10. APPENDICES 

 
Under this section, proposers shall provide all legal documents and 
compliance reports including DBE, Lobbying, Disbarment, etc. 

 
 
SECTION 4 - SCOPE OF SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED 
 
The work to be performed under contract based on this RFP is described in the Scope of 
Work attached hereto as ATTACHMENT A and hereby incorporated herein. 
 
 
SECTION 5 - REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS 
 
The NVTA seeks a motivated, skilled and enthusiastic professional team to be 
accountable and deliver innovative, high quality professional services.   Proposers 
responding to this RFP will be expected to demonstrate that one or more team members 
have substantive practical experience and expertise in the following areas: 
 

1. Minimum three (3) years recent experience in the areas discussed under the 
Scope of Work, (see ATTACHMENT A).  Please provide brief resume showing 
work history and similar or relevant assignments completed by each proposed 
proposer team member. 

 
2.  Proposer must be licensed by the State of California.  
  
3.  Proposer must not be the subject of disciplinary action by any State of                

California regulatory or licensing agency. 
 
Please provide specific reference information on each of the areas listed above. The 

136



 

Page 12 of 45 
 

proposer will work under the direction of the Executive Director and any assigned 
Program Manager. 
 
 
 
 
 
SECTION 6 - EVALUATION AND QUALIFICATIONS 
 

A. EVALUATION METHOD 
 

NVTA will review and evaluate all proposals deemed responsive to this request 
in accordance with NVTA’s Procurement Policies and Procedures Manual.  
Each of the proposers will be ranked based on the criteria listed in this section. 

 
B. FINAL SELECTION DETERMINATION 

 
Following the analysis of the written proposals and possible follow up 
discussions, NVTA will enter into negotiations with the highest ranked 
proposer(s).  If negotiations with a proposer are ultimately unsuccessful, or if 
the proposer declines the work offered, then negotiations will proceed with the 
next highest ranked proposer from the proposal list, and so forth.  In the event 
of a tie, the lowest cost proposal will be awarded the contract.   

 
C. CONTRACT NEGOTIATION 

 
Upon conclusion of the interviews, if any, and best and final offer, if any, NVTA 
will enter into contract negotiations with the finalist(s).  The final negotiated 
contract will be submitted to the NVTA Board for approval, if applicable. 

 
D. EVALUATION AND SCORING CRITERIA 

 
The product of the selection process will be to award a contract(s) with the top 
rank proposer(s).  The following criteria and point system will be used to 
evaluate the RFP: 
 
a. Technical experience in performing work of a similar nature; experience 

working with persons with disabilities, transit properties or other public 
agencies; technical experience of key personnel and client references. 
(30%) 

 

b. Reasonableness of the total price and competitiveness of this amount with 
other offers received; adequacy of data in support of proposed budget and 
overall reasonableness in which costs are proposed. (20%) 

 

c. Demonstrated understanding of the program requirements and potential 
problem areas; proposed approach, work plan, and quality assurance 
program. (50%) 

137



 

Page 13 of 45 
 

 
After initial evaluation of the proposals, NVTA may, at its discretion, hold 
interviews with the top ranked proposers.  Each interview will be no more than 
60-minutes, with the proposer’s presentation limited to not more than 20-
minutes.  Any areas of specific concern will be identified before the interview.  
NVTA reserves the right to award a contract based solely on written proposals 
and not conduct oral interviews. 

 
 

SECTION 7 - AWARD 
 
In accordance with NVTA’s Procurement Policies and Procedures Manual, the NVTA will 
review and evaluate the proposal based on the criteria established above.  The NVTA will 
enter into negotiations with the highest ranked proposer(s).  Again, NVTA reserves the 
right to award without interviews, based only upon the initial proposals.  Each initial 
proposal should be submitted with the most favorable terms from both price and technical 
perspectives. 
 

SECTION 8 - NON-DISCRIMINATION 
 
Proposers shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass or allow harassment, against any 
employee or applicant for employment because of sex, sexual orientation, race, religious 
creed, color, national origin, ancestry, denial of family and medical care leave, medical 
condition (cancer/genetic characteristics) physical handicap, disability (mental or 
physical) including HIV and AIDS, denial of pregnancy disability leave or reasonable 
accommodation, marital status, age (40 and above), in the performance of NVTA 
contracts. Proposers and any subcontractors shall ensure that the evaluation and 
treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such 
discrimination and harassment. 
 
Proposers shall include the non-discrimination and compliance provisions of the above 
clause in all subcontracts to perform work under this contract. 
 
 
SECTION 9 - LEVINE ACT 
 
Proposers will be required to disclose on the record any contribution of more than $250 
which they have made to an NVTA Board Member within the twelve-month period 
preceding the submittal deadline of this RFP, and within the twelve-month period 
preceding any subsequent procurement based on this RFP. This applies to your 
company, any member of your team, any agents for you or other team members and to 
the major shareholders of any closed corporation, which is part of your team. If you have 
made a contribution which needs to be disclosed you must provide written notice of the 
date, amount and receipt of the contribution(s) to NVTA Executive Director. This 
information will need to be provided before the NVTA can approve any contract. 
 
 

138



 

Page 14 of 45 
 

SECTION 10 - DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE 
 
NVTA has adopted a Disadvantage Business Enterprise (DBE) Policy, pursuant to which 
the NVTA encourages all prime proposers to utilize qualified DBE sub proposers on NVTA 
projects, NVTA promotes the direct purchase of goods from qualified DBEs by utilizing 
DBE vendors when such vendors are available and the price of the goods sought is 
reasonable, and, for professional services contracts, NVTA seeks the utilization of 
qualified DBEs when such DBEs are available. All prime proposers are required to report 
on DBE usage during the term of each contract.  For instructions and forms, see 
ATTACHMENT E, E-1, E-2. 
 
For purposes of NVTA's DBE Policy, a DBE shall be a "Disadvantage Business" within 
the meaning of 13 CFR Part 121 and California Government Code Section 14837. In the 
event that the NVTA's DBE Policy conflicts with any Federal, State or other funding 
source's programs, policies, regulations or requirements, NVTA shall make the DBE 
Policy consistent with said funding source's programs, policies, regulations and 
requirements to the extent permissible by law. NVTA's DBE Policy is neutral as to race, 
ethnicity, national origin, age, sex, religion, sexual orientation and other protected 
classes. 
 
NVTA’s overall DBE goal is 2.2%. 
 

SECTION 11 - INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
Insurance requirements for this project are set forth in ATTACHMENT D NVTA Sample 
Professional Service Agreement for Services, Section 7 – Insurance and Section 8 – Hold 
Harmless / Defense / Indemnification.   
 
 
 
 
 
All inquiries pertaining to this RFP should be emailed to Renee Y. Kulick, Administrative 
Technician at the following email address rkulick@nvta.ca.gov in accordance with the 
procurement schedule.  Responses to all questions submitted by the question deadline 
that may have a material impact on the proposal will be posted on the NVTA website: 
www.nvta.ca.gov .  
  
Late proposals will not be considered. 
 
Proposals will be accepted either by hand delivery or by mail addressed as follows: 

 

Kate Miller 
  Executive Director  

Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
  625 Burnell Street 
  Napa, CA  94559 
 

139

http://www.nvta.ca.govt/


 

Page 15 of 45 
 

  RFP No. 2018-01 

 
Attachments follow. 

 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

SCOPE OF WORK 
 
 
 

(See attached) 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 

  

140



 

Page 16 of 45 
 

SCOPE OF WORK 
 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) 
 
NVTA is soliciting proposals from qualified certified public accounting firms to conduct the 
annual independent audit of the agency’s financial transactions and to express an opinion 
of the fairness of the presentation that is fully compliant with all Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2019 to 
2024.  The latest audited financial statements are available at NVTA’s website at 
http://www.nvta.ca.gov/fiscal-audits-single-audits. 
 
The selected auditing firm will have demonstrated it’s ability to do the following:  
 
1) Express an opinion as to the fair presentation of the NVTA consolidated financial 

statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; and to issue 
these statements. Further, the audit firm shall communicate in a letter to management 
any reportable conditions found during the audit. A reportable condition is defined as 
a significant deficiency in the design or operation of the internal control structure that 
could adversely affect the organization's ability to record, process, summarize and 
report accurate financial data.  

 
2) Perform an audit as required by OMB Circular A-l33 in accordance with Government 

Audit Standards to determine whether NVTA has an internal control structure that 
provides reasonable assurance that: 

 
a) NVTA is managing federal awards in compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations; and further that controls are in place that ensure compliance with the 
laws and regulations where the failure to comply could have a material impact on 
the financial statements; and  
 
b) NVTA has complied with laws and regulations where the failure to comply may 
have a direct and material effect on its financial statement and on each major 
federal program.  
 

3) Issue the consolidated financial statements, schedules and reports on internal controls 
and compliance with regulations required by OMB Uniform Guidance.  

 
4) Prepare any required notes to the financial statements.  
 
5) Submission of the independent auditor’s position to the Federal Clearinghouse.  

 
6) Prepare any other required documents or analysis in consultation required to complete 

the financial audit. 
 

 
 

  

141

http://www.nvta.ca.gov/fiscal-audits-single-audits


 

Page 17 of 45 
 

Napa Valley Transportation Authority- Tax Agency (NVTA-TA) 
 
Measure T Compliance Audit – Napa Countywide Road Maintenance Act 
 
NVTA is soliciting proposals from qualified certified public accounting firms to conduct the 
annual independent audit of the agency’s financial transactions and to express an opinion 
of the fairness of the presentation of a financial audit that is fully compliant with all 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements for the fiscal years 
ending June 30, 2019 to 2024.  Further, the auditor will perform a compliance audit 
pertaining to the Measure T regulations. The opinion expressed will be a separate from 
the Napa Valley Transportation Authority’s financial statements.  The June 30, 2020 
compliance and financial audit will be the first audit of the Tax Agency. 
 
The independent auditor shall review all financial records and funds of the Measure T 
Transportation Fund revenue and expenditures and prepare a financial statement and 
footnotes in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, the standards set forth for financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, performance goals 
adopted by the Authority consistent with Public Utilities Code Section 180000 et seq., and 
the Napa Valley Transportation Authority Ordinance  No. 2012-01 for distribution of Napa 
County Measure T Funds for road maintenance purposes, as well as other applicable 
laws regulations and regulations.  
 
The audit firm will express an opinion as to the fair presentation of the NVTA consolidated 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; and to 
issue these statements. Further, the audit firm shall: 

 
1) Communicate in a letter to management any reportable conditions found during the 

audit.  
 

2) Issue the consolidated financial statements, schedules and reports on internal controls 
and compliance with the Measure T ordinance.  

 
3) Prepare any required notes to the financial statements.  

 
4) Prepare the State Controller’s Annual Report. 

 
5) Prepare any other required documents or analysis in consultation with NVTA. 

 
 
 

 
 

 
  

142



 

Page 18 of 45 
 

ATTACHMENT B 
 

COST PROPOSAL WORKSHEET 
 
Please submit a cost proposal worksheet for each year of the contract period. 
The cost proposal must include all costs incurred by CONTRACTOR in providing the 
services contemplated under this Agreement.   
 
 

Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 
NVTA Financial and Single Audit $ 
 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 
NVTA Financial and Single Audit $ 

 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 
NVTA Financial and Single Audit $ 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 
NVTA Financial and Single Audit $ 
 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 
NVTA Financial and Single Audit $ 
 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 
NVTA Financial and Single Audit $ 
 
 
TOTAL- Fiscal Year Ended 2019 - 2024 
NVTA Financial and Single Audits $ 
 
Signature of individual authorized to submit proposal on behalf of Proposer  

 
 
 
Name and Title 
 
 

 
  

143



 

Page 19 of 45 
 

Napa Valley Transportation Authority- Tax Agency 
 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 
NVTA-TA Financial and Compliance Audit $ 
 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 
 
NVTA-TA Financial and Compliance Audit $ 

 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 

NVTA-TA Financial and Compliance Audit $ 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 
 
NVTA-TA Financial and Compliance Audit $ 
 
 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024 
 
NVTA-TA Financial and Compliance Audit $ 
 
 
 
TOTAL- Fiscal Year Ended 2020 - 2024 
 
NVTA-TA Financial and Compliance Audits $ 
 
Signature of individual authorized to submit proposal on behalf of Proposer  

 
 
 
Name and Title 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

144



 

Page 20 of 45 
 

ATTACHMENT C 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION FORM 
 

(To be completed by the Proposer and placed at the front of the RFP) 

 
Legal Name of Proposer :        Date:      
 
 
Street Address:         Telephone Number:      
 
 
City/State/Zip:         Proposer’s Fax Number:      
 
 
NVTA DBE      NVTA LBE   DBE  None  
 
Type of Organization:      
(Corporation, LPA, Sole Proprietorship, Partnership, etc.) 
 
 
Business License (documented):       Taxpayer ID Number (Federal):      
 
 
Name and Title of Manager:      
 
 
 
Name, Title, e-mail address, and Phone Number of Person Correspondence should be directed 
to: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NVTA DBE       DBE  None  
 
 
 
 

Signature, Name and Title of Person Signing  

145



 

Page 21 of 45 
 

ATTACHMENT D 
 

NVTA SAMPLE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
OR MASTER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 
Please refer to our website www.nvta.ca.gov  for Professional Services Agreement 
(PSA) OR Master Professional Services Agreement (MPSA). 

146

http://www.nvta.ca.gov/


 

Page 22 of 45 
 

ATTACHMENT E 
 

FEDERAL REQUIRED CONTRACT CLAUSES 
 

Please refer to our website www.nvta.ca.gov for content of Federal required clauses. 
 

Federally Required Contract Clauses (applicable clauses in bold) 
1. Fly America Requirements 
2. Buy America Requirements 
3. Charter Bus and School Bus Requirements 
4. Cargo Preference Requirements 
5. Seismic Safety Requirements 
6. Energy Conservation Requirements 
7. Clean Water Requirements 
8. Bus Testing 
9. Pre-Award and Post Delivery Audit Requirements 
10. Lobbying 
11. Access to Records and Reports 
12. Federal Changes 
13. Bonding Requirements 
14. Clean Air 
15. Recycled Products 
16. Davis-Bacon and Copeland Anti-Kickback Acts 
17. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act 
18. [Reserved] 
19. No Government Obligation to Third Parties 
20. Program Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements and Related Acts 
21. Termination 
22. Government-wide Debarment and Suspension (Nonprocurement) 
23. Privacy Act  
24. Civil Rights Requirements 
25. Breaches and Dispute Resolution 
26. Patent and Rights in Data 
27. Transit Employee Protective Agreements 
28. Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) 
29. [Reserved] 
30. Incorporation of Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Terms 
31. Drug and Alcohol Testing 
 
Titles and sources of authority references for all the federal clauses are listed in the following document. 
However, only those clauses applicable to this specific contract are detailed with the full requirements 
articulated. 
 
 

1. FLY AMERICA REQUIREMENTS 
49 U.S.C. § 40118 
41 CFR Part 301-10 
This section does not apply to this contract. 
 
 
 
 

147

http://www.nvta.ca.gov/


 

Page 23 of 45 
 

2. BUY AMERICA REQUIREMENTS  
49 U.S.C. 5323(j) 
49 CFR Part 661 
This section does not apply to this contract. 
 
3.  CHARTER BUS AND SCHOOL BUS REQUIREMENTS 
49 U.S.C. 5323(d) 
49 CFR Part 604  
This section does not apply to this contract. 
 
4.  CARGO PREFERENCE REQUIREMENTS 
46 U.S.C. 1241 
46 CFR Part 381 
This section does not apply to this contract. 
 
5.  SEISMIC SAFETY REQUIREMENTS  
42 U.S.C. 7701 et seq. 49 
CFR Part 41  
This section does not apply to this contract. 
 
6.  ENERGY CONSERVATION REQUIREMENTS  
42 U.S.C. 6321 et seq.  
49 CFR Part 18 
Energy Conservation - The CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with mandatory standards and policies relating 
to energy efficiency which are contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with 
the Energy Policy and Conservation Act.  
 

7.  CLEAN WATER REQUIREMENTS 
33 U.S.C. 1251 
Clean Water –  
(1) The CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued 
pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq.  The 
CONTRACTOR agrees to report each violation to the Purchaser and understands and agrees that the 
Purchaser will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to FTA and the appropriate 
EPA Regional Office. 
 
(2) The CONTRACTOR also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $100,000 
financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA. 
 
8.  BUS TESTING  
49 U.S.C. 5323(c) 
49 CFR Part 665 
This section does not apply to this contract. 
 
9.  PRE-AWARD AND POST DELIVERY AUDITS REQUIREMENTS  
49 U.S.C. 5323 
49 CFR Part 663  
This section does not apply to this contract. 
 
 
 
 

148



 

Page 24 of 45 
 

10.  LOBBYING 
31 U.S.C. 1352 
49 CFR Part 19 
49 CFR Part 20 
Clause and specific language therein are mandated by 49 CFR Part 19, Appendix A.  
Modifications have been made to the Clause pursuant to Section 10 of the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 
1995, P.L. 104-65 [to be codified at 2 U.S.C. § 1601, et seq.] 
- Lobbying Certification and Disclosure of Lobbying Activities for third party CONTRACTORs are mandated 
by 31 U.S.C. 1352(b)(5), as amended by Section 10 of the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995, and DOT 
implementing regulation, "New Restrictions on Lobbying," at 49 CFR § 20.110(d) 
- Language in Lobbying Certification is mandated by 49 CFR Part 19, Appendix A, Section 7, which provides 
that CONTRACTORs file the certification required by 49 CFR Part 20, Appendix A. 
Modifications have been made to the Lobbying Certification pursuant to Section 10 of the Lobbying 
Disclosure Act of 1995. 
- Use of "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities," Standard Form-LLL set forth in Appendix B of 49 CFR Part 20, 
as amended by "Government wide Guidance For New Restrictions on Lobbying," 61 Fed. Reg. 1413 
(1/19/96) is mandated by 49 CFR Part 20, Appendix A. 
 

Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment, 31 U.S.C. 1352, as amended by the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995, 
P.L. 104-65 [to be codified at 2 U.S.C. § 1601, et seq.] - CONTRACTORs who apply or bid for an award of 
$100,000 or more shall file the certification required by 49 CFR part 20, "New Restrictions on Lobbying." 
Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any 
person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 
member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in 
connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352.  Each 
tier shall also disclose the name of any registrant under the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 who has made 
lobbying contacts on its behalf with non-Federal funds with respect to that Federal contract, grant or 
award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352.  Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the recipient. 
 
Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements 
The undersigned [CONTRACTOR] certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 
 (1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to 
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of 
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection 
with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal 
loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, 
amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 
 (2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for 
making lobbying contacts to an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or 
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, 
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form--LLL, 
"Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions [as amended by "Government 
wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying," 61 Fed. Reg. 1413 (1/19/96).  Note: Language in 
paragraph (2) herein has been modified in accordance with Section 10 of the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 
1995 (P.L. 104-65, to be codified at 2 U.S.C. 1601, et seq.)] 
 (3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award 
documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, 
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 
This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction 
was made or entered into.  Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into 

149



 

Page 25 of 45 
 

this transaction imposed by 31, U.S.C. § 1352 (as amended by the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995).  Any 
person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 
and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 
 [Note: Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 1352(c)(1)-(2)(A), any person who makes a prohibited expenditure or fails 
to file or amend a required certification or disclosure form shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less 
than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such expenditure or failure.] 
The CONTRACTOR,      , certifies or affirms the truthfulness and 
accuracy of each statement of its certification and disclosure, if any.  In addition, the CONTRACTOR 
understands and agrees that the provisions of 31 U.S.C. A 3801, et seq., apply to this certification and 
disclosure, if any. 
 
       Signature of CONTRACTOR's Authorized Official 
       Name and Title of CONTRACTOR's Authorized Official 
       Date 
 
11.  ACCESS TO RECORDS AND REPORTS  
49 U.S.C. 5325  
18 CFR 18.36 (i)  
49 CFR 633.17 
Access to Records - The following access to records requirements apply to this Contract: 
1.  Where the Purchaser is not a State but a local government and is the FTA Recipient or a subgrantee of 
the FTA Recipient in accordance with 49 C.F.R. 18.36(i), the CONTRACTOR agrees to provide the Purchaser, 
the FTA Administrator, the Comptroller General of the United States or any of their authorized 
representatives access to any books, documents, papers and records of the CONTRACTOR which are 
directly pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and 
transcriptions.  CONTRACTOR also agrees, pursuant to 49 C.F.R. 633.17 to provide the FTA Administrator 
or his authorized representatives including any PMO CONTRACTOR access to CONTRACTOR's records and 
construction sites pertaining to a major capital project, defined at 49 U.S.C. 5302(a)1, which is receiving 
federal financial assistance through the programs described at 49 U.S.C. 5307, 5309 or 5311. 
2.  Where the Purchaser is a State and is the FTA Recipient or a subgrantee of the FTA Recipient in 
accordance with 49 C.F.R. 633.17, CONTRACTOR agrees to provide the Purchaser, the FTA Administrator 
or his authorized representatives, including any PMO CONTRACTOR, access to the CONTRACTOR's records 
and construction sites pertaining to a major capital project, defined at 49 U.S.C. 5302(a)1, which is 
receiving federal financial assistance through the programs described at 49 U.S.C. 5307, 5309 or 5311.  By 
definition, a major capital project excludes contracts of less than the simplified acquisition threshold 
currently set at $100,000. 
3.  Where the Purchaser enters into a negotiated contract for other than a small purchase or under the 
simplified acquisition threshold and is an institution of higher education, a hospital or other non-profit 
organization and is the FTA Recipient or a subgrantee of the FTA Recipient in accordance with 49 C.F.R. 
19.48, CONTRACTOR agrees to provide the Purchaser, FTA Administrator, the Comptroller General of the 
United States or any of their duly authorized representatives with access to any books, documents, papers 
and record of the CONTRACTOR which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making 
audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions. 
4.  Where any Purchaser which is the FTA Recipient or a subgrantee of the FTA Recipient in accordance 
with 49 U.S.C. 5325(a) enters into a contract for a capital project or improvement (defined at 49 U.S.C. 
5302(a)1) through other than competitive bidding, the CONTRACTOR shall make available records 
related to the contract to the Purchaser, the Secretary of Transportation and the Comptroller General or 
any authorized officer or employee of any of them for the purposes of conducting an audit and 
inspection. 

150



 

Page 26 of 45 
 

5.  The CONTRACTOR agrees to permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any means whatsoever 
or to copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed. 
6.  The CONTRACTOR agrees to maintain all books, records, accounts and reports required under this 
contract for a period of not less than three years after the date of termination or expiration of this 
contract, except in the event of litigation or settlement of claims arising from the performance of this 
contract, in which case CONTRACTOR agrees to maintain same until the Purchaser, the FTA Administrator, 
the Comptroller General, or any of their duly authorized representatives, have disposed of all such 
litigation, appeals, claims or exceptions related thereto.  Reference 49 CFR 18.39(i)(11). 
7.  FTA does not require the inclusion of these requirements in subcontracts.  

Contract 
Characteristics 

 Operational 
Service 

Contract 

Turnkey Construction Architectural 
Engineering 

Acquisition 
of Rolling 

Stock 

Professional 
Services 

I State 
Grantees  

 
a. Contracts 
below SAT 
($100,000) 

 
b. Contracts 

above 
$100,000/Cap

ital Projects 

  
None 

 
 

None 
unless1 

non-
competitiv

e award 

 
Those 

imposed on 
state pass 

thru to 
CONTRACT

OR 
 

 
None 

 
 

Yes, if non-
competitiv
e award or 
if funded 

thru2 
5307/5309

/5311 

 
None 

 
 

None 
unless non-
competitiv

e award 

 
None 

 
 

None 
unless non-
competitiv

e award 

 
None 

 
 

None 
unless non-
competitiv

e award 

II Non State 
Grantees  

 
a. Contracts 
below SAT 
($100,000) 

b. Contracts 
above 

$100,000/Cap
ital Projects 

  
 

Yes3 
 

Yes3 

 
Those 

imposed on 
non-state 
Grantee 

pass thru to 
CONTRACT

OR 
 

 
 

Yes 
 

Yes 

 
 

Yes 
 

Yes 

 
 

Yes 
 

Yes 

 
 

Yes 
 

Yes 

Sources of Authority: 
1 49 USC 5325 (a) 
2 49 CFR 633.17 
3 18 CFR 18.36 (i) 
 
12.  FEDERAL CHANGES  
49 CFR Part 18 
Federal Changes - CONTRACTOR shall at all times comply with all applicable FTA regulations, policies, 
procedures and directives, including without limitation those listed directly or by reference in the Master 
Agreement between Purchaser and FTA, as they may be amended or promulgated from time to time 
during the term of this contract. CONTRACTOR's failure to so comply shall constitute a material breach of 
this contract. 
13.  BONDING REQUIREMENTS  
This section does not apply to this contract. 
 

151



 

Page 27 of 45 
 

14.  CLEAN AIR  
42 U.S.C. 7401 et seq 
40 CFR 15.61  
49 CFR Part 18  
Clean Air - (1) The CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations 
issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 et seq.  The CONTRACTOR agrees to 
report each violation to the Purchaser and understands and agrees that the  
Purchaser will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to FTA and the appropriate 
EPA Regional Office. 
(2) The CONTRACTOR also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $100,000 
financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA. 
 
15.  RECYCLED PRODUCTS  
42 U.S.C. 6962 
40 CFR Part 247 
Executive Order 12873 
This section does not apply to this contract. 
 
16.  DAVIS-BACON AND COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACTS 
This section does not apply to this contract. 
 
17.  CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT 
40 USC 3701(b)(1)(B)(iii) and (b)(2),  
29 CFR 5.2(h),  
49 CFR 18.36(i)(6) 
Overtime requirements - No CONTRACTOR or subCONTRACTOR contracting for any part of the contract 
work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any 
such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess 
of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less 
than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such 
workweek.  
 
Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages - In the event of any violation of the clause set 
forth in paragraph (1) of this section the CONTRACTOR and any subCONTRACTOR responsible therefor 
shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such CONTRACTOR and subCONTRACTOR shall be liable 
to the United States for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to 
each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause 
set forth in paragraph (1) of this section, in the sum of $10 for each calendar day on which such individual 
was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment 
of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section.  
 

Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages - The (write in the name of the grantee) shall 
upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor 
withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the 
CONTRACTOR or subCONTRACTOR under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same 
prime CONTRACTOR, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and 
Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime CONTRACTOR, such sums as may be determined to 
be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such CONTRACTOR or subCONTRACTOR for unpaid wages and 
liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (2) of this section.  

152



 

Page 28 of 45 
 

Subcontracts - The CONTRACTOR or subCONTRACTOR shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth 
in paragraphs (1) through (4) of this section and also a clause requiring the subCONTRACTORs to include 
these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for compliance 
by any subCONTRACTOR or lower tier subCONTRACTOR with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (1) 
through (4) of this section.  
 

18.  RESERVED 
This section does not apply to this contract. 
 
19.  NO GOVERNMENT OBLIGATION TO THIRD PARTIES  
No Obligation by the Federal Government. 
(1) The Purchaser and CONTRACTOR acknowledge and agree that, notwithstanding any concurrence by 
the Federal Government in or approval of the solicitation or award of the underlying contract, absent the 
express written consent by the Federal Government, the Federal Government is not a party to this 
contract and shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities to the Purchaser, CONTRACTOR, or any 
other party (whether or not a party to that contract) pertaining to any matter resulting from the 
underlying contract. 
 

(2) The CONTRACTOR agrees to include the above clause in each subcontract financed in whole or in 
part with Federal assistance provided by FTA.  It is further agreed that the clause shall not be modified, 
except to identify the subCONTRACTOR who will be subject to its provisions. 
 

20.  PROGRAM FRAUD AND FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS AND RELATED ACTS  
31 U.S.C. 3801 et seq. 
49 CFR Part 31 18 U.S.C. 1001 
49 U.S.C. 5307  
Program Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements or Related Acts.  
(1) The CONTRACTOR acknowledges that the provisions of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, 
as amended, 31 U.S.C. § 3801 et seq. and U.S. DOT regulations, "Program Fraud Civil Remedies," 49 C.F.R. 
Part 31, apply to its actions pertaining to this Project.  Upon execution of the underlying contract, the 
CONTRACTOR certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of any statement it has made, it makes, it 
may make, or causes to be made, pertaining to the underlying contract or the FTA assisted project for 
which this contract work is being performed.  In addition to other penalties that may be applicable, the 
CONTRACTOR further acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or fraudulent 
claim, statement, submission, or certification, the Federal Government reserves the right to impose the 
penalties of the Program Fraud Civil  
Remedies Act of 1986 on the CONTRACTOR to the extent the Federal Government deems appropriate. 
 
(2) The CONTRACTOR also acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or 
fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification to the Federal Government under a contract 
connected with a project that is financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance originally awarded by 
FTA under the authority of 49 U.S.C. § 5307, the Government reserves the right to impose the penalties 
of 18 U.S.C. § 1001 and 49 U.S.C. § 5307(n)(1) on the CONTRACTOR, to the extent the Federal Government 
deems appropriate. 
 
(3) The CONTRACTOR agrees to include the above two clauses in each subcontract financed in whole or 
in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA.  It is further agreed that the clauses shall not be modified, 
except to identify the subCONTRACTOR who will be subject to the provisions. 
 
21.  TERMINATION  
49 U.S.C. Part 18 

153



 

Page 29 of 45 
 

FTA Circular 4220.1E  
This section is addressed by language in NVTA’s Professional Services Agreement. 
 
22. GOVERNMENT-WIDE DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION (NONPROCUREMENT) 
Suspension and Debarment 
This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 49 CFR Part 29.  As such, the CONTRACTOR is 
required to verify that none of the CONTRACTOR, its principals, as defined at 49 CFR 29.995, or affiliates, 
as defined at 49 CFR 29.905, are excluded or disqualified as defined at 49 CFR 29.940 and 29.945.   
The CONTRACTOR is required to comply with 49 CFR 29, Subpart C and must include the requirement to 
comply with 49 CFR 29, Subpart C in any lower tier covered transaction it enters into. 
By signing and submitting its bid or proposal, the bidder or proposer certifies as follows: 
The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact relied upon by NVTA.  If it is later 
determined that the bidder or proposer knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to 
remedies available to NVTA, the Federal Government may pursue available remedies, including but not 
limited to suspension and/or debarment.  The bidder or proposer agrees to comply with the requirements 
of 49 CFR 29, Subpart C while this offer is valid and throughout the period of any contract that may arise 
from this offer.  The bidder or proposer further agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in 
its lower tier covered transactions.   
 
23.  PRIVACY ACT 
5 U.S.C. 552  
This section does not apply to this contract. 
 
24.  CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIREMENTS  
29 U.S.C. § 623, 42 U.S.C. § 2000 
42 U.S.C. § 6102, 42 U.S.C. § 12112 
42 U.S.C. § 12132, 49 U.S.C. § 5332 
29 CFR Part 1630, 41 CFR Parts 60 et seq.  
Civil Rights - The following requirements apply to the underlying contract: 
(1) Nondiscrimination - In accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d, 
section 303 of the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 6102, section 202 of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. § 12132, and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the 
CONTRACTOR agrees that it will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 
because of race, color, creed, national origin, sex, age, or disability.  In addition, the CONTRACTOR agrees 
to comply with applicable Federal implementing regulations and other implementing requirements FTA 
may issue.  
 
(2) Equal Employment Opportunity - The following equal employment opportunity requirements apply to 
the underlying contract: 

(a) Race, Color, Creed, National Origin, Sex - In accordance with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act, as 
amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, and Federal transit laws at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the CONTRACTOR agrees to 
comply with all applicable equal employment opportunity requirements of U.S. Department of Labor (U.S. 
DOL) regulations, "Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, 
Department of Labor," 41 C.F.R. Parts 60 et seq., (which implement Executive Order No. 11246, "Equal 
Employment Opportunity," as amended by Executive Order No. 11375, "Amending Executive Order 11246 
Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity," 42 U.S.C. § 2000e note), and with any applicable Federal 
statutes, executive orders, regulations, and Federal policies that may in the future affect construction 
activities undertaken in the course of the Project.  The CONTRACTOR agrees to take affirmative action to 
ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard 
to their race, color, creed, national origin, sex, or age.  Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the 

154



 

Page 30 of 45 
 

following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff 
or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including 
apprenticeship.  In addition, the CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA 
may issue. 

(b) Age - In accordance with section 4 of the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, as 
amended, 29 U.S.C. § § 623 and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the CONTRACTOR agrees to refrain 
from discrimination against present and prospective employees for reason of age.  In addition, the 
CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue. 
(c) Disabilities - In accordance with section 102 of the Americans with Disabilities Act, as amended, 42 
U.S.C. § 12112, the CONTRACTOR agrees that it will comply with the requirements of U.S. Equal 
Employment Opportunity Commission, "Regulations to Implement the Equal Employment Provisions of 
the Americans with Disabilities Act," 29 C.F.R. Part 1630, pertaining to employment of persons with 
disabilities.  In addition, the CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA 
may issue. 
 
(3) The CONTRACTOR also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract financed in whole or 
in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA, modified only if necessary to identify the affected parties. 
 

25.  BREACHES AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION  
49 CFR Part 18 
FTA Circular 4220.1E  
Disputes - Disputes arising in the performance of this Contract which are not resolved by agreement of 
the parties shall be decided in writing by the NVTA Purchasing Agent.  This decision shall be final and 
conclusive unless within [ten (10)] days from the date of receipt of its copy, the CONTRACTOR mails or 
otherwise furnishes a written appeal to the Purchasing Agent.  In connection with any such appeal, the 
CONTRACTOR shall be afforded an opportunity to be heard and to offer evidence in support of its position.  
The decision of the Purchasing Agent shall be binding upon the CONTRACTOR and the CONTRACTOR shall 
abide be the decision. 
Performance During Dispute - Unless otherwise directed by NVTA, CONTRACTOR shall continue 
performance under this Contract while matters in dispute are being resolved. 
Claims for Damages - Should either party to the Contract suffer injury or damage to person or property 
because of any act or omission of the party or of any of his employees, agents or others for whose acts he 
is legally liable, a claim for damages therefore shall be made in writing to such other party within a 
reasonable time after the first observance of such injury of damage. 
Remedies - Unless this contract provides otherwise, all claims, counterclaims, disputes and other matters 
in question between NVTA and the CONTRACTOR arising out of or relating to this agreement or its breach 
will be decided by arbitration if the parties mutually agree, or in a court of competent jurisdiction within 
the State in which NVTA is located. 
Rights and Remedies - The duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and the rights and 
remedies available thereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any duties, obligations, rights 
and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law.  No action or failure to act by the NVTA or 
CONTRACTOR shall constitute a waiver of any right or duty afforded any of them under the Contract, nor 
shall any such action or failure to act constitute an approval of or acquiescence in any breach thereunder, 
except as may be specifically agreed in writing. 
 
 
 
26.  PATENT AND RIGHTS IN DATA 
37 CFR Part 401 
49 CFR Parts 18 and 19  

155



 

Page 31 of 45 
 

This section does not apply to this contract. 
 
27.  TRANSIT EMPLOYEE PROTECTIVE AGREEMENTS  
49 U.S.C. § 5310, § 5311, and § 5333 
29 CFR Part 215 
This section does not apply to this contract. 
 

28.  DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) 
49 CFR Part 26 
This contract is subject to the requirements of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 26, Participation 
by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in Department of Transportation Financial Assistance Programs. 
The national goal for participation of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) is 10%.  The agency’s 
overall goal for DBE participation is 2.2%. 
The CONTRACTOR shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the 
performance of this contract.  The CONTRACTOR shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 
26 in the award and administration of this DOT-assisted contract.  Failure by the CONTRACTOR to carry 
out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this 
contract or such other remedy as NVTA deems appropriate.  Each subcontract the CONTRACTOR signs 
with a subCONTRACTOR must include the assurance in this paragraph (see 49 CFR 26.13(b)).  
 
The successful bidder/offeror will be required to report its DBE participation obtained through race-
neutral means throughout the period of performance.  
A prime CONTRACTOR or subCONTRACTOR shall pay any subCONTRACTOR not later than 10 days of 
receipt of each progress payment in accordance with the provision in Section 7108.5 of the California 
Business and Professions Code concerning prompt payment to subCONTRACTORs.  The 10 days is 
applicable unless a longer period is agreed to in writing.  Any delay or postponement of payment over 30 
days may take place only for good cause and with the City’s prior written approval.  Any violation of 
Section 7108.5 shall subject the violating CONTRACTOR or subCONTRACTOR to the penalties, sanctions 
and other remedies of the section.  Federal law (49 CFR 26.29) requires that any delay or postponement 
of payment over 30 days of receipt of each payment may take place only for good cause and with the 
City’s prior written approval.  These requirements shall not be construed to limit or impair any contractual, 
administrative, or judicial remedies otherwise available to the prime CONTRACTOR or subCONTRACTOR 
in the event of a dispute involving late payment or nonpayment by the prime CONTRACTOR, deficient 
subcontract performance, or noncompliance by a subCONTRACTOR.  This provision applies to both DBE 
and non-DBE prime CONTRACTORs and subCONTRACTORs. 
 

NVTA shall hold retainage from the prime CONTRACTOR and shall make prompt and regular incremental 
acceptance of portions, as determined by the City, of the contract work, and pay retainage to the prime 
CONTRACTOR based on these acceptances.  The prime CONTRACTOR, or subCONTRACTOR, shall return 
all monies withheld in retention from a subCONTRACTOR within 30 days after receiving payment for work 
satisfactorily completed and accepted including incremental acceptances of portions of the contract work 
by NVTA.  Federal law (49 CFR 26.29) requires that any delay or postponement of payment over 30 days 
of receipt of each payment may take place only for good cause and with the City’s prior written approval.  
Any violation of this provision shall subject the violating prime CONTRACTOR or subCONTRACTOR to the 
penalties, sanctions and other remedies specified in Section 7108.5 of the California Business and 
Professions Code.  These requirements shall not be construed to limit or impair any contractual, 
administrative, or judicial remedies otherwise available to the prime CONTRACTOR or subCONTRACTOR 
in the event of a dispute involving late payment or nonpayment by the prime CONTRACTOR, deficient 
subcontract performance, or noncompliance by a subCONTRACTOR.  This provision applies to both DBE 
and non-DBE prime CONTRACTORs and subCONTRACTORs. 

156



 

Page 32 of 45 
 

 
The CONTRACTOR must promptly notify NVTA, whenever a DBE subCONTRACTOR performing work 
related to this contract is terminated or fails to complete its work, and must make good faith efforts to 
engage another DBE subCONTRACTOR to perform at least the same amount of work.  The CONTRACTOR 
may not terminate any DBE subCONTRACTOR and perform that work through its own forces or those of 
an affiliate without prior written consent of NVTA. 
 
29.  [RESERVED] 
This section does not apply to this contract. 
 
30.  INCORPORATION OF FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION (FTA) TERMS 
FTA Circular 4220.1E 
Incorporation of Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Terms - The preceding provisions include, in part, 
certain Standard Terms and Conditions required by DOT, whether or not expressly set forth in the 
preceding contract provisions.  All contractual provisions required by DOT, as set forth in FTA Circular 
4220.1E, are hereby incorporated by reference.  Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, all 
FTA mandated terms shall be deemed to control in the event of a conflict with other provisions 
contained in this Agreement.  The CONTRACTOR shall not perform any act, fail to perform any act, or 
refuse to comply with any of NVTA’s requests which would cause NVTA to be in violation of the FTA 
terms and conditions. 
 

31.  DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING 
49 U.S.C. §5331 
49 CFR Parts 653 and 654 
The CONTRACTOR agrees to establish and implement a drug and alcohol testing program that complies 
with 49 CFR Parts 653 and 654, produce any documentation necessary to establish its compliance with 
Parts 653 and 654, and permit any authorized representative of the United States Department of 
Transportation or its operating administrations, the State Oversight Agency of California, or of NVTA to 
inspect the facilities and records associated with the implementation of the drug and alcohol testing 
program as required under 49 CFR Parts 653 and 654 and review the testing process. The CONTRACTOR 
agrees further to certify annually its compliance with Parts 653 and 654 before (insert date) and to submit 
the Management Information System (MIS) reports before (date before March 15) to the contract 
manager at NVTA, 625 Burnell Street, Napa, CA 94559. To certify compliance the CONTRACTOR shall use 
the "Substance Abuse Certifications" in the "Annual List of Certifications and Assurances for Federal 
Transit Administration Grants and Cooperative Agreements," which is published annually in the Federal 
Register. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT F 
 

PROPOSERS REFERENCE FORM 

157



 

Page 33 of 45 
 

 
Work accomplished by firm which best illustrates current qualifications relevant to this project: 

 
1.         Job Description 

 
Contract Amount 

 
Time to Complete Job 

 
Owner and Location 

 
Contact Name and Telephone No. 

 
 
 

2.         Job Description 
 

Contract Amount 
 

Time to Complete Job 
 

Owner and Location 
 

Contact Name and Telephone No. 
 
 

3.         Job Description 
 

Contract Amount 
 

Time to Complete Job 
 

Owner and Location 
 

Contact Name and Telephone No. 
 
 

4.         Job Description 
 

Contract Amount 
 

Time to Complete Job 
 

Owner and Location 
 

Contact Name and Telephone No. 
 

NOTE: It is important that this sheet be completed and submitted with your proposal.  Failure to 
provide the above information in complete detail may result in your bid being considered non-
responsive. 

158



 

Page 34 of 45 
 

ATTACHMENT G 
 

PROPOSER’S DESIGNATED CONTACTS LIST 
 
Proposers are required to indicate in the space provided below the designated contact individual’s 
name: 
 
Antonio Onorato, Director of Administration, Finance and Policy 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) 
625 Burnell Street 
Napa. CA 94559 
Phone: (707) 259-8779 
Fax: (707) 259-8638 
Email: aonorato@nvta.ca.gov  
 
CONTRACTOR 
Name/Title: __________________________________________ 
Company: ____________________________________________ 
Street: ______________________________________________ 
City, State, Zip: _______________________________________ 
Phone: _____________________________________________ 
Fax: ________________________________________________ 
Email: ______________________________________________ 
 
Name/Title: _________________________________________ 
Company: ___________________________________________ 
Street: ______________________________________________ 
City, State, Zip: _______________________________________ 
Phone: _____________________________________________ 
Fax: ________________________________________________ 
Email: ______________________________________________ 
 
Name/Title: _________________________________________ 
Company: __________________________________________ 
Street: _____________________________________________ 
City, State, Zip: ______________________________________ 
Phone: _____________________________________________ 
Fax: _______________________________________________ 
Email: _____________________________________________ 
 

 
 
 
 
 

159



 

Page 35 of 45 
 

ATTACHMENT H 
 

DISCLOSURE FORM 
 

DISCLOSURE OF GOVERNMENTAL POSITIONS 
 

The Prospective CONTRACTOR hereby discloses that the following officers and employees of the 
CONTRACTOR currently hold the following positions with the identified governmental agency or held such 
position in the past 12 months.  
 
Name of Owner/Employee ______________________________________________________________ 
  
Name of the Governmental Agency   ______________________________________________________ 
 
Complete Address of Government Agency _________________________________________________ 
 
Governmental Position, (e.g. Director, officer and employee) __________________________________ 
 
Signature: _______________________________  Title: ______________________________  

Firm:       _________________________________ Date:        ___________________________  

 

DISQUALIFICATION QUESTIONNAIRE  

The CONTRACTOR shall complete, under penalty of perjury, the following questionnaire: Has the 
CONTRACTOR, any officer of the CONTRACTOR, or any employee of the CONTRACTOR who has 
proprietary interest in the CONTRACTOR, ever been disqualified, removed, or otherwise prevented from 
bidding on, or completing a federal, state, or local government project because of a violation of law or 
safety regulation?  
 

Yes  ______ 
No ______ 

 
If the answer is yes, explain the circumstances in the following space.  
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 

160



 

Page 36 of 45 
 

ATTACHMENT I 
 

CALTRANS DBE/ DBE REQUIREMENTS 

 

___ NVTA has established an overall Disadvantage Business Enterprise goal of 2.2%. 

OR 

_X_ NVTA has not established a DBE Goal for this Agreement’ however, Contractor is 
encouraged to obtain DBE participation for this Agreement 

 
1. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

This Project is subject to Title 49 Code of Federal Regulations Part 26.13 (b) (49 CFR 
26.13) that states: 
“The contractor, sub recipient or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, 
color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract.  The contractor shall carry 
out applicable requirements of 49 CFR part 26 in the award and administration of DOT-
assisted contracts.  Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material 
breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other 
remedy as the recipient deems appropriate.” 
Contractor’s attention is directed to the following provisions: 
A. Any subcontract entered into as a result of this Project shall contain all of the 

provisions of this Section. 
B. Take necessary and reasonable steps to ensure that DBEs have opportunity to 

participate in the Contract (49 CFR 26). 
C. Make work available to Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) and select 

work parts consistent with available DBE sub-Contractors. 
D. Meet the specified DBE participation goal or demonstrate that adequate good faith 

efforts were made to meet this goal; or if there is no specified DBE goal use good 
faith efforts for participation.  

E. Verify that the DBE proposer is certified as DBE.  For a list of certified DBEs, 
follow the link http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/bep/find certified.htm for access to the 
CUCP database. There is no specific certification for DBE proposers; however the 
CPUC database breaks down DBE proposers by gender and ethnicity to facilitate 
locating DBE proposers. 

F. Contractor is responsible to be fully informed regarding the requirements of 49 
CFR Part 26 and Caltrans DBE programs. 

 
2. SUBMISSION OF DBE COMPLIANCE DOCUMENTATION 
 

161

http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/bep/find_certified.htm


 

Page 37 of 45 
 

A. If there is a DBE goal for the Contract, a “Local Agency Proposer -DBE –
Information (Proposer Contract)” (Attachment E-1) form shall be completed and 
submitted with the executed contract. The purpose of the form is to collect all DBE 
commitment data required under 49 CFR 26.  For contracts with no goals, this form 
collects information on all DBEs.  Even if no DBE participation will be reported, 
the successful bidder must execute and return the form. 

 
B. The information provided on the form should include with names, addresses and 

phone numbers of DBE proposers that will participate, with a complete description 
of work or supplies to be provided by each, and the dollar value of each DBE 
transaction.  When 100 percent of a contract item of work is not to be performed or 
furnished by a DBE, a description of the exact portion of that work to be performed 
or furnished by that DBE should be included in the DBE information, including the 
planned location of that work.  A successful Contractor certified as a DBE should 
describe the work it has committed to perform with its own forces as well as any 
other work that it has committed to be performed by DBE sub-proposers and 
suppliers. 
 
The Contractor is encouraged to provide written confirmation from each DBE that 
the DBE is participating in the Contract.  A copy of a DBE's quote will serve as 
written confirmation that the DBE is participating in the contract.   
 
If a DBE is participating as a joint venture partner, the successful Contractor is 
encouraged to submit a copy of the joint venture agreement. 
 

3. DBE PARTICIPATION 

It is the Contractor’s responsibility to be fully informed regarding the requirements of 49 
CFR, Part 26, and the Department’s DBE program developed pursuant to the regulations. 
Particular attention is directed to the following:  
A.   A DBE must be a small business proposer defined pursuant to 13 CFR 121 and be 

certified through the California Unified Certification Program (CUCP).   
B.   A certified DBE may participate as a prime Contractor, subcontractor, joint venture 

partner, as a vendor of material or supplies, or as a trucking company. 
C.   A DBE joint venture partner must be responsible for specific contract items of work 

or clearly defined portions thereof. Responsibility means actually performing, 
managing and supervising the work with its own forces. The DBE joint venture 
partner must share in the capital contribution, control, management, risks and 
profits of the joint venture commensurate with its ownership interest. 

D.   A DBE must perform a commercially useful function pursuant to 49 CFR 26.55;  
that is, a DBE proposer must be responsible for the execution of a distinct element 
of the work and must carry out its responsibility by actually performing, managing 
and supervising the work.  

E.   The prime Contractor shall list only one subContractor for each portion of work as 
defined in their proposal and all DBE subContractors should be listed in the cost 
proposal list of subContractors.   

162



 

Page 38 of 45 
 

F.   A prime proposer who is a certified DBE is eligible to claim all of the work in the 
Agreement toward the DBE participation except that portion of the work to be 
performed by non-DBE subproposers. 

4. MATERIALS OR SUPPLIES PURCHASED FROM DBE’S COUNT TOWARDS 
 DBE CREDIT, AND IF A DBE IS ALSO A, PURCHASES WILL COUNT 
 TOWARDS THE GOAL UNDER THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS: 
 

A.   If the materials or supplies are obtained from a DBE manufacturer, count one 
hundred percent of the cost of the materials or supplies.  A DBE manufacturer is a 
proposer that operates or maintains a factory, or establishment that produces on the 
premises, the materials, supplies, articles, or equipment required under the 
Agreement and of the general character described by the specifications. 

B.  If the materials or supplies are purchased from a DBE regular dealer, count sixty 
percent of the cost of the materials or supplies. A DBE regular dealer is a proposer 
that owns, operates or maintains a store, warehouse, or other establishment in which 
the materials, supplies, articles or equipment of the general character described by 
the specifications and required under the Agreement are bought, kept in stock, and 
regularly sold or leased to the public in the usual course of business. To be a DBE 
regular dealer, the proposer must be an established, regular business that engages, 
as its principal business and under its own name, in the purchase and sale or lease 
of the products in question.  A person may be a DBE regular dealer in such bulk 
items as petroleum products, steel, cement, gravel, stone or asphalt without owning, 
operating or maintaining a place of business provided in this section.   

C.   If the person both owns and operates distribution equipment for the products, any 
supplementing of regular dealers’ own distribution equipment shall be by a long-
term lease agreement and not an ad hoc or Agreement-by -Agreement basis. 
Packagers, brokers, manufacturers’ representatives, or other persons who arrange 
or expedite transactions are not DBE regular dealers within the meaning of this 
section. 

D.   Materials or supplies purchased from a DBE, which is neither a manufacturer nor 
a regular dealer, will be limited to the entire amount of fees or commissions charged 
for assistance in the procurement of the materials and supplies, or fees or 
transportation charges for the delivery of materials or supplies required on the job 
site, provided the fees are reasonable and not excessive as compared with fees 
charged for similar services.  

5. FOR DBE TRUCKING COMPANIES: CREDIT FOR DBES WILL COUNT TOWARDS 
DBE CREDIT UNDER THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS: 

A.   The DBE must be responsible for the management and supervision of the entire 
trucking operation for which it is responsible on a particular Agreement, and there 
cannot be a contrived arrangement for the purpose of meeting the DBE goal.  

B.   The DBE must itself own and operate at least one fully licensed, insured and 
operational truck used on the Agreement. 

163



 

Page 39 of 45 
 

C.   The DBE receives credit for the total value of the transportation services it provides 
on the Agreement using trucks it owns, insures, and operates using drivers it 
employs. 

D.   The DBE may lease trucks from another DBE proposer, including an owner-
operator who is certified as a DBE. The DBE who leases trucks from another DBE 
receives credit for the total value of the transportation services the lessee DBE 
provides on the Agreement. 

E.   The DBE may also lease trucks from a non-DBE proposer, including an owner-
operator.  The DBE who leases trucks from a non-DBE is entitled to credit only for 
the fee or commission it receives as a result of the lease arrangement.  The DBE 
does not receive credit for the total value of the transportation services provided by 
the lessee, since these services are not provided by the DBE.  

F.   For the purposes of this Section 5, a lease must indicate that the DBE has exclusive 
use and control over the truck. This does not preclude the leased truck from working 
for others during the term of the lease with the consent of the DBE, as long as the 
lease gives the DBE absolute priority for use of the leased truck. Leased trucks must 
display the name and identification number of the DBE. 

 

6. PERFORMANCE OF DBE CONTRACTORS AND DBE SUBCONTRACTORS / 
 SUPPLIERS 
 

A. A DBE performs a commercially useful function when it is responsible for 
execution of the work of the Agreement and is carrying out its responsibilities by 
actually performing, managing, and supervising the work involved.  To perform a 
commercially useful function, the DBE must also be responsible with respect to 
materials and supplies used on the Agreement, for negotiating price, determining 
quality and quantity, ordering the material, and installing (where applicable) and 
paying for the material itself.  To determine whether a DBE is performing a 
commercially useful function, evaluate the amount of work subcontracted, industry 
practices; whether the amount the proposer is to be paid under the Agreement is 
commensurate with the work it is actually performing, and other relevant factors.   

B. A DBE does not perform a commercially useful function if its role is limited to that 
of an extra participant in a transaction, Agreement, or project through which funds 
are passed in order to obtain the appearance of DBE participation. In determining 
whether a DBE is such an extra participant, examine similar transactions, 
particularly those in which DBEs do not participate.  

C. If a DBE does not perform or exercise responsibility for at least thirty percent of 
the total cost of its Agreement with its own work force, or the DBE subcontracts a 
greater portion of the work of the Agreement than would be expected on the basis 
of normal industry practice for the type of work involved, it will be presumed that 
it is not performing a commercially useful function. 

 
  

164



 

Page 40 of 45 
 

7. FINAL REPORT 
 

Upon completion of the Agreement, a summary of these records shall be prepared and 
submitted on the form entitled, “Final Report-Utilization of Disadvantaged Business 
Enterprises (DBE) First-Tier Subcontractors,” CEM-2402F (Exhibit 17-F in Chapter 17 of 
the LAP), certified correct by the CONTRACTOR or the Contractor’s authorized 
representative and shall be furnished to NVTA with the final invoice. Failure to provide 
the summary of DBE payments with the final invoice will result in twenty-five percent 
(25%) of the dollar value of the invoice being withheld from payment until the form is 
submitted.  The amount will be returned to the Contractor when a satisfactory “Final Report 
Utilization of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) First-Tier Subcontractors” is 
submitted to NVTA. 

 
8. DBE CERTIFICATION AND DE-CERTIFICATION STATUS 

 
If a DBE subcontractor is decertified during the life of the Agreement, the decertified 
subcontractor shall notify the Contractor in writing with the date of de-certification.  If a 
subcontractor becomes a certified DBE during the life of the Agreement, the subcontractor 
shall notify the Contractor in writing with the date of certification. Any changes should be 
reported to NVTA within 30 days. 

165



 

Page 41 of 45 
 

Attachment I-1 Local Agency Proposer DBE Information (Proposer Contracts) 
 

NOTE:  PLEASE REFER TO  INSTRUCTIONS ON THE REVERSE SIDE OF THIS 
 

 
 
AGENCY:____________________________________               LOCATION:________________________________ 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: ________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT: $__________________________________________________________________ 
 
PROPOSAL DATE:_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PROPOSER'S NAME:_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
CONTRACT 
 ITEM NO. 

 

 
DESCRIPTION OR SERVICES TO BE 
SUBCONTRACTED  

 
DBE Cert. No. 
AND EXPIRATION 
DATE 

 
NAME OF  DBEs  
(Must be certified on the date bids 
are opened - include DBE address 
and phone number) 

 
PERCENTAGE OF 
DBE  

     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
For Local Agency to Complete: 
 
Local Agency Contract Number:  _________________________________________ 
 
Federal Aid Project Number:  ____________________________________________ 
 
Federal Share:  _______________________________________________________ 
 
Contract Award Date:  _________________________________________________ 

 
Total Claimed 
Participation 

 

 
 $__________ 
 

   
__________% 

Local Agency certifies that the DBE certification(s) has been verified and all information 
is complete and accurate. 
 
 
 
________________________           __________________________     ___________ 
Print Name                                         Signature                                         Date 
Local Agency Representative 
 
(Area Code) Telephone Number: __________________ 

For Caltrans Review: 

 
______________________________

_ 
Signature of Proposer 
 
______________________________

_ 
Date                                    (Area Code) Tel. No. 
 

 
                     

 
 
 
 
______________________     ____________________________    _____________  
Print Name                              Signature                                           Date 
Caltrans District Local Assistance Engineer 
 

 
 

Local Agency Bidder - DBE Commitment(Rev  3/09) 
 
 

166



 

Page 42 of 45 
 

INSTRUCTIONS - LOCAL AGENCY BIDDER DBE INFORMATION  
(PROPOSER CONTRACTS) (Revised 06/14) 

 
SUCCESSFUL PROPOSER: 
 
The form requires specific information regarding the proposer contract: Agency, Location, Project 
Description, Federal Aid Project Number (assigned by Caltrans-Local Assistance), Proposal Date, 
and Successful Proposer’s Name. 
 
The form has a column for the Description or Services to be Subcontracted by DBEs.  The DBE 
should provide a certification number to the prime proposer.  The form has a column for the Names 
of DBE certified proposers to perform the work (must be certified on the date the proposal is 
received and include DBE address and phone number).  Enter DBE prime proposer’s and 
subproposers’ certification numbers.  The prime proposer shall indicate all work to be performed 
by DBEs including, if the prime proposer is a DBE, work performed by its own forces. 
 
Enter the Total Claimed DBE Participation percentage of items of work in the total DBE Dollar 
Amount column. (If 100% of item is not to be performed by the DBE, describe the exact portion 
of time to be performed by the DBE.)   See Notice to Proposers/Bidders Disadvantaged Business 
Enterprise Information to determine how to count the participation of DBE proposers. 
 
Attachment E-2 must be signed and dated by the successful proposer at contract execution.  Also 
list a phone number in the space provided and print the name of the person to contact. 

 
For the successful proposer, Local agencies should complete the Contract Award Date and Federal 
Share fields and verify that all information is complete and accurate before signing and sending a 
copy of the form to the District Local Assistance Engineer within 15 days of contract execution.  
Failure to submit a completed and accurate form within the 15-day time period may result in the 
de-obligation of funds on this project. 
 
District DBE Coordinator should verify that all information is complete and accurate.  Once the 
information has been verified, the District Local Assistance Engineer signs and dates the form.  
 
 

167



 

Page 43 of 45 
 

Attachment I-2 DBE Information – Good Faith Efforts 
 
 

Federal-aid Project No. ____________________________ Bid Opening Date _______________ 
 
NVTA established an Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) goal of _____% for this project.  
The information provided herein shows that a good faith effort was made. 
 
Lowest, second lowest and third lowest bidders shall submit the following information to 
document adequate good faith efforts.  Bidders should submit the following information even if 
the “Local Agency Bidder –DBE Commitment” form indicates that the bidder has met the goal.  
This will protect the bidder’s eligibility for award of the contract if the administering agency 
determines that the bidder failed to meet the goal for various reasons, e.g., a proposer was not 
certified at bid opening, or the bidder made a mathematical error. 
 
Submittal of only the “Local Agency Bidder –DBE Commitment” form may not provide sufficient 
documentation to demonstrate that adequate good faith efforts were made. 
 
The following items are listed in the Section entitled “Submission of DBE Commitment” of the 
Special Provisions:  
 
A. The names and dates of each publication in which a request for DBE participation for this 

project was placed by the bidder (please attach copies of advertisements or proofs of 
publication): 

 
Publications         Dates of Advertisement 
________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________ 

 
B. The names and dates of written notices sent to certified DBEs soliciting bids for this project 

and the dates and methods used for following up initial solicitations to determine with 
certainty whether the DBEs were interested (please attach copies of solicitations, telephone 
records, fax confirmations, etc.): 

 
Names of DBEs 

Solicited 
Date of Initial 
Solicitation 

Follow Up Methods 
and Dates 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
C. The items of work which the bidder made available to DBE proposers, including, where 

appropriate, any breaking down of the contract work items (including those items normally 

168



 

Page 44 of 45 
 

performed by the bidder with its own forces) into economically feasible units to facilitate 
DBE participation.  It is the bidder's responsibility to demonstrate that sufficient work to 
facilitate DBE participation was made available to DBE proposers. 

 
Items of Work Bidder Normally 

Performs Item 
(Y/N) 

Breakdown of 
Items  

Amount($) Percentage 
Of  

Contract 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
D. The names, addresses and phone numbers of rejected DBE proposers, the reasons for the 

bidder's rejection of the DBEs, the proposers selected for that work (please attach copies of 
quotes from the proposers involved), and the price difference for each DBE if the selected 
proposer is not a DBE:          

 
 Names, addresses and phone numbers of rejected DBEs and the reasons for the bidder's 

rejection of the DBEs: 
______________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________ 

 Names, addresses and phone numbers of proposers selected for the work above: 
______________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________ 

 
E. Efforts made to assist interested DBEs in obtaining bonding, lines of credit or insurance, and 

any technical assistance or information related to the plans, specifications and requirements 
for the work which was provided to DBEs: 
______________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________ 

 
F. Efforts made to assist interested DBEs in obtaining necessary equipment, supplies, materials, 

or related assistance or services, excluding supplies and equipment the DBE subcontractor 
purchases or leases from the prime CONTRACTOR or its affiliate: 
______________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

169



Page 45 of 45 

G. The names of agencies, organizations or groups contacted to provide assistance in contacting,
recruiting and using DBE proposers (please attach copies of requests to agencies and any
responses received, i.e., lists, Internet page download, etc.):

Name of Agency/Organization Method/Date of Contact Results 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

H. Any additional data to support a demonstration of good faith efforts (use additional sheets if
necessary):

_____________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

NOTE:  USE ADDITIONAL SHEETS OF PAPER IF NECESSARY. 

170


	0000_Agenda
	0.0_Glossary of Acronyms Updated 11-2017
	0001_1_Staff Report
	0002_1_Staff Report
	6.2_Organizational Structure of NVTA-TA & NVTA_kes-KM changes
	Action Requested: INFORMATION
	RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	6.2_Organizational Structure Attch 1 NVTA-TA Org Chart
	6.2_Organizational Structure Attch 2 NVTA-TA Standing Committees Relationship Chart
	ITOC
	Independent Taxpayer

	6.2_Organizational Structure Attch 3 NVTA Org Chart_kes

	0003_1_Staff Report
	0004_1_Staff Report
	6.4_ITOC Roles and Responsibilities_kes-KM changes
	Action Requested: INFORMATION

	6.4_ITOC Roles and Responsibilities Attch 1 Form_700_2017_2018
	6.4_ITOC Roles and Responsibilities Attch 2 Proof of Meeting Attendance & Fee Wavier
	6.4_ITOC Roles and Responsibilities Attch 3 fw9

	0005_1_Staff Report
	6.5_ITOC Bylaws, Brown Act & Sturgis Review_kes-KM changes
	Action Requested: INFORMATION
	RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	6.5_ITOC Bylaws, Brown Act & Sturgis Review Attch 1 ITOC Bylaws Reso 18-02-TA

	0006_1_Staff Report
	6.6_ITOC Meeting Schedule CY 2018_kes-KM no changes
	Action Requested: APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	6.6_ITOC Meeting Schedule CY 2018 Attch Draft 2018 NVTA-TA Meeting Calendar

	0007_1_Staff Report
	6.7_Jurisdictions' MOE_kes-KM changes
	Action Requested: INFORMATION

	6.7_Jurisdictions' MOE Attch 1 MOE_kes
	6.7_Jurisdictions' MOE Attch 1 MOE
	6.7_JUrisdictions' MOE Attch 1 MOE Calistoga Letter
	6.7_JUrisdictions' MOE Attch 1 MOE Calistoga Worksheet
	6.7_Jurisdictions' MOE Attch 1 MOE Napa City Memo
	6.7_Jurisdictions' MOE Attch 1 MOE Napa City Calculation 6-30-17
	6.7_Jurisdictions' MOE Attch 1 MOE Napa County Memo
	6.7_Jurisdictions' MOE Attch 1 MOE Napa County General Fund Summary
	6.7_Jurisdictions' MOE Attch 1 MOE St. Helena Letter
	6.7_Jurisdictions' MOE Attch 1 MOE Yountville Memo Rev 1
	6.7_Jurisdictions' MOE Attch 1 MOE Youtnville 09-10 08-09 and 07-08


	0008_1_Staff Report
	6.8_Pavement Management 101
	Action Requested: INFORMATION
	RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	6.8_Pavement Management 101 Attch 1

	0009_1_Staff Report
	6.9_Jurisdictions' 5-year Project Lists_kes-KM changes
	Action Requested: RECOMMENDATION

	6.9_Jurisdictions' 5-year Project Lists Attch 1 American Canyon_NVTA Measure T 5-Year List of Projects
	6.9_Jurisdictions' 5-year Project Lists Attch 2 City of Napa Measure T 5-Year List of Projects_kes
	6.8_Jurisdictions' 5-year Project Lists Attch 2 City of Napa Project List Jan 2018
	Sheet1 (2)

	6.8_Jurisdictions' 5-year Project Lists Attch 2 City of Napa_5-Yr Expenditure Plan - For Council
	Sheet1

	6.8_Jurisdictions' 5-year Project Lists Attch 2 City of Napa Map MeasureT 5-Yr

	6.9_Jurisdictions' 5-year Project Lists Attch 3 County Measure T Five Year List
	Application

	6.9_Jurisdictions' 5-year Project Lists Attch 4 Town of Yountville Measure T Project Expenditure Plan Rev 1_kes
	Application
	Expenditures 18-19
	Expenditures 19-20
	Expenditures  20-21
	Expenditures 21-22
	Expendentiures 22-23

	6.9_Jurisdictions' 5-year Project Lists Attch 5 St. Helena Measure T Project List
	6.9_Jurisdictions' 5-year Project Lists Attch 6 Calistoga Project Expenditure Plan Rev 1
	6.8_Jurisdiction's 5-year Project Lists Attch 6 CIty of Calistoga_Project List_Selected Treatments_kes
	6.8_Jurisdictions' 5-year project Lists Attch 6 City of Calistoga - Project List Map Sidewalk Repair-LH

	6.9_Jurisdictions' 5-year Project Lists Attch 7 Example Eligible Expenses
	6.9_Jurisdictions' 5-year Project Lists Attch 8 Measure T Progress Report

	0010_1_Staff Report
	0011_1_Staff Report
	6.11_Measure T Financial Forecast_kes-KM changes ao
	Action Requested: INFORMATION
	RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	6.11_Measure T Financial Forecast Attch 1 25 year revenue estimate - March 2018- ao
	6.11_Measure T Financial Forecast Attch 2 25 year revenue estimate - April 2015

	0012_1_Staff Report
	6.12_Release RFP Audit Services_kes-KM changes ao
	Action Requested: APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	6.12_Release RFP Audit Services Attch 1 RFP 2018-01_kes-KM
	REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
	REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
	SECTION 1 – INTRODUCTION- Napa Valley Transportation Authority
	SECTION 2 - INSTRUCTIONS TO PROPOSERS
	A. Pre-Proposal Conference
	B. Examination of Proposal Documents
	C. Addenda/Clarifications
	D. Submission of Proposals
	All proposal submittals shall be transmitted with a cover letter. The person authorized by the proposer/team to negotiate a contract with NVTA shall sign the cover letter and the letter shall include the name, title, address, email address and the tel...
	A proposer may object to a provision of the RFP on the grounds that it is biased, unduly restrictive or arbitrary or to the selection of a particular proposer on the grounds that NVTA procedures, the provisions of the RFP or applicable provisions of f...
	1. Any protest alleging improprieties in a solicitation process or in solicitation documents must be filed in accordance with the time lines established by the NVTA Procurement Policy prior to the scheduled bid opening or deadline for submittal or pro...
	2. Any protests regarding the evaluation of bids or proposals by NVTA, or improprieties involving the approval or award or proposed approval or award of a contract must be filed with NVTA in accordance with the timelines established by the NVTA Procur...
	All documents submitted as part of the proposal will be deemed confidential during the evaluation process. After the award of a contract, any material submitted by a proposer in response to this RFP is subject to public inspection under the California...
	E. Withdrawal of Proposal Submittal
	F. Rights of NVTA
	NVTA, in its sole discretion, reserves the right to:
	1. Reject any or all proposal submittals.
	2. Issue one (1) or more subsequent RFPs.
	3. Postpone opening for its own convenience.
	4. Remedy technical errors in the RFP process.
	5. Approve or disapprove the use of particular sub proposers.
	6. Negotiate with any, all, or none of the proposers responding to this RFP.
	7. Award a contract to one or more proposers.
	8. Waive informalities and irregularities in any proposal.
	G. Contract Type
	1. Proposer shall clearly identify each proposed change to the Agreement, including all relevant Exhibits and Attachments.
	2. Proposer shall furnish the reasons therefore as well as specific recommendations for alternative language.
	The above factors will be taken into account during contract negotiations. Substantial exceptions to the Agreement may be determined by the Agency, at its sole discretion, to be unacceptable and the Agency will proceed with negotiations with the next ...
	SECTION 3 - FORMAT AND CONTENT OF PROPOSAL
	A. Format
	1. Technical Proposal
	Technical Proposals shall be printed, bound and be: 1) as brief as possible, and 2) not include any irrelevant promotional material.  One (1) original proposal, three (3) copies, and one (1) on digital media (USB/Flash drive/CD) in PDF format of your ...
	INSTRUCTIONS TO PROPOSERS.
	The Technical Proposal shall not exceed a total of the equivalent of thirty (30) single sided pages.  RFP submittals must consist of letter-sized (8.5” x 11”) pages, with the exception of no more than three tabloid-sized (11” x 17”) pages.  General In...
	The nature and form of response of the Technical Proposal submittal is at the discretion of those responding, but shall include, at a minimum, the information listed in Section B below.
	2. Cost Proposal
	A Cost Proposal must be submitted.
	B. Content
	Proposal content, clarity, and completeness are factors which will be considered in evaluating each proposal received in order to determine suitability of each proposer’s capabilities.  The entire length of the proposal document must be 30 pages or le...
	1. TITLE PAGE
	2. TRANSMITTAL LETTER
	3. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	4. PROPOSER BACKGROUND AND EXPERIENCE
	5. QUALIFICATIONS OF PROPOSER
	6. EXAMPLES OF PUBLIC SECTOR REPRESENTATION
	7. STAFFING AND ORGANIZATION
	8. COST PROPOSAL
	9. EXCEPTIONS TO THE AGREEMENT
	10. APPENDICES (not included in the 30 page limit)
	1. TITLE PAGE

	The title page should show the RFP title, the name of the proposer, name of a contact person, a local address, telephone number and the date.
	2. TRANSMITTAL LETTER

	A transmittal letter signed by an official authorized to contractually bind the proposer is required.  The transmittal letter shall state that the proposal shall be valid for a 180-day period and should include the name, title, address, telephone numb...
	3. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	This section should be limited to a brief narrative highlighting and summarizing the proposal.  The summary should clearly convey that the proposer understands the nature of the work and the general approach to be taken.
	4. PROPOSER BACKGROUND AND EXPERIENCE

	5. Identify staff experience in working with disabled persons and location of facility where certification process will be performed.
	5. QUALIFICATIONS OF PROPOSER

	The proposer who is awarded the contract for this work will be required to comply with all applicable federal, state, regional and local requirements.
	This section should include a brief description of the proposer’s qualifications and previous experience on similar or related engagements.
	In addition, the selected proposer will be required to provide the certification of eligibility that the proposer and / or any of its principals/employees has not been debarred or suspended from providing services paid for by the federal government pr...
	A successful proposer will be required to meet weekly with NVTA staff, prepare required reports, report information regarding the completion of all tasks in the work program, submit required work products by the required delivery dates and maintain re...
	6. EXAMPLES OF PUBLIC SECTOR REPRESENTATION

	This part of the Proposal shall contain a description of matters where the proposer performed work for a public entity in California.   The proposer shall relate how it perceives its role in carrying out the responsibilities required by this RFP.  The...
	7. STAFFING AND PROJECT ORGANIZATION

	This section should identify key personnel who will be assigned to work with the NVTA and their experience.
	List any present activities and job commitments and potential or real conflicts of interest.
	8. COST PROPOSAL
	9. EXCEPTIONS TO THE AGREEMENT

	This section shall include any exceptions the proposer has taken to ATTACHMENT D – NVTA Sample Professional Service Agreement (PSA) or Master Professional Services Agreement (MPSA).
	10. APPENDICES

	Under this section, proposers shall provide all legal documents and compliance reports including DBE, Lobbying, Disbarment, etc.
	SECTION 4 - SCOPE OF SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED
	The work to be performed under contract based on this RFP is described in the Scope of Work attached hereto as ATTACHMENT A and hereby incorporated herein.
	SECTION 5 - REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS
	The NVTA seeks a motivated, skilled and enthusiastic professional team to be accountable and deliver innovative, high quality professional services.   Proposers responding to this RFP will be expected to demonstrate that one or more team members have ...
	1. Minimum three (3) years recent experience in the areas discussed under the Scope of Work, (see ATTACHMENT A).  Please provide brief resume showing work history and similar or relevant assignments completed by each proposed proposer team member.
	Please provide specific reference information on each of the areas listed above. The proposer will work under the direction of the Executive Director and any assigned Program Manager.
	SECTION 6 - EVALUATION AND QUALIFICATIONS
	A. EVALUATION METHOD
	NVTA will review and evaluate all proposals deemed responsive to this request in accordance with NVTA’s Procurement Policies and Procedures Manual.  Each of the proposers will be ranked based on the criteria listed in this section.
	B. FINAL SELECTION DETERMINATION
	Following the analysis of the written proposals and possible follow up discussions, NVTA will enter into negotiations with the highest ranked proposer(s).  If negotiations with a proposer are ultimately unsuccessful, or if the proposer declines the wo...
	C. CONTRACT NEGOTIATION
	Upon conclusion of the interviews, if any, and best and final offer, if any, NVTA will enter into contract negotiations with the finalist(s).  The final negotiated contract will be submitted to the NVTA Board for approval, if applicable.
	D. EVALUATION AND SCORING CRITERIA
	The product of the selection process will be to award a contract(s) with the top rank proposer(s).  The following criteria and point system will be used to evaluate the RFP:
	After initial evaluation of the proposals, NVTA may, at its discretion, hold interviews with the top ranked proposers.  Each interview will be no more than 60-minutes, with the proposer’s presentation limited to not more than 20-minutes.  Any areas of...
	SECTION 7 - AWARD
	In accordance with NVTA’s Procurement Policies and Procedures Manual, the NVTA will review and evaluate the proposal based on the criteria established above.  The NVTA will enter into negotiations with the highest ranked proposer(s).  Again, NVTA rese...
	SECTION 8 - NON-DISCRIMINATION
	Proposers shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass or allow harassment, against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, sexual orientation, race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, denial of family and medical care le...
	Proposers shall include the non-discrimination and compliance provisions of the above clause in all subcontracts to perform work under this contract.
	SECTION 9 - LEVINE ACT
	Proposers will be required to disclose on the record any contribution of more than $250 which they have made to an NVTA Board Member within the twelve-month period preceding the submittal deadline of this RFP, and within the twelve-month period preced...
	SECTION 10 - DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE
	NVTA has adopted a Disadvantage Business Enterprise (DBE) Policy, pursuant to which the NVTA encourages all prime proposers to utilize qualified DBE sub proposers on NVTA projects, NVTA promotes the direct purchase of goods from qualified DBEs by util...
	For purposes of NVTA's DBE Policy, a DBE shall be a "Disadvantage Business" within the meaning of 13 CFR Part 121 and California Government Code Section 14837. In the event that the NVTA's DBE Policy conflicts with any Federal, State or other funding ...
	NVTA’s overall DBE goal is 2.2%.
	SECTION 11 - INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS
	Insurance requirements for this project are set forth in ATTACHMENT D NVTA Sample Professional Service Agreement for Services, Section 7 – Insurance and Section 8 – Hold Harmless / Defense / Indemnification.
	ATTACHMENT F
	PROPOSERS REFERENCE FORM
	ATTACHMENT G
	PROPOSER’S DESIGNATED CONTACTS LIST
	ATTACHMENT H
	DISCLOSURE FORM
	1. GENERAL PROVISIONS
	2. SUBMISSION OF DBE COMPLIANCE DOCUMENTATION
	3. DBE PARTICIPATION
	4. MATERIALS OR SUPPLIES PURCHASED FROM DBE’S COUNT TOWARDS  DBE CREDIT, AND IF A DBE IS ALSO A, PURCHASES WILL COUNT  TOWARDS THE GOAL UNDER THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS:
	5. FOR DBE TRUCKING COMPANIES: CREDIT FOR DBES WILL COUNT TOWARDS DBE CREDIT UNDER THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS:
	6. PERFORMANCE OF DBE CONTRACTORS AND DBE SUBCONTRACTORS /  SUPPLIERS
	7. FINAL REPORT
	8. DBE CERTIFICATION AND DE-CERTIFICATION STATUS




<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


	Cover 1 last name: 
	cover 1 first name: 
	cover 1 middle name: 
	cover 1 agency name: 
	cover 1 division: 
	cover 1 your position: 
	cover 1 agency: 
	cover 1 position: 
	cover 2 state: Off
	cover 2 multi: Off
	cover 2 multi-county: 
	cover 2 city: Off
	cover 2 city of: 
	cover 2 judge: Off
	cover 2 county: Off
	cover 2 county of: 
	cover 2 other: Off
	cover 2 other other: 
	cover 3 annual: Off
	cover 3 annual month: 
	cover 3 annual date: 
	cover 3 annual year: 
	cover 3 assuming: Off
	cover 3 assume month: 
	cover 3 assuming date: 
	cover 3 assuming year: 
	cover 3 leaving: Off
	cover 3 left month: 
	cover 3 left date: 
	cover 3 left year: 
	cover 3 January 1, 2017: Off
	cover 3 or: Off
	cover 3 cover is month: 
	cover 3 cover is date: 
	cover 3 cover is year: 
	cover 3 candidate: Off
	cover 3 election: 
	cover 3 part 1: 
	cover 4 page: 
	cover 4 A-1: Off
	cover 4 a-2: Off
	cover 4 b: Off
	cover 4 c: Off
	cover 4 d: Off
	cover 4 e: Off
	cover 4 non: Off
	cover 5 address: 
	cover 5 city: 
	cover 5 state: 
	cover 5 zip code: 
	cover 5 area code: 
	cover 5 phone: 
	cover 5 email: 
	cover 5 date signed: 
	cover clear page: 
	cover print: 
	A-1-1 name of business: 
	A-1-1 general: 
	A-1-1 2,000: Off
	A-1-1 10,001: Off
	A-1-1 100,001: Off
	A-1-1 over: Off
	A-1-1 Stock: Off
	A-1-1 Other: Off
	A-1-1 describe: 
	A-1-1 Partnership: Off
	A-1-1 income 0: Off
	A-1-1 income 500: Off
	A-1-1 acquired month: 
	A-1-1 acquired date: 
	A-1-1 disposed month: 
	A-1-1 disposed date: 
	A-1-2 name of business: 
	A-1-2 general: 
	A-1-2 2,000: Off
	A-1-2 10,001: Off
	A-1-2 100,001: Off
	A-1-2 over: Off
	A-1-2 Stock: Off
	A-1-2 other: Off
	A-1-2 describe: 
	A-1-2 partnership: Off
	A-1-2 income 0: Off
	A-1-2 income 500: Off
	A-1-2 acquired month: 
	A-1-2 acquired date: 
	A-1-2 disposed month: 
	A-1-2 disposed date: 
	A-1 -3 name of business: 
	A-1-3 general: 
	A-1-3 2,000: Off
	A-1-3 10,001: Off
	A-1-3 100,001: Off
	A-1-3 over: Off
	A-1-3 stock: Off
	A-1-3 other: Off
	A-1-3 describe: 
	A-1-3 partnership: Off
	A-1-3 income 0: Off
	A-1-3 income 500: Off
	A-1-3 acquired month: 
	A-1-3 acquired date: 
	A-1-3 disposed month: 
	A-1-3 disposed date: 
	A-1-4 name of business: 
	A-1-4 general: 
	A-1-4 2,000: Off
	A-1-4 10,001: Off
	A-1-4 100,001: Off
	A-1-4 over: Off
	A-1-4 stock: Off
	A-1-4 other: Off
	A-1-4 describe: 
	A-1-4 partnership: Off
	A-1-4 income 0: Off
	A-1-4 income 500: Off
	A-1-4 acquired month: 
	A-1-4 acquired date: 
	A-1-4 disposed month: 
	A-1-4 disposed date: 
	A-1-5 name of business: 
	A-1-5 general: 
	A-1-5 2,000: Off
	A-1-5 10,001: Off
	A-1-5 100,001: Off
	A-1-5 over: Off
	A-1-5 stock: Off
	A-1-5 other: Off
	A-1-5 describe: 
	A-1-5 partnership: Off
	A-1-5 income 0: Off
	A-1-5 income 500: Off
	A-1-5 acquired month: 
	A-1-5 acquired date: 
	A-1-5 Disposed month: 
	A-1-5 disposed date: 
	A-1-6 name of business: 
	A-1-6 general: 
	A-1-6 2,000: Off
	A-1-6 10,001: Off
	A-1-6 100,001: Off
	A-1-6 over: Off
	A-1-6 Stock: Off
	A-1-6 other: Off
	A-1-6 describe: 
	A-1-6 partnership: Off
	A-1-6 income 0: Off
	A-1-6 income 500: Off
	A-1-6 acquired month: 
	A-1-6 acquired date: 
	A-1-6 disposed month: 
	A-1-6 disposed date: 
	A-1-6 comments: 
	A-1 clear page: 
	A-1 print: 
	A-1 name on corner: 
	A-2 name: 
	A-2 address: 
	A-2 trust: Off
	A-2 business enitity: Off
	A-2 general: 
	A-2 fmv 0: Off
	A-2 fmv 2,000: Off
	A-2 fmv 10,001: Off
	A-2 fmv 100,001: Off
	A-2 fmv over: Off
	A-2 acquired month: 
	A-2 acquired date: 
	A-2 disposed month: 
	A-2 disposed date: 
	A-2 partnership: Off
	A-2 sole proprietorship: Off
	A-2 other: Off
	A-2 other discription: 
	A-2 position: 
	A-2-2 income 0: Off
	A-2-2 income 500: Off
	A-2-2 income 1,001: Off
	A-2-2 income 10,001: Off
	A-2-2 income over: Off
	A-2-3 none: Off
	A-2-3 names: Off
	A-2-3 list below: 
	A-2-4 investment: Off
	A-2-4 real property: Off
	A-2-4 name: 
	A-2-4 description of business: 
	A-2-4 2,000: Off
	A-2-4 10,001: Off
	A-2-4 100,001: Off
	A-2-4 over: Off
	A-2-4 acquired month: 
	A-2-4 acquired date: 
	A-2-4 disposed month: 
	A-2-4 disposed date: 
	A-2-4 property: Off
	A-2-4 stock: Off
	A-2-4 partnership: Off
	A-2-4 leasehold: Off
	A-2-4 years: 
	A-2-4 other: Off
	A-2-4 other other: 
	A-2-4 check box: Off
	A-2-1-2 name: 
	A-2-1-2 address: 
	A-2-1-2 trust: Off
	A-2-1-2 business entity: Off
	A-2-1-2 general: 
	A-2-1-2 0: Off
	A-2-1-2 2,000: Off
	A-2-1-2 10,001: Off
	A-2-1-2 100,001: Off
	A-2-1-2 over: Off
	A-2-1-2 acquired month: 
	A-2-1-2 acquired date: 
	A-2-1-2 disposed month: 
	A-2-1-2 disposed date: 
	A-2-1-2 partnership: Off
	A-2-1-2 sole proprietorship: Off
	A-2-1-2 other: Off
	A-2-1-2 other other: 
	A-2-1-2 position: 
	A-2-2-2  income 0: Off
	A-2-2-2 income 500: Off
	A-2-2-2 income 1,001: Off
	A-2-2-2 income 10,001: Off
	A-2-2-2 income over: Off
	A-2-3-2 none: Off
	A-2-3-2 names: Off
	A-2-3-2 list below: 
	A-2-4-2 investment: Off
	A-2-4-2 real property: Off
	A-2-4-2 name: 
	A-2-4-2 description of business: 
	A-2-4-2 2,000: Off
	A-2-4-2 10,001: Off
	A-2-4-2 100,001: Off
	A-2-4-2 over: Off
	A-2-4-2 acquired month: 
	A-2-4-2 acquired date: 
	A-2-4-2 disposed month: 
	A-2-4-2 disposed date: 
	A-2-4-2 property: Off
	A-2-4-2 stock: Off
	A-2-4-2 partnership: Off
	A-2-4-2 leasehold: Off
	A-2-4-2 years: 
	A-2-4-2 other: Off
	A-2-4-2 other other: 
	A-2-4-2 check box: Off
	A-2 comments: 
	A-2 clear page: 
	A-2 print: 
	b assessor's: 
	b city: 
	b fmv 2,000: Off
	b fmv 10,001: Off
	b fmv 100,001: Off
	b fmv over: Off
	b acquired month: 
	b acquired date: 
	b disposed month: 
	b disposed date: 
	b ownership: Off
	b easement: Off
	b leasehold: Off
	b years remaining: 
	b other: Off
	b other other: 
	b income 0: Off
	b income 500: Off
	b income 1,001: Off
	b income 10,001: Off
	b income over: Off
	b none: Off
	b list name: 
	b2 assessor: 
	b2 city: 
	b2 fmv 2,000: Off
	b2 fmv 10,001: Off
	b2 fmv 100,001: Off
	b2 fmv over: Off
	b2 acquired month: 
	b2 acquired date: 
	b2 disposed month: 
	b2 disposed date: 
	b2 ownership: Off
	b2 easement: Off
	b2 leasehold: Off
	b2 years remaining: 
	b2 other: Off
	b2 other other: 
	b2 income 0: Off
	b2 income 500: Off
	b2 income 1,001: Off
	b2 income 10,001: Off
	b2 income over: Off
	b2 none: Off
	b2 list name: 
	b name of lender: 
	b address: 
	b business activity: 
	b interest rate: 
	b lender none: Off
	b term: 
	b highest 500: Off
	b highest 1,001: Off
	b highest 10,001: Off
	b highest over: Off
	b guarantor: Off
	b if applicable: 
	b2 name of lender: 
	b2 address: 
	b2 business activity: 
	b2 interest rate: 
	b2 lender none: Off
	b2 term: 
	b2 highest 500: Off
	b2 highest 1,001: Off
	b2 highest 10,001: Off
	b2 highest over: Off
	b2 guarantor: Off
	b2 if applicable: 
	b comments: 
	b clear page: 
	b print: 
	c name of source: 
	c address: 
	c business: 
	c position: 
	c no income: Off
	c income 500: Off
	c income 1,001: Off
	c income 10,001: Off
	c income over: Off
	c salary: Off
	c spouses: Off
	c partnership: Off
	c sale: Off
	c real property: 
	c loan repayment: Off
	c commission: Off
	c rental: Off
	c income describe: 
	c other: Off
	c other describe: 
	c2 name of source: 
	c2 address: 
	c2 business: 
	c2 position: 
	c2 no income: Off
	c2 income 500: Off
	c2 income 1,001: Off
	c2 income 10,001: Off
	c2 income over: Off
	c2 salary: Off
	c2 spouses: Off
	c2 partnership: Off
	c2 sale: Off
	c2 real property: 
	c2 loan repayment: Off
	c2 commission: Off
	c2 rental: Off
	c2 income describe: 
	c2 other: Off
	c2 other describe: 
	c name of lender: 
	c lender address: 
	c lender business: 
	c highest 500: Off
	c highest 1,001: Off
	c highest 10,001: Off
	c highest over: Off
	c interest rate: 
	c none: Off
	c term: 
	c loan none: Off
	c personal: Off
	c lender real: Off
	c street address: 
	c lender city: 
	c guaranto: Off
	c guarantor discription: 
	c lender other: Off
	c lender other describe: 
	c comments: 
	c clear page: 
	c print: 
	d1 name: 
	d1 address: 
	d1 business: 
	d1-1 month: 
	d1-1 date: 
	d1-1 year: 
	d1-1 value: 
	d1-1 description: 
	d1-2 month: 
	d1-2 date: 
	d1-2 year: 
	d1-2 value: 
	d1-2 description: 
	d1-3 month: 
	d1-3 date: 
	d1-3 year: 
	d1-3 value: 
	d1-3 description: 
	d2 name: 
	d2 address: 
	d2 business: 
	d2-1 month: 
	d2-1 date: 
	d2-1 year: 
	d2-1 value: 
	d2-1 description: 
	d2-2 month: 
	d2-2 date: 
	d2-2 year: 
	d2-2 value: 
	d2-2 description: 
	d2-3 month: 
	d2-3 date: 
	d2-3 year: 
	d2-3 value: 
	d2-3 description: 
	d3 name: 
	d3 address: 
	d3 business: 
	d3-1 month: 
	d3-1 date: 
	d3-1 year: 
	d3-1 value: 
	d3-1 description: 
	d3-2 month: 
	d3-2 date: 
	d3-2 year: 
	d3-2 value: 
	d3-2 description: 
	d3-3 month: 
	d3-3 date: 
	d3-3 year: 
	d3-3 value: 
	d3-3 description: 
	d4 name: 
	d4 address: 
	d4 business: 
	d4-1 month: 
	d4-1 date: 
	d4-1 year: 
	d4-1 value: 
	d4-1 description: 
	d4-2 month: 
	d4-2 date: 
	d4-2 year: 
	d4-2 value: 
	d4-2 description: 
	d4-3 month: 
	d4-3 date: 
	d4-3 year: 
	d4-3 value: 
	d4-3 description: 
	d5 name: 
	d5 address: 
	d5 business: 
	d5-1 month: 
	d5-1 date: 
	d5-1 year: 
	d5-1 value: 
	d5-1 description: 
	d5-2 month: 
	d5-2 date: 
	d5-2 year: 
	d5-2 value: 
	d5-2 description: 
	d5-3 month: 
	d5-3 date: 
	d5-3 year: 
	d5-3 value: 
	d5-3 description: 
	d6 name: 
	d6 address: 
	d6 business: 
	d6-1 month: 
	d6-1 date: 
	d6-1 year: 
	d6-1 value: 
	d6-1 description: 
	d6-2 month: 
	d6-2 date: 
	d6-2 year: 
	d6-2 value: 
	d6-2 description: 
	d6-3 month: 
	d6-3 date: 
	d6-3 year: 
	d6-3 value: 
	d6-3 description: 
	d comments: 
	d clear page: 
	d print: 
	e1 name of source: 
	e1 address: 
	e1 city: 
	e1 501: Off
	e1 501 describe: 
	e1 amt month: 
	e1 amt date: 
	e1 amt year: 
	e1-2 amt month: 
	e1-2 amt date: 
	e1-2 amt year: 
	e1 amt: 
	e1 gift: Off
	e1 income: Off
	e1 made: Off
	e1 other: Off
	e1 description 2: 
	e1 destination 2: 
	e2 name of source: 
	e2 address: 
	e2 city: 
	e2 501: Off
	e2 501 describe: 
	e2 amt month: 
	e2 amt date: 
	e2 amt year: 
	e2-2 amt month: 
	e2-2 amt date: 
	e2-2 amt year: 
	e2 amt: 
	e2 gift: Off
	e2 income: Off
	e2 made: Off
	e2 other: Off
	e2 description 2: 
	e2 destination 2: 
	e3 name of source: 
	e3 address: 
	e3 city: 
	e3 501: Off
	e3 501 describe: 
	e3 amt month: 
	e3 amt date: 
	e3 amt year: 
	e3-2 amt month: 
	e3-2 amt date: 
	e3-2 amt year: 
	e3 amt: 
	e3 gift: Off
	e3 income: Off
	e3 made: Off
	e3 other: Off
	e3 description 2: 
	e3 destination 2: 
	e4 name of source: 
	e4 address: 
	e4 city: 
	e4 501: Off
	e4 501 describe: 
	e4 amt month: 
	e4 amt date: 
	e4 amt year: 
	e4-2 amt month: 
	e4-2 amt date: 
	e4-2 amt year: 
	e4 amt: 
	e4 gift: Off
	e4 income: Off
	e4 made: Off
	e4 other: Off
	e4 description 2: 
	e4 destination 2: 
	e comments: 
	e clear page: 
	e print: 


